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Company Profile
NG

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries collectively the “Group”, Hong Kong stock code: 757, Taiwan
stock code: 9157.TT) is a leading manufacturer of monocrystalline silicon
solar ingots and wafers in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
The Group is also engaged in producing monocrystalline silicon solar cells
and modules in recent years. Its products are important components of
solar energy generation systems.

During the year, the Group was engaged in three main businesses:

(@ the manufacturing of, trading of and provision of processing services
for polysilicon and monocrystalline and multicrystalline silicon solar
ingots/wafers;

(b)  the manufacturing and trading of monocrystalline silicon solar cells;
and

(c) the manufacturing and trading of photovoltaic modules and
installation of photovoltaic systems.

Currently, our integrated business model includes monocrystalline silicon
solar ingot production with annual capacity of approximately 1.2GW,
solar wafer production with annual capacity of approximately 900MW, as
well as photovoltaic cells and modules production with annual capacity of
approximately 300MW and 150MW, respectively. In addition, the Group
operates polysilicon reclaiming and upgrading facilities in Shanghai and
Jinzhou.

Solargiga will move a step closer to become one of the world’s largest
monocrystalline silicon solar ingot and wafer manufacturers as well as
one of the key players in multicrystalline silicon solar product business. In
addition, in view of the higher internal rate of return, the Group is seeking
partnership to set up solar power plant, which will use the Group’s
photovoltaic modules.
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Financial Highlights

I mE

(For the year ended 31 December)

(BE+=A=1+—HILFE)

Five-Year Financial Summary A EHBREE
RMB’000 AREETT
2008 2009 2010 2011
—EEN\F —EENE —E-EF —E——F
(restated)
(#2=51)
Note
7
Turnover =E 3] 1,492,935 658,720 1,854,769 2,574,669 996,836
Gross profit/(loss) ER(FE8E) 225,510 (5,780) 413,243 253,848 (291,384)
Profit/(loss) from operations £ %58, (&518) 120,660 (98,824) 300,897 106,137 (503,720)
Profit/(loss) attributable to  #EZ R RFE(L
equity shareholders 8, (B51E) 83,379 (98,098) 214,121 54,291 (1,276,554)
Basic earnings/(loss) SREAXRBA,(EE)
per share (RMB cents) (AR#S) 5.12 (6.75) 11.85 2.43 (55.99)
Non-current assets FERBEE 759,550 921,054 1,502,677 3,401,078 2,464,627
Current assets RBEE 1,015,860 1,126,895 1,540,546 1,647,607 1,480,031
Current liabilities ViEI=Ri= 471,328 495,472 1,113,576 1,352,354 1,865,083
Non-current liabilities FRBEERE 40,568 145,197 283,932 1,423,435 1,028,345
Net assets EEFEE 1,263,514 1,407,280 1,645,715 2,272,896 1,051,230

As disclosed in note 2(b) to the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has changed the basis
of presentation of the revenue derived from certain transactions with a
customer who was also a supplier of the Group from a gross basis to
a net processing fee basis. Turnover for the year ended 31 December
2011 above has been restated to reflect this change. The change in
presentation does not have any impact on the Group’s turnover for the

years ended 31 December 2008, 2009 and 2010.

B/48 o

FE

HBUOAEEBE_Z-——F+T-A=1t-HLFENK
BUBHRERMT200)RE - AEECHSRAEEM
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REEAESTFAMIEFHEEE - LNEE-Z——F
TZA=Z+T-RLEFENEXBFCEIURRULES -
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

Dear honourable shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the
“Board”) of Solargiga Energy Holdings
Limited (“Solargiga” or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries referred
to as the “Group”), | hereby present the
annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

B EHAIRR :

RAERKRELEERIERAR QT (B3
RIS AF ] EREMBARIAEEDE
EEEC AFUBRREZAQAFNEEZZ
——HF+ A=+ —HIFEZEERE -

| —
o
.

In 2012, the solar industry was suffered from negative market sentiment
caused by the economic downturn since 2011. The global solar industry
was facing challenges of overcapacity, oversupply and overstocking
in the upstream and downstream businesses. Over the past year, the
solar industry was still in the process of digesting the over-investment
in capacity in the past two years, which hindered the development of
the industry. Notwithstanding the challenging prospect of the industry,
Solargiga will gradually complete its transformation to the “Golden Cup”
model which enables it to become a one-stop service provider of solar
power projects and a leading solar energy group in China by leveraging
on its strengths, as well as building on its well-established effective and
unique “inverted pyramid” vertical integrated supply chain.

During the year under review, given the significant drop in the per unit
selling price of solar products caused by the oversupply in the market,
and the Group’s strategy in ensuring the recoverability of trade receivables
instead of increasing the external shipment volume, the Group adopted
a prudent approach in customer selection and resulted in a decrease in
turnover and external shipment volume in the first three quarters of 2012.
During the year, the Group’s turnover amounted to RMB996.8 million,
representing a decrease of 61.3% compared with RMB2,574.4 million in
2011.

AECE--FHRBECEARR  —B-—FTEXERNERREDNTE
HR - RRNABRETEDATHERBR - HBRRANETHEEFEAN
B REFAGERTEDEHESCBEMFNERBERE - KIERET
EMBERBHHOEZ - KW ETEASTRRE  BRERDEURS
ZBEREAR  BUABRYN—RERERERENEA=ZAF JEE -8
g BT —RAGREM R REB R ARG REEEEE — B RER
HENSHE EBH  2NBRRAGESE  BOIRBTEELENAGREE
REME -

EREFERN  BRTEHERRCAGEERHEEERETE  MELAKE
MEERBUBRRERRRREZ2MAL  IFFSHIMES  HEE
BEFHET  NETEEE=ZFNEXERYIMIER - TR EENE
EBERARYGSHET W —B——F2FARB25747AEB TR
61.3% °

TAN Wenhua,
Executive Director and Chairman
BNE HITEEFREE
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

Nevertheless, the external shipment volume hit a record high in the fourth
quarter of 2012, amounting to 191.54 MW as the Group further expanded
and gained additional alliances with international groups, state-owned
domestic enterprises and well-known customers since the fourth quarter
of 2012. This demonstrates the continuous effort and capability of the
Group in seizing business opportunities despite the unfavorable business
environment.

Maintaining its leading position in industrial technology is one of the
Group’s development objectives. We currently endeavor to produce
N-type silicon ingots and to increase the production and sales of such
products in the future. The N-type silicon ingots manufactured by the
Group are applicable to the manufacturing of the solar energy products
with high conversion efficiency of 22-23%. During the year under review,
the sales of N-type silicon ingots accounted for 80.5% of the external
sales of N-type silicon ingots, and mainly sold to the Japanese customers.
The Group also secures the high margin and long-term orders from its
Japanese customers, which shows the high recognition from customers
of our products.

Meanwhile, the Group will expand its business in the future which
increase the need for capital. As such, in December 2012, the Group
raised net proceeds amounting to approximately HK$90,000,000 by way
of open offer of 249,130,047 shares on the basis of one offer share for
every nine existing shares. The proceeds will be utilised as working capital
to ensure there is sufficient fund to satisfy the future operational needs of
the Group and to maintain smooth business development of the Group
S0 as to achieve stable growth.

Looking forward, China currently focuses on the exploration of new
energy sources, while the Group’s development will be in line with the
plan of the state. The large scale of operation of the Group and the
restructuring of the solar industry, together with the tighten regulations
imposed on the small scale manufacturers by the state will have a positive
impact on the development of the Group. Moreover, exploration of
new energy is considered to be a must-do plan for the state, therefore,
the Group is optimistic towards the outlook. We will actively devote to
research and development, increase the production output of N-type
products, implement strict control cost, focus on exploring new clients as
well as improve the product quality.
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In addition, the Group also completed another equity financing activity by
way of an open offer in March 2013. 498,260,094 offer shares were issued
on the basis of one offer share for every five existing shares, raising net
proceeds amounted to approximately HK$250,000,000. Together with
the proceeds from the open offer in December 2012, the financial position
of the Group has been strengthened and improved, which enables the
Group to become the leader in the solar industry.

Finally, I, on behalf of the Board, would like to express my gratitude to the
management and staff for their dedicated efforts and contributions that
helped Solargiga resist the volatile environment arising from the industry
integration and steadily move forward, as well as to shareholders for
their continuous supports. In the coming year, Solargiga will continue to
consolidate the Group’s business and generate returns to shareholders.

TAN Wen Hua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Market Overview

The global solar industry continues to face challenges of overcapacity,
oversupply and overstocking in the upstream and downstream business.
In 2012, the solar industry was still in the process of digesting the over-
investment in capacity in 2010 and 2011. According to a recent report
issued by Solarbuzz, a research institute for the solar industry, the
demand for solar power generation slowed down in 2012. The demand
increased by only slightly 5%, from 27.7GW in 2011 to 29GW in 2012, a
first time record of lower than 10% in the past ten years. The analysis also
showed that the growth did not meet the expectation of over 30GW of
demand of solar energy that estimated in 2012 by the industry.

Though the subsidy policies for solar energy in the European market
decreased in 2012, Europe is still the largest market of demand for solar
energy, which amounted to 16.48GW and accounting for 60% of the
global market. The German Government set a target of an accumulated
installed capacity of solar energy in Germany at 52GW by 2020. If the
total installed capacity exceeds the target, no subsidy would be granted
for the excess of the newly installed capacity which over the target level.

28.3%

O |55 S 0.5,
Taiwan
L North

America

it

11.7%

54.4 .

The PRC 5
BoM
FE

TEHE

2RO ARGRTEDNATDHERBR - HBARMET
HEFRAHNEE R —FRGRTENEEE
HIE—E—ZSEN-_Z——FHNERBERSE - BXB
BEATEMAMESolarbuzzRHF SR —E—-FX
GEERESERHBERE - EREBA-ZT——FW277F
RMA5% =T —ZFK20FF » B+ ELUIRERMNER
10% @ SMTMEERRTEE S —_FHEABES
SREESEBIBI0E FLEKF ©

BUNAE#HA T - —FEXBEERBEBRRD - BEM
MAKRGEEREATS  HERETHBEHI60% &
1648 K » EEIBT 2020 KIGRERTER L AR
BERERNER  NIRZHESBBRENEE 2
RN R E B TSRS EMTHE -

Annual Report 2012 &3f 11



Management Discussion and Analysis
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Market Overview (continued)

Asia is the second largest market of solar energy, which amounted to
8.69GW in 2012. The Chinese market grew rapidly in the second half
of 2012. The Chinese Government indicated that photovoltaic power
generation and application of solar thermal technology have been the
fastest growing renewable energy technologies in the world in the last
decade. Furthermore, it has clearly stated that photovoltaic technologies
is designated as one of the major technological development projects in
the Twelfth Five-Year Plan, and “Special Plan for Solar Power Generation
Technology in Twelfth Five-Year Plan” has been formulated. The Chinese
Government aims to lift its self-research and development capability and
grasp the core technology, which will support China’s transition from a
major manufacturer in the solar industry to a rising power of the industry
and create a favourable cycle for the development of the solar industry.

In respect of the U.S. market, the proportion of demand of the whole U.S.
market in 2012 was 13%, amounted to 3.68GW. It is mainly attributable
to California benefitting from the energy quota and subsidy policy of the
renewable energy. In fact, the California market accounted for over one
third of the whole U.S. market in 2012. According to the reports issued
by Solar Energy Industries Association (“SEIA”) and GTM Research, the
federal and state governments of the U.S. subsidise the development of
clean energy, which helps drive the growth of demand in solar energy,
and the decrease in price of solar energy panels and electricity systems
also helps trigger demand.
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Operations Review

During the year under review, the Group established an effective and
unique of “inverted pyramid” vertical integrated supply chain. It gradually
completed the transformation of “Golden Cup” from a solar products
materials manufacturer to a one-stop service provider of solar power
projects. The Group aims to become a high quality and hi-tech company
and distinguish itself from the other participants in the industry. The
Group has already obtained 51 patents and 11 patents are in the process
of application. The Group will continue to devote efforts in research and
development. Besides, individual products of the Company including
ingots, wafer, cells and modules within the supply chain can also be sold
to third parties.

Silicon Ingot Business

During the year under review, the Group maintained its production
capacity of silicon ingots to further explore its technological advantage.
As at 31 December 2012, the Group was equipped with 589
monocrystalline ingot pullers and 4 multicrystalline casting furnaces,
of which 397 monocrystalline ingot pullers were located in the Jinzhou
production base while the remaining 192 monocrystalline ingot pullers
were installed in the plant of Solargiga Energy (Qinghai) Company Limited
(“Qinghai Solargiga”), which is 51% owned by the Group, in Xining,
Qinghai Province. Among the 192 monocrystalline ingot pullers, 96
monocrystalline ingot pullers was put into mass production in December
2011 and another 96 monocrystalline ingot pullers will be put into trial
procedures depend on the recovery of the market condition, resulted
in the annual production capacity of silicon ingots of 1.2GW, further
strengthen the Group’s leading position in monocrystalline solar energy
products industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Operations Review (Continued)

Silicon Ingot Business (Continued)

Using its “inverted pyramid” vertical integration supply chain model, the
Group was able to fully utilise its upstream products for the production of
its downstream products, and the upstream products including ingots,
wafers and cells were also sold externally. The external shipment volume
of silicon solar ingots of the Group was 77.59MW, representing a 45.1%
drop compared to 141.24MW in 2011. Solargiga has gained a leading
position in the monocrystalline silicon solar ingot manufacture industry in
terms of technology, product quality and quantity. The products of the
Group are the only monocrystalline silicon solar ingots in China for which
national products exemption from quality surveillance inspection has been
granted. Major products are silicon ingot of 5.5 inches to 8.7 inches in
diameter. The photovoltaic conversion efficiency of its monocrystalline
silicon products of the Group is also higher than the industry average.
Apart from the traditional P-type products, the Group also provides N-type
high-efficiency products with a photovoltaic conversion efficiency of 22—
23%. During the year under review, the external shipment volume of N-type
silicon ingots was about 62.48MW, representing an aggregate amount of
approximately 80.5% of the external shipment volume of silicon ingots.
N-type products are mainly targeted at Japanese customers.

Wafer Business

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has 121 wiresaws in the Jinzhou
production base, with an annual production capacity of wafers reaching
900MW. In addition to the supply of wafers to the downstream cells and
module, the Group also sells wafers to independent customers directly.
The external shipment volumes of silicon solar wafers of the Group
were 244. 7MW during the year under review, representing an increase
of 34.4% in total compared with 182.11MW in 2011. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in the proportion of the wafer processing
business during the year and the decrease in internal sales of wafer to the
downstream business.

Cell Business

During the year under review, the manufacturing base of the Group in
Jinzhou is equipped with production lines of solar cells with production
capacity of 300MW and external shipment volume of solar cells was
approximately 91.15MW, representing a decline of 35.1% in total volume
compared with the external shipment volume of 138.90 MW of last
year. It contributed a segment turnover of approximately RMB274.711
million (2011: RMB842.130 million), accounting for 27.6% of the Group’s
turnover (2011: 32.7%). The manufacturing of cells provides stable and
high raw materials supply for the modules business of the Group, and
enhances the overall operation efficiency. In addition, the products are not
only supplied to the downstream manufacture of modules, but also sold
to the customers in China and Japan.
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Operations Review (Continued)

Module Business

The Group has equipped with solar modules production line by holding
a 51% interest in Jinzhou Jinmao Photovoltaic Technology Company
Limited (“Jinzhou Jinmao”). The modules production base is currently
located in Jinzhou with a production capacity of 150MW. During the year
under review, the external shipment volume of solar modules of Jinzhou
Jinmao was approximately 55.69MW, representing a decline of 38.9% in
total volume compared with the external shipment volume of 91.09MW
last year. The Group currently has obtained a stable order stream from
its Chinese and Japanese customers. In addition to increasing the
production capacity by enhancing the technology, the Group will also
outsource the processing activity to meet the demands for modules from
customers.

System Installation Business

Since the Group is mainly engaged in the manufacturing of solar
products, it is not the Group’s long term strategy to hold the photovoltaic
power plant. Therefore, currently, among the photovoltaic power plants
that the Group holds, being photostatic power plants in Qinghai Golmud,
Liaoning Jinzhou and Germany, certain power plants under the Germany
power plant project have been disposed of. The Group is seeking the
opportunity to dispose of major power plant projects to generate working
capital for the Group and for the construction of new plants for the
production of solar modules.

Financial Review

Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the turnover of the Group was
RMB996.836 million, representing a decrease of 61.3% compared with
the year ended 31 December 2011. During the year ended 31 December
2012, due to the slowdown of global solar market, the selling prices of
solar products dropped which led to the decrease in turnover.

Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2012, cost of sales decreased by
44.5% to RMB1,288.220 million from RMB2,320.821 million for the year
ended 31 December in 2011. Cost of sales represented 129.2% of total
turnover, an increase of 39.1% compared to 2011. The increase in ratio
was mainly due to the further inventory provision made during the year
(2012: RMB154.590 million; 2011: RMB161.701 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review (continued)

Gross loss/profit and gross loss/profit margin

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded a gross loss
of RMB291.384 million and a gross loss margin of 29.2%, as compared to
a gross profit of RMB253.848 miillion and a gross profit margin of 9.9% for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly comprised packaging expenses,
freight charges and marketing and promotional expenses. Selling and
distribution expenses decreased by 40% to RMB19.303 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012 from RMB32.169 million in 2011,
representing 1.9% of the total turnover of the Group (2011: 1.2%).

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly comprised staff costs and research
and development expenses. The administrative expenses for 2012
amounted to RMB252.539 million, decreased by 6.2% as compared to
RMB269.315 million in 2011, representing 25.3% of the turnover of the
Group.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group increased from RMB71.949 million for
the year ended 31 December 2011 to RMB110.967 million for the year
ended 31 December 2012. Finance costs represented mainly the interest
on bank loans, bonds and the municipal government loan. The increase
in finance costs was due to the bonds issued on 24 August 2011 and the
additional bank borrowings for business operations.

Income tax

Income tax credit was RMB23.538 million for the year ended 31
December 2012, while an income tax credit amounting to RMB10.021
million was recorded for the year ended 31 December 2011. Income tax
credit recorded for the year ended 31 December 2012 was due to the
reversal of temporary differences.

(Loss)/profit attributable to the equity shareholders

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded a loss
attributable to the equity shareholders of RMB1,276.554 million, while a
profit attributable to the equity shareholders of RMB54.291 million was
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2011.
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Financial Review (Continued)

Inventory turnover days

The inventories of the Group comprised mainly raw materials, namely
polysilicon, crucibles and other auxiliary raw materials, and finished
goods. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the inventory turnover
days of the Group were 111 days (2011: 59 days), an increase of 52 days
from the corresponding period in 2011. The optimal inventory levels of the
Group should be sufficient for approximately three months’ consumption
in the case of polysilicon and one month consumption for other auxiliary
raw materials.

Trade receivable turnover days

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the trade receivable turnover
days of the Group increased to 84 days (2011: 25 days). The increase in
trade receivable turnover days was due to the extension of credit terms to
customers during the year. Generally, the Group allows a credit period of
30 to 90 days for its customers.

Trade payable turnover days

Due to the lengthened cash collection cycle, the Group decided to
extend payments to suppliers during the year under review. Accordingly,
trade payable turnover days during the year ended 31 December 2012
increased to 72 days (2011: 22 days).

Liquidity and financial resources

The principal sources of working capital of the Group during the year
under review were cash flows from bank borrowings. As at 31 December
2012, the current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) of
the Group was 0.79 (31 December 2011: 1.22). The Group had net
borrowings of RMB1,476.838 million as at 31 December 2012 (31
December 2011: RMB1,115.634 million), including cash at banks and on
hand of RMB153.793 million (31 December 2011: RMB583.743 million),
pledged bank deposits of RMB174.234 million (31 December 2011:
RMB151.682 million), bank loans due within one year of RMB1,018.985
million (31 December 2011: RMB705.077 million), non-current bank loans
of RMB484.5 million (31 December 2011: RMB845.035 million), non-
current corporate bonds of RMB298.600 million (31 December 2011:
RMB298.000 million) and non-current municipal loan of RMB2.78 million
(81 December 2011: RMB2.947 million). The net debt to equity ratio (net
debt divided by total equity) was 140.5% (31 December 2011: 49.1%). By
excluding the effect of the reclassification of the non-current bank loans of
RMB133.441 million from non-current liabilities to current liabilities which
the waiver has been granted by the majority of the lenders subsequent to
the end of reporting period, the Group’s current ratio as at 31 December
2012 would be 0.85, bank loans due within 1 year would be RMB885.544
million and the non-current bank loans would be RMB617.941 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review (Continued)
Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases and cash and bank deposits that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency, Renminbi, of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily the
US Dollar, Euro and Hong Kong Dollar. The Directors do not expect any
significant impact from the change in exchange rates since the Group uses
foreign currencies received from customers to settle the amounts due to
suppliers. In addition, the Directors ensure that the net exposure is kept
at an acceptable level by purchasing or selling the US Dollar and Euro at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 3,635 (31 December 2011:
3,655) employees.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Overview

The Board strived to uphold good corporate governance and adopted
sound corporate governance practices. This report outlines the principles
and the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”), which was revised and took effect on 1 April
2012, as well as those of the former code, as contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) which
have been adopted by the Group.

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with the Code to oversee the financial
reporting procedures and internal controls of the Group so as to ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Company has also established a
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and a remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) (collectively, the “Board
Committees”) with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees have been posted on the websites of Stock
Exchange and the Company since March 2012.

The Group has implemented a compliance manual which covers areas
such as ongoing compliance obligations of the Company and the
Directors, business operations of the Group, financial management
systems, human resources management systems, internal control
systems, quality assurance and property management systems. In the
opinion of the Board, all the code provisions set out in the Code were met
by the Company throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2012.

Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions entered
into by Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all the
Directors and all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions throughout the financial year
ended 31 December 2012.
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The Board of Directors

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of overall business
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and monitoring
the performance of the senior management. The Directors have the
responsibility to act objectively in the interests of the Company. The
Directors also assume the following responsibilities for corporate
governance as set out in code provision D3.1 of the Code:

(@ to develop and review an issuer’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the issuer’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

(e) to review the issuer’'s compliance with the code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Currently, the Board comprises nine Directors, including four executive
Directors: Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman), Mr. HSU You Yuan (Chief
Executive Officer), Ms. ZHANG Liming and Mr. Tan Xin, one non-
executive Director: Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai and four independent non-
executive Directors: Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert, Ms. FU Shuangye,
Dr. LIN Wen and Mr. ZHANG Chun. The names and biographical details
of the Directors are set out on pages 30 to 34 of the annual report. The
Board has a strong independent element in its composition with over half
of the board members being non-executive Directors to ensure that all
decisions of the Board are made in the best interest of the Group’s long-
term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board

Committees. Further details of these committees are set out below on
pages 24 to 26.
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Board Meetings

The Company holds Board meetings regularly, at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also be convened
if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and
financial performance of the Group. Notice of Board meeting will be
sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular Board meeting.
Reasonable notices will be given to the Directors for ad-hoc Board
meetings. Directors may participate either in person or through electronic
means of communications. The Company will provide relevant materials
to all the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All
the Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, 7 Board meetings and
2 Shareholders meeting were held and the attendance of individual

Directors at these meetings is set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

Board Shareholders

Name of Directors meetings meetings
Executive Directors
Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman) 7/7 2/2
Mr. HSU You Yuan 7/7 2/2

(Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. ZHANG Liming 1/7 0/2
Mr. TAN Xin 5/7 0/2
Non-executive Director
Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai 4/7 0/2
Independent non-executive

Directors
Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 6/7 0/2
Ms. FU Shuangye 6/7 0/2
Dr. LIN Wen 5/7 0/2
Mr. ZHANG Chun 5/7 0/2
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Independent non-executive Directors

All independent non-executive Directors possess a wealth of professional
and industry expertise and management experience and have provided
their professional advices to the Board. They have played a significant role
in the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and their views carry
significant weight in the Board’s decision. In particular, they bring impartial
views to the Board on issues of the Company’s strategy, performance
and control. The Board also considers that independent non-executive
Directors provide independent advice on the Company’s business
strategy, results and management so that all interests of shareholders
are taken into consideration, and the interests of the Company and
its shareholders are taken into account in all business decisions. The
Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Mr. HSU You Yuan has been appointed as an executive Director for a
specific term of three years commencing from 10 June 2010, and each
of Mr. TAN Wenhua and Ms. ZHANG Liming has been appointed as an
executive Director for a specific term of three years commencing from 30
June 2011. Mr. Tan Xin has been appointed as an executive director for a
specific term of three years commencing from 28 June 2012. Such terms
are subject to re-appointment by the Company at an annual general
meeting upon retirement.

Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai has been appointed as a non-executive director for a
specific term of three years commencing from 30 June 2011; Mr. ZHANG
Chun has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director for
a specific term of three years commencing form 10 June 2010, and each
of Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert, Ms. FU Shuangye and Dr. LIN Wen has
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director for a specific
term of three years commencing from 28 June 2012. Such terms are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. HSU You Yuan, Ms. ZHANG Liming, and Mr. ZHANG Chun will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. HSU You
Yuan and Mr. ZHANG Chun, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Ms. ZHANG Liming
will not offer herself for re-election and will resign as an executive Director
with effect from the close of the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Board confirms that Ms. Zhang Liming does not have any disagreements
with the Board and there is nothing to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders in relation to her resignation.
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Training and Professional Development

All Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Directors have been
given relevant guideline materials to ensure that they are apprised of the
latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in
relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and
skills on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.

All Directors had provided a record of training they received during the
year to the Company. According to the training records provided by the
Directors, the trainings attended by them during the reporting period is
summarised as follows:

Trainings on corporate
governance and

Directors regulatory development
Executive Directors
Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman)
Mr. HSU You Yuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZHANG Liming
Mr. TAN Xin

AN NI R N

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai 4

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert

Ms. FU Shuangye

Dr. LIN Wen

Mr. ZHANG Chun
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The role of the Chairman was
performed by Mr. TAN Wenhua. Mr. TAN Wenhua is an executive Director
who is responsible for the management of the Board and he also involves
in the day-to-day management of the Group’s business.

The role of CEO is performed by Mr. HSU You Yuan. The overall
management of the Company was performed by the CEO, executive
Directors and senior management of the Company. The executive
Directors (Mr. HSU You Yuan, Mr. TAN Wenhua, Ms. ZHANG Liming and
Mr. TAN Xin) who have extensive experience in the solar energy industry
and their respective areas of profession, spearhead the Group’s overall
development and business strategies.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution
of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 pursuant to Rules 3.21
to 3.28 and Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee include overseeing the financial reporting processes
and internal control procedures of the Group, reviewing the financial
information of the Group and considering issues relating to the external
auditor. Currently, the Audit Committee consists of four independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (Chairman),
Ms. FU Shuangye, Dr. LIN Wen and Mr. ZHANG Chun.

In 2012, the Audit Committee met 2 times and the attendance of
individual Directors at these meetings is set out below:

Attendance/

Number of

Name of Directors meetings
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (Chairman) 2/2

Ms. FU Shuangye 2/2

Dr. LIN Wen 2/2

Mr. ZHANG Chun 2/2
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s interim financial report
for the six months ended 30 June 2012 and annual consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and has also
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters with
the management. The Audit Committee also monitored the Company’s
progress in implementing the Code as required under the Listing Rule.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to
a resolution of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 pursuant to
Rule 8.25 to 3.27 Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s structure for remuneration of Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration. Currently, the
Remuneration Committee consists of five members; four of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. FU Shuangye
(Chairman), Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert, Dr. LIN Wen and Mr. ZHANG
Chun, and one is an executive Director, namely, Mr. TAN Wenhua.

In 2012, the Remuneration Committee met once and the attendance of
individual Directors at the meeting is set out below:

Attendance/
Number of
Name of Directors meetings
Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. FU Shuangye (Chairman) 1/1
Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 1/1
Dr. LIN Wen 1/1
Mr. ZHANG Chun 1/1
Executive Director
Mr. TAN Wenhua 1/1

The Remuneration Committee has made recommendations to the Board
regarding the remuneration policy of the Company. In addition, it has
also reviewed and approved management’s remuneration proposal
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board,
and ensured that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 pursuant to
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for recruiting Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of formal and transparent
procedures for nomination procedures and process and criteria adopted
by the Nomination Committee to select and recommend candidates
for directorship and senior management. Currently, the Nomination
Committee consists of five members; four of whom are independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Dr. LIN Wen (Chairman), Mr. WONG Wing
Kuen, Albert, Ms. FU Shuangye and Mr. ZHANG Chun, and one is an
executive Director, namely, Mr. HSU You Yuan.

In 2012, the Nomination Committee met once and the attendance of
individual Directors at the meeting is set out below:

Name of Directors Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. LIN Wen (Chairman) 1/1
Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 11
Ms. FU Shuangye 11
Mr. ZHANG Chun 11
Executive Director

Mr. HSU You Yuan 1/1

The Nomination Committee has discussed matters relating to the
appointment of senior management members during the year. The
Nomination Committee also considered and resolved that all the existing
Directors shall be recommended to be retained by the Company.
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Financial Reporting and Internal Control

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Chief Financial Officer and the Finance
Department of the Company, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group. In the preparation
of financial statements, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently used and applied. The Board aims to present a clear and
balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the annual and
interim reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate disclosure and
announcements in a timely manner.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The performance and remuneration of the external auditors of the
Company KPMG, have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. During
the year ended 31 December 2012, the fees paid and payable to KPMG
and other external auditors in respect of audit services amounted to
approximately RMB2,075,000 (2011: RMB1,861,000). In addition,
approximately RMB2,285,000 (2011: RMB767,000) was charged for
other non-audit services.

Internal control

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness. The Company conducted regular review to
monitor the Company’s internal management and operation during the
year. Procedures have been designed to ensure maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, ensure compliance of applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

In order to fulfil their fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and diligence,
the Directors will constantly seek advice and assistance from the
Company'’s internal legal team and if necessary, seek advice from external
legal advisors in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Company also adopted
internal control procedures relating to, among others, signing authority
and procedures since February 2007. The Company has an Audit and
Legal Department consisting 3 members with extensive experience in the
legal field. The main duties of the Audit and Legal department include:

. providing legal advice on major business decisions
. reviewing and drafting legal documents

° handling legal disputes

° advising on legal issues related to daily operations
° conducting internal training for compliance matters
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Financial Reporting and Internal Control (continued)
Directors’ responsibility on the financial statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012, which were prepared
in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company KPMG
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 65 to 66.

Going concern

Other than the events stated in note 1(b) to the Financial Statements on
pages 75 to 78, there are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Investors Relations

The Company places strong emphasis on its communications
with investors, and considers that maintaining on-going and open
communications with investors can promote investors’ understanding of
and confidence in the Company. The Company disclosed all necessary
information to the Shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules and
met with media, securities analysts, fund managers and investors on a
regular basis to respond to their enquiries so as to provide them with a
clearer picture of the Company’s achievements in business management
and other aspects.

The general meeting of the Company is also an effective communication
channel between the Board and Shareholders. The Company will meet
with the Shareholders and respond to their enquiries in the general
meetings. The Chairman attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 28 June 2012.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
(“EGM”)

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2011
Revision) or the articles of association of the Company. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders may send written enquiries, either by post or by facsimile,
together with his/her contact details, such as postal address, email or fax,
addressing to the head office of the Company at the following address or
facsimile number:

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited
Room 1402, Harbour Centre

25 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Attention to: Company Secretary

Fax: 8562 3416 2111

Changes to Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there was no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these
documents are published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

ESNSNEEAERHE

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua (5 3 #£), aged 56, Chairman of the Board. He was one
of the founders of the Jinzhou Plants. He was conferred various honours
including the Model for the Labour of the Building Materials Systems of the
Nation, the medal of “May 1st” Labour of Liaoning Province, the Builders
Merit award of Liaoning Province, the Outstanding Member of the China
Communist Party, the Outstanding Entrepreneur of the Building Materials
Industry of the Nation, the Venture Entrepreneur of the Liaoning Province and
First Prize Entrepreneur of Jinzhou. He is also a guest professor of Liaoning
University of Technology and Vice President of Bohai University. Prior to the
founding of Jinzhou Plants, he was the Chairman of $/M #7234 23R (&
B) AR EE2AF [Jinzhou Xinhua Quartz Glass (Group) Co., Ltd.*) and the
Director of §8 M — T F & (Jinzhou 155 Factory®), a state-owned factory
engaging in quartz crucibles manufacturing. He has been granted a special
subsidy by the State Council in 2004 for his contribution in engineering
technology. He was elected as a delegate of the 11th National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China in 2008. He is the father of Mr.
Tan Xin, the Executive Director of the Company and General Manager of the
Jinzhou Plants. He is also the brother-in-law of Ms. Zhao Xiuzhen who is the
Director of Corporate Management of the Jinzhou Plants.

Mr. HSU You Yuan (#5355 4), aged 58, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He joined the Group on 6 February 2007 and was appointed an
executive Director on the same date. He graduated with a master degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese Culture University in 1980. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. HSU was the Managing Director of Wafer Works
Corp. (“WWX”) from February 1998 to June 2003 and later became the
Vice-Chairman of the board of WWX in June 2003. WWX is a manufacturer
of silicon wafer for the semiconductor industry and is listed on the Gre Tai
Securities Market in Taiwan since May 2002. He was the managing director
of Silicon Technology Investment (Cayman) Corp. and was appointed the
Chief Executive Officer of Solar Technology Investment (Cayman) Corp.,
responsible for overseeing, amongst others, WWX’s investment in the solar
energy industry. In March 2006, he was appointed a director and he was
subsequently appointed as the Chairman of the board of Jinzhou Youhua in
September 2006. Mr. HSU'’s previous work credentials also include acting
as Deputy General Manager of Mosel Vitelic Inc., a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange and as a member of the board of directors and
Executive Vice-President of Mosel Vitelic (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of
Mosel Vitelic Inc. Mr. HSU had also made contributions to non-commercial
sectors in the past. He served as a researcher, a deputy director, and the
director of Business Department of the Executive Yuan Development Fund of
Taiwan (Note: Executive Yuan Development Fund is now known as National
Development Fund, Executive Yuan). He was also a lecturer of Statistics and
Managerial Mathematics for the Business Administration department at the
Chinese Culture University.

* English translation of Chinese official name is for identification purpose only
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. ZHANG Liming (55 Z8HH), aged 55, the Director of Administration (1 TE4&
&5 of the Jinzhou Plants. She joined the Original Group (i.e. the Group prior
to the acquisition of Solar Technology Investment (Cayman) Corp. and its
subsidiaries on 1 April 2003) responsible for overseeing, amongst others, the
administration of the Original Group. She is also the chairman of the labour
union of the Jinzhou Plants. She graduated from the Faculty of Economic
Management of the Party School of the CPC Central Committee in 1996.
Prior to joining the Group, she was appointed as the head of the supply
division of 514 BLIH ISR (Jinzhou Quartz Glass Instrument Factory®),
the director of management of %R /B &8 H I ELEER S TR A
(Jinzhou Crystalline Material Co., Ltd.*) during 1993 to 1994 and the general
manager of $8/NEERKSETE R B AR Jinzhou Huaming Crystal Art &
Craft Co., Limited*) during 1994 to 2003.

Mr. TAN Xin (722%), aged 29, is the General Manager of the Jinzhou Plants.
He joined the Group in July 2005. He holds a bachelor’s degree of Marketing
from the Macau University of Science and Technology, and a master’s
degree of Business Administration from University of East Anglia, the U.K.
Mr. Tan is also a Standing Committee member of the Liaoning Province
Youth Federation (BREZEAFFHAE@FHEE M E), Vice President of
the Liaoning Province Young Entrepreneurs Association (#ZEE 5HFMERK
e RI®E) and Member of the 12th Jonghou Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (88 T7 28+ = BB R ZE
8). Mr. Tan was awarded Year 2011 Meritorious Entrepreneur (201145 &
EN 1B EZ) by Jinzhou Municipal Government. Before taking the role of the
General Manager of Jinzhou Plants, Mr. Tan also worked in other subsidiaries
within the Group and accumulated plenty of experiences from his prior
positions. He is the son of Mr. TAN Wenhua who is an executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company.

Non-executive Director

Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai (££38), aged 62, a non-executive Director. He was
appointed a non-executive Director in July 2007. He graduated from the
Chung Yuen University with a bachelor degree in Chemical Engineering and
master degree in Chemistry from the University of California, San Jose in
1973 and 1978, respectively. He is the Chairman and General Manager of
WWX and the President of Helitek Company Ltd., a subsidiary of WWX.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENSREBEASHRE

Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (E:k#£), aged 61, was appointed an
Independent non-executive Director on 12 January 2008. Mr. Wong
is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries,
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, Chartered Institute for Securities
and Investments, Chartered Management Institute, UK, Association of
International Accountants, Society of Registered Financial Planners, Hong
Kong, The Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Ireland, UK, as well
as a member of Hong Kong Securities Institute, The Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators, Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants and
an associate member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers in Scotland,
UK. Mr. WONG had also been a director and Chief Executive Officer of
Minghua Group International Holdings Limited, a listed public company
in the United States, until 30th September 2004. According to the filings
made available to public through the EDGAR database in U.S., for the
quarterly period ended 30 September 2005, Minghua Group International
Holdings Limited was “a small business issuer” and “a development stage
company”. Mr. WONG has been the Managing Director of KND Corporate
Advisory Service Limited, a private professional consulting firm in Hong
Kong, an independent non-executive director of APAC Resources
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, since July 2004 and an independent non-executive director
of Rare Earths Global Limited, a company listed on the London Stock
Exchange — AIM Market, since March 2012.

Ms. FU Shuangye (F7& %), aged 44, was appointed an independent
non-executive Director on 12 January 2008. Ms. FU graduated from
Wuhan University with a bachelor degree in English Literature in 1990 and
obtained her further legal studies certificate in the Law School of China
Politics and Law University in 1997. She was qualified as a PRC lawyer in
1998. She was a partner of Zhong Lun W&D Law Firm in Beijing. Ms. FU
is now the Managing Partner of Zhong Hao Attorneys-at-Law. She is also
a member of the Foreign Direct Investment Expertise Committee of the
Beijing Judiciary Bureau.
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Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Dr. LIN Wen (#£X), aged 73, an independent non-executive Director,
joined the Group on 12 January 2008. Dr. LIN received his Ph.D. degrees
in Materials Science & Engineering. He joined AT&T Bell Laboratories
(subsequently, Lucent Bell Labs/Agere) and engaged in the research and
development of silicon semiconductor materials in 1975. Dr. LIN is the
author of over 60 papers and book chapters published by internationally
recognised science magazines, including Czochralski process of silicon
crystals and the application and manufacturing of silicon crystals in
semiconductors. Czochralski process is the key process employed by the
Group in the manufacturing of monocrystalline silicon ingots. He owns
several patents. Dr. LIN was a recipient of the 1983 Bell Laboratories
Distinguished Technical Staff Award. Since 1999, Dr. LIN has been a
member of the Starting Materials Team of ITRS (International Technology
Roadmap of Semiconductor). Dr. LIN is a member of Phi Tau Phi Honor
Societies and was served as its Chairman. Dr. LIN is a life member of
the Chinese Institute of Engineers-USA, and he served as its president
in 1987 and National Council Chairman in 1995. In addition, Dr. LIN
also served as Chairman of METS (Modern Engineering and Technology
Seminars), as well as Chairman of Sino-American Technology and
Engineering Conference.

Mr. ZHANG Chun (3R#5), aged 80, an independent non-executive
Director, joined the Group on 12 January 2008. Mr. ZHANG graduated
from Tianjin University in 1955 and conducted research on semiconductor
silicon material in 3t REEEBHI 4T (Beijing Non-Ferrous Metal
Research Institution®) in the same year. During 1965 to 1979, he was
involved in the establishment of the semi-conductor materials factory
in Emei and the monocrystalline silicon factory in Luoyang and their
production and technological management. During 1979 to 1998, he
was the supervisor of a semi-conductor material research unit of Beijing
NonFerrous Metal Research Institution, the supervisor of the BIZ 3
wea iRl TI2R 9SO (State Semi-conductor Material Engineering
Research Centre*) and he also acted as the general manager of & &3
PR AR AT (Jinxin Semi-conductor Material Company Limited®).
The (a) project on 3 to 4 inches monocrystalline silicon for the use in
integrated circuit and (b) the research project on the manufacture of
125mm monocrystalline silicon wafer for the use in 2 to 3um integrated
circuit organized and led by Mr. ZHANG received RIE Rl £ — 548
(the Science and Technology Progress First Prize*) by the China National
Non-Ferrous Metals Industry Corp. Mr. ZHANG was granted a special
subsidy of government from the State Council since 1992, was awarded
the title of Supreme Model for the Labour of the Non-ferrous Metals
Industry of the Nation in 1993 and was awarded as a 2% TE#&
(National Pioneer*) by the State Council in 1995.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENSREBEASHRE

Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

The Directors’ interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) are set out in the section headed “Interest and
Short Positions of the Directors and the Chief Executives of the Company
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations” in this annual report. Each Director has been
appointed for a term of three years. The Directors’ emoluments, the basis
of determining the same (including any bonus payments, whether fixed or
discretionary in nature, irrespective of whether the Director has or does
not have a service contract) and the Directors’ fees are set out in note 11
to the Financial Statements and the section headed and “Report of the
Directors — Emolument Policy” of this annual report. Save as disclosed
above, each Director confirmed that there are no other matters that need
to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company and
there is no other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Senior Management

Ms. CHEUNG Lai Lai (3R R8), aged 41, was appointed as the Company
Secretary in August 2012. She holds a bachelor’s degree of Arts (Hons)
in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong, and she is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a certified tax adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Ms. Cheung is currently the Managing Principal of MCL & Co. CPA
(Practising). She has over 20 years of experience in auditing, finance,
accounting and company secretarial services.

Ms. ZHAO Xiuzhen (#5%¥), aged 57, the Director of Corporate
Management ({8 48 5) of the Jinzhou Plants. She joined the Group on
31 January 2005. She graduated from %N E X E 51T EIE & (Jinzhou
Communist Party School in Administration and Management for Party
Affairs*). Prior to joining the Group, she was the deputy general manager
of Jinzhou Hualian Shopping Centre. She is the sister-in-law of Mr. TAN
Wenhua who is an executive director and the Chairman of the Company.

34 Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited 8 ¢ 85 /RIZIR AR A 7

BEE )

BN IEHTES (@)
ESRAQTARGREERA P EEREE SRS G
B[ 3% R SRS |) EXVERFFRE 2 AR - 8
RAEHEERADTRBTHASRAL TR EATH
SEENRG - AERORESNERRAR |—F - 5%
EYEHAH=F - BEHH - MEFM 2 HE (LER
REEERBELTHESEERBA N EMEAR
H) U REEHE BN EERUBREME N REER
[EEEREE FHRE |~ BLEXRBEEN &
EEED HEEMSEARSAATRIIE  FE
HirEHARE L HRAE13.51QHTUEE -

SREEAR

REEZL 45 REE-—F/\BEZERIAM
L RIEAEEBETAZET (RBI)NBLEN AR
REBFLARESHAMHASERSE  BESTLEY
EEEUREBHBESTMURBM - RELTRERE
HETMBBIZBTER - WAET - B% - 5K
NEAMERBEEBB - +FER -

WERLZL 575 BNBEERE - BN -ZZRF
—B=1T—BMBEREH - FEERBMNERELTH
EEA o NBAKEA - KRB ERMEBBYTOER
KIE - WAARDYTESREFEEELENGREA -



Senior Management (continued)

Mr. WANG Chun Wei (EZ&1&), aged 41, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group and was the Company’s deputy general manager of China region,
in charge of accounting and finance. He joined the Group on 1 January
2007. He obtained a Master of Business Administration from the State
University of New Jersey (Rutgers). He is a certified public accountant in
Maryland, the United States. Prior to joining the Group, he was a Special
Assistant to President & Deputy Spokesman of The Office of General
Manager of WWX, the Spokesman and Chief Financial Officer of Panram
International Corp., a company listed on the Gre Tai Securities Market in
Taiwan.

Mr. Joe CHOU (X)), aged 53, is the Director of Quality Assurance
Department of Jinzhou Plants. He joined the Group on 3 February
2009. He holds a bachelor’s degree of Chemical Engineering from the
Chung Yuen Christian University, Taiwan, a master’s degree of Business
Administration from City University of Seattle, and an Executive Masters
of Business Administration degree from National Taiwan University. Prior
1o joining the Group, he was appointed as Director of Quality Assurance
Department of WWX. He has over 24 year of experience in semiconductor
industry and has over 21 year of experience in quality assurance.

Ms. GUO Hongyan (B4 %), aged 43, is the Director of Marketing.
She joined the Group on 4 July 2002. She graduated from Dalian
University of Foreign Languages, majoring in business English. Prior
to joining the Group, she worked for $MNEEEZEAFR A7) (Jinzhou
Qiao Pai Enterprise Limited®) as Assistant to General Manager. She was
Purchasing Manager for overseas market of $#18/38E % %2 ZXGRMND AR
7~ a] (Jinheng Automotive Safety System Co. Ltd.*), and the Department
Head, Assistant Manager and Manager of marketing department of
Jinzhou Energy Co., Ltd.

Mr. CHEN Limin (BR3ZR), aged 43, the Technical Director of Jinzhou
Plants. He joined the Group on 30 December 2000. He graduated
from the Ore Mining Faculty of the PO)I|7E# £f% (Sichuan College of
Construction Materials*). Prior to joining the Group, he worked for ¥ A
EIE (= E) AR AT (Xinhua Shixi Glass (Group) Co., Ltd.*).

SREEAS @)

IZREE  MB AEBERUEERALATATEE
RlKE . BESHRVE c BER-_ZST+tF—HA—H
TIEEAREE o HEFER M (Rutgers) Mz KEFRTE
BEELEN RAEREEFMAESIEN - MMBR
EEHF  REFESNBRASER QAR SRIBER
BB ALURAEBESEETS LHATRIRERD
BRARBREAREREVHEE o

AR EE 585 BMNERRAE  BR-ZTH
FoA=AMBAREE - FEAEMLIRRASEET
REL  ZEARENTALINEEEIREYAYE
RETHAEIHEREL - MBAEEA - HEES
BRERREERRY -REXEEERTEAERD
SHMELR  TERRIAABE= T —FER -

Azt 435 EHRE - TR-ZZ-F LA
EMEBEAEE - WEERKNEIFEER - HNERFEZR
¥ o MBAREEA - KEBEHRMNEREEXBRLFTR
KIEBE - MIERERZERGROBRQETBIMRBE
2 RIBNGAEFERATEHETE  BIMRRIE -

BRIEZRELE - 435 @ MMBRMBE - FR-ZFTF
TZAZTHMBAEE - KREENT)IEN B ERTE
o MBEARKEA - WAEBRHELZNE (KE)BR

AT

Annual Report 2012 3k 35



Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENSREBEASHRE

Senior Management (continued)

Dr. CHEN Wei (FRE¥), aged 41, Special Assistant to the Chairman and
Overseas Sales Representative. She joined the Group in July 2006. She
obtained her Doctor of Philosophy in Management at Wuhan University
of Technology (E £ T A£2) in 2005. Prior to joining the Group, she
was appointed Vice-President of Xi’an International Trade Promotion Co.
Ltd. (FAZL mAMEE ISR E A 7)) and the Vice-President of International
Transport Division of Shaanxi Machinery & Equipment Import & Export
Corp. BRAMMR AL A ARBREES Q7).

Mr. DU Fusheng (ft4&4), aged 68, is a full-time technical consultant
on quality assurance. He joined the Group on 6 August 2008. He
graduated from Tsinghua University majoring in semiconductor materials.
He is a senior engineer of research level. Prior to joining the Group,
he was a researcher and professor ofdf HE FRI £ E 1 )\ 5
BT (Eighteen Institute of China Electronic Technology Group*), and a
technical consultant in T & X2 K58 RHE AR A7 (Jiangsu Aide Solar
Energy Technology Co., Ltd.*). He has been engaged in research and
development of solar cells for use of semiconductor for nearly 40 years.
He has his own unique theories and empirical analysis in solar cells and
loss from encapsulation of modules, which significantly contributed to
improvement in cell conversion rate and capacity testing technology.
He successfully applied the solar cells into several satellites launched by
China, and made major contribution to the development of solar cells for
use of semiconductor and the science of aerospace in China.

Mr. CHEN Wenjie (FRXX7R), aged 62, is a full-time technical consultant.
He joined the Group on 18 December 2012. He graduated from Beijing
University of Technology majoring in semiconductor devices. Prior to
joining the Group, he worked in Beijing 605 Plant and No. 401 Division
of Beijing Non-Ferrous Research Institute. He was General Manager of
ST ERIE AR A R (Jiangyin Hairun Technology Co. Ltd.*), Deputy
Director-General in charge and Chief Engineer of GCL Silicon Material. He
was Vice President of B2 aL/BEIH AR A7 (Han Hua New Energy
Technology Company Limited*) and General Manager of 38 27 M i
(Lianyun Port Materials Plant*). He has profound knowledge in technology
of semiconductor silicon materials.
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Report of the Directors
EEgHREE

The Directors present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company of the Group.
The principal activities of the Group are the trading of, manufacturing of
and provision of processing services for polysilicon and monocrystalline
and multicrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers, and the producing of
and trading of photovoltaic cells and modules as well as the installation
of photovoltaic systems. The analysis of the principal activities and
geographical locations of the operations of the subsidiaries during the
financial year are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s top five customers are mainly silicon solar wafer, cell or
modules manufacturers or traders. In aggregate, the largest and five
largest customers did not exceed 13% (2011: 12%) and 57% (2011:
46%) of the Group’s total sales in 2012 respectively. The Group currently
procures raw materials from about 69 suppliers (2011: 51). In aggregate,
purchases from its largest and five largest suppliers did not exceed
16% (2011: 9%) and 46% (2011: 30%) of the Group’s total purchases
in 2012 respectively. Save for WWX, at no time during the year have the
Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in these major suppliers and/or customers.

Financial Statements and Dividends

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 67 to 168. The Directors do
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011.

Transfer to Reserves

Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2012 was RMB1,276,554,000 (2011: profit of
RMB54,291,000) had been transferred to reserves. Other movements in
reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 72.

As at 31 December 2012, distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB951,342,000 (2011:
RMB1,336,804,000).
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Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
RMBG674,000 (2011: RMB683,000).

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2012 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and
equipment are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Five-year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of the annual report.

Directors
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report
were.

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua, Chairman

Mr. HSU You Yuan, Chief Executive Officer
Ms. ZHANG Liming

Mr. TAN Xin

Non-executive Director
Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert

Ms. FU Shuangye

Dr. LIN Wen

Mr. ZHANG Chun

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. HSU You Yuan, Ms. ZHANG Liming, and Mr. ZHANG Chun will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. HSU You Yuan
and Mr. ZHANG Chun, being eligible, have agreed to offer themselves
for re-election. Ms. ZHANG Liming has agreed not to offer herself for re-
election and will resign as an executive Director with effect from the close
of the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Board confirms that Ms.
Zhang Liming does not have any disagreements with the Board and there
is nothing to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders in relation to
her resignation.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service agreement with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group has entered into a number of agreements with parties which
are regarded as a connected person for the Company under the Listing
Rules. The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the Company’s continuing connected transactions, details of
which are set out below.

A. Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
The following transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules
and would be exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement but are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules:

Provision of water and heat services by FEMZE L2 EIEH R
23 7] (Jinzhou Huarong Property Management Company Limited”)
(“Jinzhou Huarong”)

On 2 December 2009, Jinzhou Huarong entered into a framework
service agreement with the Company pursuant to which Jinzhou
Huarong agreed to provide water and heat (the “Services”) to the
Company and its subsidiaries designated by it from time to time.
The agreement commenced on 1 January 2010 and expired on 31
December 2012.

On 19 October 2012, the Company has entered into a new service
agreement (the “New Service Agreement”) with Jinzhou Huarong to
renew the pre-existing agreement as well as to determine the annual
cap for the transactions for the years ending 31 December 2015.
The term of the New Service Agreement commenced on 1 January
2018 and will expire on 31 December 2015.

The New Service Agreement was entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business and on normal commercial terms. The
fees to be charged by Jinzhou Huarong in relation to the Services
were determined comparable to the prevailing market prices in local
markets in the PRC based on the actual consumption of the water
and heat supplied to the Group.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

40 Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited 5

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Provision of water and heat services by #EMZE4 Y% E1EE R
72y 7] (Jinzhou Huarong Property Management Company Limited”)
(“Jinzhou Huarong”) (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate fees paid by
the Group to Jinzhou Huarong in relation to the Services amounted
to approximately RMB1,741,000 (2011: RMB2,031,000).

Based on an estimate of the Group’s expected consumption of
water and heat for the three years ending 31 December 2015, it
is expected that the following annual cap amounts payable by the
Group under the renewed Service Agreement will not exceed:

(@ RMB2,361,000 for the year ending 31 December 2013;

(b) RMB2,479,000 for the year ending 31 December 2014; and

(c) RMB2,603,000 for the year ending 31 December 2015.

The above annual cap amounts are determined with reference to
(i) the expected increase in the Group’s production capacity for
the three years ending 31 December 2015; (i) the increase in the
expected consumption of water and heat in the production process
resulting therefrom; (i) the expected utilisation rate of the Group’s
production capacity for the three years ending 31 December 2015;
and (iv) the expected inflation rate in the PRC for 2013.

To the best of the Director’s knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiry, as at the date of this report,
Jinzhou Huarong is owned as to 90% by /M 27 5L ) 48 & &R
(Jinzhou Huaxin Silicon Material Trading Department) (“Huaxin
Silicon”), a sole proprietorship established in the PRC and wholly-
owned by Mr. TAN Wenhua, an executive Director and the Chairman
of the Company and as to 10% by an independent third party.
Jinzhou Huarong is an associate of Mr. TAN Wenhua and hence a
connected person of the Company. Consequently, the transactions
under the New Service Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing
Rules and are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement but are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Sale of wire slurry to Jinzhou Jixing New Materials Co., (“Jinzhou
Jixing”) and purchase of recycled abrasives and mineral oil from
Jinzhou Jixing

On 17 April 2009, the Company entered into a framework
agreement with Jinzhou Jixing (formerly known as Jinzhou Aoke
New Materials Co., Ltd.) (the “Jinzhou Jixing Agreement”) pursuant
to which (a) the Company agreed to sell, or procure its subsidiaries
to sell and Jinzhou Jixing agreed to purchase, or procure its
subsidiaries to purchase, wire slurry (the “Sale Transactions”); and
(b) Jinzhou Jixing agreed to sell, or procure its subsidiaries to sell,
and the Company agreed to purchase, or procure its subsidiaries
to purchase, recycled abrasives and mineral oil which serve as the
Group’s materials for the slicing of silicon solar ingots into silicon
solar wafers (the “Purchase Transactions”).

The Company has obtained the approval from its independent
shareholders on 12 June 2009. Upon approval, the Jinzhou Jixing
Agreement commenced on 17 April 2009 and has expired on 31
December 2011.

On 19 December 2011, the Company has entered into a new
framework agreement (the “New Jinzhou Jixing Agreement”) with
Jinzhou Jixing to renew the pre-existing agreement as well as to
determine the annual cap amounts for the transactions for the three
years ending 31 December 2014. The term of the New Jinzhou
Jixing Agreement has taken effect on 1 January 2012 and will expire
on 31 December 2014.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Sale of wire slurry to Jinzhou Jixing New Materials Co., (“Jinzhou
Jixing”) and purchase of recycled abrasives and mineral oil from
Jinzhou Jixing (continued)

The New Jinzhou Jixing Agreement was entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business and on normal commercial terms.
The basis of determining the prices for the Sale Transactions or
the Purchase Transactions (as the case may be) is determined
with reference to the prevailing market price of wire slurry or the
Processed Materials (as the case may be). Other business terms
of the Sale Transactions or the Purchase Transactions (as the
case may be) will be determined on an individual order basis and
the terms of which are on normal commercial terms and no less
favourable to the Company than the terms available to or from
independent third parties (as the case may be). Payments for the
Sale Transactions or the Purchase Transactions (as the case may
be) will be determined based on normal commercial terms to be
agreed after arm’s length negotiation between the Group and
Jinzhou Jixing Group from time to time, including without limitation,
payment by cash on delivery, payment with a credit term ranging
from 30 to 90 days.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of
the sale price paid by Jinzhou Jixing to the Group in relation to the
sale of wire slurry amounted to approximately RMB7,906,000 (2011:
RMB22,725,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of
the purchase price paid by the Group to Jinzhou Jixing in relation
to the purchase of recycled abrasives and mineral oil amounted to
approximately RMB17,130,000 (2011: RMB11,889,000).

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the Sales Transaction for
the two years ending 31 December 2014, it is expected that the
following annual cap amounts receivable by the Group under the

Sales Transactions will not exceed:

(@ RMB42,500,000 for the year ending 31 December 2013; and

(b) RMB42,500,000 for the year ending 31 December 2014.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Sale of wire slurry to Jinzhou Jixing New Materials Co., (“Jinzhou
Jixing”) and purchase of recycled abrasives and mineral oil from
Jinzhou Jixing (continued)

The proposed annual caps under the Sale Transactions are
determined with reference to, among other things, (i) the Group’s
silicon solar wafer production capacity as at 19 December 2011;
(i) the anticipated increase in Jinzhou Jixing’s demand for wire
slurry; and (iii) the average market price of wire slurry sold to an
independent third party and Jinzhou Jixing in 2011.

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the Purchase Transaction for
the two years ending 31 December 2014, it is expected that the
following annual cap amounts payable by the Group under the
Purchase Transactions will not exceed:

(@ RMB22,000,000 for the year ending 31 December 2013; and

(b) RMB22,000,000 for the year ending 31 December 2014.

The proposed annual caps under the Purchase Transactions are
determined with reference to, among other things, (i) the actual
quantity of abrasives and mineral oil used by the Group in 2010;
(ii) the Group’s silicon solar wafer production capacity as at 19
December 2011;
mineral oil, respectively, and hence the estimated quantity of
recycled abrasives and mineral oil to be produced by Jinzhou Jixing
from the processing of wire slurry to be supplied by the Group; and
(iv) the estimated price of recycled abrasives and mineral oil to be
purchased from Jinzhou Jixing which are determined by reference to
the market price of brand new abrasives and mineral oil purchased
from Independent Third Parties and the processing fee of wire slurry
charged by independent third parties.

(iii) the average recycled rate of abrasives and
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Sale of wire slurry to Jinzhou Jixing New Materials Co., (“Jinzhou
Jixing”) and purchase of recycled abrasives and mineral oil from
Jinzhou Jixing (continued)

To the best of the Director’s knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiry, as at the date of this report,
Jinzhou Jixing is owned as to 35% by Jinzhou Yuexin (a PRC
company wholly owned by Mr. Tan Xin, a Director of the Company
and the son of Mr. Tan Wenhua) and as to 65% by Independent
Third Parties. For the purpose of the Sale Transactions and the
Purchase Transactions, the Directors considered that Jinzhou
Jixing should be treated as an associate of Mr. Tan Wenhua and
hence a connected person of the Company. Hence, the Directors
consider that the Sale Transactions and the Purchase Transactions
under the New Jinzhou Jixing Framework Agreement should
continue to be subject to the continuing connected transactions
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in order to
provide the Shareholders and potential investors with information
relating to the transactions contemplated under the New Jinzhou
Jixing Framework Agreement on a voluntary basis. Consequently,
the Sales Transactions and Purchase Transactions under the
New Jinzhou Jixing Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing
Rules and are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement but are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules.

Provision of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers
by ERINRZEF BRI FIERL F Jinzhou Jingxin Semi-conductor
Material Company Limited* (“Jinzhou Jingxin”)

On 2 November 2009, the Company entered into a framework
agreement with Jinzhou Jingxin (the “Jingxin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company has agreed to
engage or procure its subsidiaries to engage Jinzhou Jingxin for
the provision of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers
which is necessary for slicing of silicon solar ingots into silicon solar
wafers.

The Company has obtained the approval from its independent
shareholders in respect of the Jingxin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement on 31 December 2009. Upon approval, the Jingxin
Guide Rollers Service Agreement commenced on 2 November 2009
and has expired on 31 December 2011.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Provision of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers
by #EM R EFEEERRIER A F Jinzhou Jingxin Semi-conductor
Material Company Limited* (“Jinzhou Jingxin”) (continued)

On 19 December 2011, the Company has entered into a new
framework agreement (the “New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement”) with Jinzhou Jingxing to renew the pre-existing
agreement as well as to determine the annual cap amounts for the
transactions for the years ending 31 December 2014. The term of
the New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service Agreement has taken effect
on 1 January 2012 and will expire on 31 December 2014.

The New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service Agreement was entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business and on normal
commercial terms. The basis of determining the prices for
the transactions under the New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement are determined with reference to the prevailing market
price for the provision of service for re-coating and re-grooving
guide rollers. The terms of the New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder will be
determined on an individual order basis and the terms of which are
on normal commercial terms and no less favourable to the Company
than the terms available from independent third parties. Payments
for the transactions under the New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement will either be cash on delivery or on such credit terms as
may be agreed between the parties on normal commercial terms
and no less favourable to the Company than terms available from
independent third parties. It is agreed that Jinzhou Jingxin will grant
to the Group a credit period of 30 to 90 days.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount
of the service fee paid by the Group to Jinzhou Jingxin under the
Jingxin Guide Rollers Service Agreement amounted to approximately
RMB884,000 (2011: RMB2,545,000).

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the transaction under the New
Jingxin Guide Rollers Service Agreement for the two years ending
31 December 2014, it is expected that the following annual cap

amounts payable by the Group will not exceed:

(@ RMB3,000,000 for the year ending 31 December 2013; and

(b) RMB3,000,000 for the year ending 31 December 2014.
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Report of the Directors
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Provision of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers by
Jinzhou Jingxin (continued)

The proposed annual caps under the New Jingxin Guide Rollers
Agreement are determined with reference to, among other things,
(i) the Group’s silicon solar wafer production capacity as at 19
December 2011; and (i) the projected service fee for re-coating and
re-grooving guide rollers in the next three financial years.

To the best of the Director’s knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiry, as at the date of this report,
Jinzhou Jingxin is owned as to 40% by Ms. Chen Man, the
daughter-in-law of Mr. Tan Wenhua, an executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company, as to 10% by Ms. Chen Man’s
aunt and as to 50% by independent third parties. For the purpose
of the transactions under the New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement, the Directors consider that Jinzhou Jingxin should
be treated as an associate of Mr. Tan Wenhua and hence a
connected person of the Company. Hence, the Directors consider
that the transactions under the New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement should be subject to the continuing connected
transaction requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
in order to provide the Shareholders and potential investors with
information relating to the transactions contemplated under the
New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service Agreement on a voluntary basis.
Consequently, the transactions under the New Jingxin Guide Rollers
Service Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules and are
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement
but are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Provision of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers by
Jinzhou Youlin Semi-Conductor Material Co., Ltd. (“Jinzhou Youlin”)
On 19 December 2011, the Company entered into a framework
agreement with Jinzhou Youlin (the “Youlin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company has agreed to engage
or procure its subsidiaries to engage Jinzhou Youlin for the provision
of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers which is
necessary for slicing of silicon solar ingots into silicon solar wafers.
The term of the Youlin Guide Rollers Service Agreement has taken
effect on 1 January 2012 and will expire on 31 December 2014.

The Youlin Guide Rollers Service Agreement was entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business and on normal commercial
terms. The basis of determining the prices for the transactions
under the Youlin Guide Rollers Service Agreement are determined
with reference to the prevailing market price for the provision of
service for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers. The terms of
the Youlin Guide Rollers Service Agreement and the transaction
contemplated thereunder will be determined on an individual order
basis and the terms of which are on normal commercial terms and
no less favourable to the Company than the terms available from
independent third parties. Payments for the transactions under
the Youlin Guide Rollers Service Agreement will either be cash on
delivery or on such credit terms as may be agreed between the
parties on normal commercial terms and no less favourable to the
Company than terms available from independent third parties. It is
agreed that Jinzhou Youlin will grant to the Group a credit period of
30 to 90 days.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount
of the service fee paid by the Group to Jinzhou Youlin under the
Youlin Guide Rollers Service Agreement amounted to approximately
RMB2,699,000.

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the transaction under the
Youlin Guide Rollers Service Agreement for the two years ending
31 December 2014, it is expected that the following annual cap

amounts payable by the Group will not exceed:

(@ RMBS3,500,000 for the year ending 31 December 2013; and

(b) RMB3,500,000 for the year ending 31 December 2014.
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Provision of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers
by Jinzhou Youlin Semi-Conductor Material Co., (“Jinzhou Youlin”)
(continued)

The proposed annual caps under the Youlin Guide Rollers
Agreement are determined with reference to, among other things,
(i) the Group’s silicon solar wafer production capacity as at 19
December 2011; and (i) the projected service fee for re-coating and
re-grooving guide rollers in the next three financial years.

To the best of the Director’s knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiry, as at the date of this report,
Youlin Semi-conductor is owned as to 87% by Ms. Chen Man, the
daughter-in-law of Mr. Tan Wenhua, and as to 13% by independent
third parties. Jinzhou Youlin is therefore an associate of Mr.
Tan Wenhua and hence a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the transactions under the Youlin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Consequently,
the transactions under the Youlin Guide Rollers Service Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules and are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement but are subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements set out in Rules
14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions for the Company and are thus subject to
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rules 14A.45 to 14A.48 of the Listing Rules:

Supply of graphite materials by $#MNEFEmMEFIRER 2 E
(Jinzhou Changhua Carbon Products Company Limited®) (“Jinzhou
Changhua”) and supply of quartz crucibles by $8MEEE F AR
ABPFRAF (Jinzhou Youxin Electronic Materials Co., Ltd.*) (“Jinzhou
Youxin”)
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

B.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

On 2 December 2009, the Company entered into a framework
supply agreement with Jinzhou Changhua and Jinzhou Youxin
pursuant to which Jinzhou Changhua and Jinzhou Youxin agreed
to supply graphite materials and quartz crucibles respectively to
the Company or its subsidiaries as requested by them from time
to time. Such graphite materials and quartz crucibles serve as the
essential materials for the Group’s production of silicon ingots. The
supply agreement commenced on 1 January 2010 and expired
on 31 December 2012. Formal purchase agreements (by way of
purchase orders and confirmations) were entered into between the
Group, Jinzhou Changhua and Jinzhou Youxin (as the case may be)
with the detailed terms and conditions as specified in the relevant
purchase orders. The purchase arrangement under the supply
agreement has been conducted on normal commercial terms and
on terms no less favourable than those available from independent
third parties.

On 19 October 2012, the Company has entered into a new
supply agreement (the “New Materials Supply Agreement”) with
Jinzhou Changhua to renew the pre-existing agreement as well
as to determine the annual cap for the transactions for the three
years ending 31 December 2015. The Company has obtained the
approval from its independent shareholders in respect of the New
Materials Supply Agreement on 27 December 2012. Upon approval,
the term of the New Materials Supply Agreement commenced on 1
January 2013 and will expire on 31 December 2015.

The New Materials Supply Agreement was entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group and on normal
commercial terms. The purchase price payable by the Group to
Jinzhou Changhua under the New Materials Supply Agreement is
estimated based on the expected purchase amount of the graphite
materials and is comparable to the prevailing market prices.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount
of the purchase price paid by the Group to Jinzhou Changhua in
relation to the sale and purchase of graphite materials amounted to
approximately RMB34,213,000 (2011: RMB55,133,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount
of the purchase price paid by the Group to Jinzhou Youxin for
the purchase of quartz crucibles amounted to approximately
RMB27,578,000 (2011: RMB110,886,000).
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

B.
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Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the purchase of graphite
materials for the three years ending 31 December 2015, it is
expected that the following annual cap amounts payable by the
Group for transactions under the New Materials Supply Agreement
will not exceed:

(@) RMB103,784,000 for the year ending 31 December 2013;

(b) RMB108,973,000 for the year ending 31 December 2014; and

(c) RMB114,421,000 for the year ending 31 December 2015;

The above annual cap amounts are determined with reference to (i)
the costs incurred by the Group for the purchase of the Materials
for the nine months ended 30 September 2012; (ii) the expected
increase in the Group’s production capacity for the three years
ending 31 December 2015; (iii) the expected increase in demand
for the Materials for the production requirements of the Group in
anticipation of the expected increase in demand for the Group’s
products; and (iv) the expected utilisation rate of the Group’s
production capacity for the three years ending 31 December 2015.

To the best of the Director’s knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiry, as at the date of this report,
Jinzhou Changhua is owned as to 40% by Huaxin Silicon, which is
wholly owned by Mr. TAN Wenhua, and as to 60% by Prosperity
Lamps & Components Limited (“PLC”). PLC is owned as to 65%
by Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai’s wholly-owned companies and as to
35% by Independent Third Parties. Jinzhou Changhua is therefore
an associate of each of Mr. TAN Wenhua (an executive Director)
and Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai (a former non-executive Director who
resigned on 1 December 2011) and hence a connected person
of the Company. Furthermore, Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai would have
resigned as a non-executive Director for more than 12 months
after 1 December 2012 and would cease to be a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(2) of the Listing Rules.
Nevertheless, Jinzhou Changhua will remain an associate of
Mr. TAN Wenhua by reason of his 40% shareholding in Jinzhou
Changhua. Consequently, the transactions under the New Materials
Supply Agreement constitute non-exempt continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.35 of the Listing
Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

B.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

To the best of the Director’s knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiry, as at the date of this report,
Jinzhou Youxin, which is a party to the Existing Materials Supply
Agreement as a supplier of quartz crucibles to the Group, is owned
as to 25% by PLC and 75% by Independent Third Parties. Jinzhou
Youxin is therefore no longer an associate of Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai
by virtue of Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules. In addition, as mentioned
above, Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai would cease to be a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(2) of the Listing Rules
after 1 December 2012. Any transactions between the Group and
Jinzhou Youxin (if any) after expiry of the Existing Materials Supply
Agreement will no longer be subject to the continuing connected
transactions requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Supply of scrap polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers by Wafer
Works Corp. (“WWX”)

On 12 January 2008, the Company entered into a framework
supply agreement with WWX pursuant to which WWX agreed to
supply, and/or procure its subsidiaries (“WWX Group”) to supply
scrap polysilicon raw material, scrap ingots and scrap wafers to
the Company or its subsidiaries as requested by them from time to
time. Such scrap polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers serve
as the Group’s materials for its production of wafers. The supply
agreement had a term commencing on 31 March 2008 and expired
on 31 December 2009. Formal purchase agreements (by way of
purchase orders and confirmations) were entered into between the
Company (and/or its subsidiaries) and WWX (and/or its subsidiaries)
with the detailed terms and conditions as specified in the relevant
purchase orders. The purchase arrangements under the supply
agreement were conducted on normal commercial terms and on
terms no less favourable than those available from independent third
parties.

The WWX Supply Agreement was entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business and on normal commercial terms. The
purchase price payable by the Group to WWX under the WWX
Supply Agreement is estimated based on the expected purchase
amount of the scrap polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers and is
comparable to the prevailing market prices in the scrap polysilicon,
scrap ingots and scrap wafers market in the PRC.

On 4 June 2008, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement (the “WWX Supplemental Supply Agreement”) with
WWX to revise the caps for the transactions under the WWX
Supply Agreement as well as to determine the annual cap for the
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2010. The Company
had obtained the approval from its independent shareholders in
respect of the WWX Supplemental Supply Agreement on 27 June
2008. Upon approval, the term of the WWX Supplemental Supply
Agreement commenced on 27 June 2008 and has expired on 31
December 2010.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

B.
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Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Supply of scrap polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers by Wafer
Works Corp. (“WWX?”) (continued)

On 3 November 2010, the Company has entered into a new supply
agreement (the “New WWX Supply Agreement”) with WWX to renew
the pre-existing agreement as well as to determine the annual
cap for the transactions for the years ending 31 December 2013.
The Company has obtained the approval from its independent
shareholders in respect of the New WWX Supply Agreement on 26
January 2011. Upon approval, the term of the New WWX Supply
Agreement commenced on 1 January 2011 and will expire on 31
December 2013.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of
the purchase price paid by the Group to the WWX Group in relation
to the supply of scrap polysilicon raw material, scrap ingots and
scrap wafers amounted to approximately RMB17,096,000 (2011:
RMB18,665,000).

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the purchase of scrap
polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers for the year ending
31 December 2013, it is expected that the annual cap amounts
payable by the Group for transactions under the New WWX Supply
Agreement will not exceed RMB229,900,000.

The above annual cap amount is determined with reference to (i)
the expected increase in the Group’s production capacity for the
three years ending 31 December 2013; (i) the expected percentage
volume of polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers to be procured
from WWX; (jii) the outstanding amount of procurement contract
entered into with WWX; (iv) the production ratio of silicon solar ingot
to polysilicon; and (v) the expected changes in the market price of
polysilicon for the three years ending 31 December 2013.

To the best of the Director’s knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiry, as at the date of this report,
WWX holds 100% interests in Wafer Works Investment Corp.
("WWIC”). WWIC is a substantial shareholder of the Company. Each
of WWX and its subsidiaries is therefore an associate of WWIC and
hence a connected person of the Company. Consequently, the
transactions under the New WWX Supply Agreement constitute
non-exempt continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

B.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Sale of upgraded and processed polysilicon, silicon solar ingots and
silicon solar wafers to WWX

On 12 January 2008, the Company entered into a framework sale
agreement with WWX (the “WWX Sale Agreement”) pursuant to
which the Company has agreed to sell, or procure its subsidiaries
to sell upgraded and processed polysilicon, silicon solar ingots and
silicon solar wafers to WWX and/or its subsidiaries. The WWX Sale
Agreement had a term commencing on 31 March 2008 and expired
on 31 December 2009. Formal sale agreements (by way of purchase
orders and confirmations) were entered into between the Company
(and/or its subsidiaries) and WWX (and/or its subsidiaries) with the
detailed terms and conditions as specified in the relevant purchase
orders. The sale arrangements under the WWX Sale Agreement
were conducted on normal commercial terms and on terms no less
favourable than those available from independent third parties.

The WWX Sale Agreement was entered in the ordinary and
usual course of business and on normal commercial terms. The
purchase price payable by WWX to the Group under the WWX Sale
Agreement is determined with reference to the prevailing market
price of upgraded and processed polysilicon, silicon solar ingots and
silicon solar wafers.

On 4 June 2008, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement (“the WWX Supplemental Sale Agreement”) to revise the
caps for the transactions under the WWX Sale Agreement as well as
to determine the annual cap for the transactions for the year ended
31 December 2010. The Company had obtained the approval from
its independent shareholders in respect of the WWX Supplemental
Sale Agreement on 27 June 2008. Upon approval, the term of the
WWX Supplemental Sale Agreement commenced on 27 June 2008
and has expired on 31 December 2010.

On 3 November 2010, the Company has entered into a new sale
agreement (the “New WWX Sale Agreement”) with WWX to renew
the pre-existing agreement as well as to determine the annual cap
for the transactions for the year ending 31 December 2013. The
Company has obtained the approval from its shareholders in respect
of the New WWX Sale Agreement on 26 January 2011. Upon
approval, the term of the New WWX Sale Agreement commenced
on 1 January 2011 and will expire on 31 December 2013.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

B.

54  Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited &

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Sale of upgraded and processed polysilicon, silicon solar ingots and
silicon solar wafers to WWX (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012, no sales proceeds received
by the Group from the WWX Group in relation to the sale of
upgraded and processed polysilicon, silicon solar ingot and silicon
solar wafers (2011: RMBNIil).

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the sales of upgraded and
processed polysilicon, silicon solar ingots and silicon solar wafers for
the year ending 31 December 20183, it is expected that the annual
cap amounts receivable by the Group for transactions under the
WWX New Sale Agreement will not exceed RMB403,200,000.

The above annual cap amount under the New WWX Sale Agreement
is determined with reference to (i) the Group’s expected increase in
processing capacity for the three years ending 31 December 2013; (ii)
the estimated WWX’s demand for ingots and wafers for its business
in the photovoltaic industry; and (iii) the expected changes in the
market price of silicon solar ingots and wafers for the three years
ending 31 December 2013.

As mentioned in the paragraph headed “Supply of scrap polysilicon,
scrap ingots and scrap wafers by WWX” above, WWX is a
connected person of the Company and the transactions under
the New WWX Sale Agreement therefore constitute non-exempt
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Rule
14A.35 of the Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

B.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

The provision of services in respect of acidic wash of silicon, the
processing and production of polysilicon and wafers to WWX

On 12 January 2008, the Company entered into a framework
processing agreement with WWX pursuant to which the Company
agreed to provide, or procure its subsidiaries to provide the services
in respect of acidic wash of silicon, the processing and recycling
of top and tail scrap, pot scrap and scrap silicon into polysilicon
and other raw materials necessary for the production of silicon
solar ingots as well as the processing and production of silicon
solar wafers to WWX or its subsidiaries. The processing agreement
had a term commencing on 31 March 2008 and expired on 31
December 2009. Formal agreements (by way of processing orders
and confirmations) were entered into between the Company (and/
or its subsidiaries) and WWX (and/or its subsidiaries) with the
detailed terms and conditions as specified in the relevant processing
orders. The processing arrangements under the WWX Processing
Agreement were conducted on normal commercial terms and on
terms no less favourable than those available from independent third
parties.

On 2 December 2009, the Company has entered into a new
processing agreement (“New WWX Processing Agreement”)
to renew the pre-existing processing agreement as well as to
determine the annual cap for the transactions for the years ending
31 December 2012. The Company has obtained the approval
from its independent shareholders in respect of the New WWX
Processing Agreement on 31 December 2009. Upon approval, the
term of the New WWX Processing Agreement commenced on 1
January 2010 and will expire on 31 December 2012.

The New WWX Processing Agreement was entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business and on normal commercial
terms. The processing fee is subject to the individual processing
orders placed by the WWX Group with the Group and is determined
with reference to the prevailing market price in respect of the
processing services provided by a comparable sub-contractors in
the PRC market.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, no fee was received by the
Group from the WWX Group in relation to acidic wash of silicon, the
processing and recycling of top and tail scrap, pot scrap and scrap
silicon (2011: RMBNIl).
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

B.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

The provision of services in respect of acidic wash of silicon, the
processing and production of polysilicon and wafers to WWX
(continued)

As mentioned in the paragraph headed “Supply of scrap polysilicon,
scrap ingots and scrap wafers by WWX” above, WWX is a
connected person of the Company. The transactions under the
New WWX Processing Agreement therefore constitute non-exempt
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Rule
14A.35 of the Listing Rules.

No renewal of New WWX Processing Agreement has been made
after the expiry thereof.

The transactions as set out in section (A) “Continuing Connected
Transactions Exempt from the Independent Shareholders’ Approval
Requirements” above constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Group which are exempt from independent shareholders’
approval under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules and are subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements set out in Rule
14A.35 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules. The transactions as set out
in section (B) “Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions”
above are subject to reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to
14A.48 of the Listing Rules. The Board has reviewed and the
Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions (the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) for the year ended 31 December 2012 were entered
into and conducted:

()  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i)  either on normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable
to the Company than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
and the terms and the proposal annual caps set out above that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group from pages 39
to 57 of the Annual Report in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule
14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has conditionally approved and adopted the share option
scheme on 27 February 2008 (“Share Option Scheme”) in which certain
participants may be granted options to subscribe for the ordinary shares
in the share capital of the Company with a nominal value of HK$0.10
each (“Shares”). The Directors believe that the Share Option Scheme will
be important for the recruitment and retention of quality executives and
employees.

The subscription price for the shares under the share option to be granted
will be determined by the Board and will be the highest of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must
be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business

days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i)~ the nominal value of a Share.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of Shares in issue immediately following completion of
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange (“the Listing”)
(but taking no account of any Shares which may be sold pursuant to the
exercise of the over-allotment option in connection with the Listing) and
capitalisation issue, being 169,076,650 Shares which represents 5.66%
of the existing issued share capital of the Company.

The total number of securities available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2012 was 158,186,650 Shares which
represents 5.29% of the existing issued share capital of the Company (after
deducting the grant of options to subscribe for 42,269,163 Shares on 29
December 2008 and adding back the number of options to subscribe for
10,285,000 Shares and 21,094,163 Share lapsed on 30 April 2009 and
31 December 2010, respectively).

No option may be granted to any person such that the total number of
Shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and to be granted to each participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the number of
Shares of the Company in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the Board
of Directors of the Company, which must not be more than 10 years from
the date of the grant.

No share option was granted under the Share Option Scheme during the
year.

Saved as otherwise disclosed, at no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the
company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale Or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2012.
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Interest and Short Positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executives of the Company in the
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company and its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2012, so far as the Directors are aware, the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company and their associates had the
following interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
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Number of ordinary

Approximate

shares held percentage of
(Note 1) shareholding (%)
Name of Director Nature interest FIEEERHEE #MABERESHK
ESHE EaME (Bt &£1) (%)
Mr. TAN Wenhua Beneficial interest (Note 2) 528,624,443 (L) 21.22%
BN ELE E == (M sE2)
Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 2) 155,320,308 (L) 6.23%
2P L B R & (Mt 5E2)
Mr. HSU You Yuan Beneficial interest 13,861,346 (L) 0.56%
B Yobines EnEs
Interest in options (Note 3) 239,835 (L) 0.01%
A B IR RE Y RE & (BT RE3)
Security interest (Note 3) 239,835 (L) 0.01%
I R &= (P 5E3)
Trustee’s interest 7,252,085 (L) 0.29%
FEAESE
Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai Beneficial interest 6,135,500 (L) 0.25%
B EE EnkER
Interest in an option (Note 3) 7,012,250 (L) 0.28%
R BB IR R Y & (P &£ 3)
Security interest (Note 3) 7,012,250 (L) 0.28%
I 15 RE 2= (B 5E3)
Ms. ZHANG Liming Beneficial interest 3,138,500 (L) 0.13%
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Interest and Short Positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executives of the Company in the
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company and its Associated Corporations

(continued)
Note:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

(2)  As at 31 December 2012, Mr. Tan Wenhua is interested in an aggregate of
683,944,751 Shares, of which (i) 528,624,442 Shares are directly held by Mr.
Tan Wenhua; and (i) 155,320,308 Shares are held by You Hua Investment
Corporation, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Tan Wenhua.

(8 Mr. Hsu You Yuan and Mr. Chiao Ping Hai are entitled to buy back the Shares
of the relevant senior management and employees in the event that any of
them cease to be employed. These Directors also have security interest in
these Shares pursuant to a share charge granted by the relevant employees
and consultants to secure their obligations to pay for the purchase price
of the Shares and their obligations to comply with the relevant regulatory
requirements to which they are subject to (if any).

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2012, so far as the Directors are aware, save as
disclosed above, the persons or corporations (not being a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who have interest or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or have
otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:
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Number of ordinary Approximate

shares held percentage of
(Note 1) shareholding (%)
Name Capacity FIEEERBE MABEREDIL
a8 KB &5 (B =£1) (%)
Wafer Works Investment Corp. Beneficial owner 287,259,822 (L) 15.35%
(“WWIC”) BESEAA
Wafer Works Corp. (“WWX”) (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 287,259,822 (L) 15.35%
EmBERGERALD A SEEEER
& &R ED M E2)
Hiramatsu International Corp. Beneficial owner 138,541,692 (L) 5.56%
EEZERA
Mr. CHONG Kin Ngai (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporations 122,962,433 (L) 4.94%
SRR (MIEES) SEEEES
Personal interest 4,994,500 (L) 0.2%
& A # &
Family interest 1,100,000 (L) 0.04%
R IR &
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and

Underlying Shares (continued)
Note:

1. The letter “L.” denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

2. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made
all reasonable enquiry, WWIC is wholly-owned by WWX as at the date of this
report. By virtue of the SFO, WWX is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by WWIC.

3. As at 31 December 2012, Mr. CHONG is interested in an aggregate of
129,056,933 Shares, of which 4,994,500 Shares are directly held by Mr.
CHONG, 1,100,000 Shares are held by Mr. CHONG'’s spouse, 71,126,040
Shares are held by Prosperity Electric Corporation (“PEC”) and 51,836,393
Shares are held by Prosperity Lamps & Components Limited (“PLC”). PLC
is held as to 20% by PEC, as to 45% by Leigh Company Limited and as to
35% by independent third parties. Both PEC and Leigh Company Limited are
wholly-owned by Mr. CHONG.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Directors are
not aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or short
position in shares and underlying shares of the Company which fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Directors’ Interest in Potentially Competing
Businesses

Mr. TAN Wenhua, being the executive Director, and Mr. CHIAO Ping
Hai, being the non-executive Director are interested in other related
businesses, particulars of which are set out below:

Mr. TAN Wenhua

For the year ended 31 December 2012, Mr. Tan held approximately
40% interest in Jinzhou Changhua. Jinzhou Changhua is engaged in the
manufacturing of graphite and graphite related products. The business
of Jinzhou Changhua does not compete with that of the Group. Jinzhou
Changhua, as a company which manufactures graphite and graphite
related products, is not a competitor of the Group because (a) the
Group is not engaged in the manufacturing of graphite or any graphite
related products; and (b) graphite is not a substitute for polysilicon in the
manufacturing of solar products currently produced by the Group.

Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai

For the year ended 31 December 2012, Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai had interests
in WWX, B4 REMBERAR (Wafer Works (Shanghai) Corp*)
(“WWXS”) and Wafer Works Epitaxial Corp. These three companies are
all engaged in the business of manufacturing silicon wafers used in the
semi-conductor industry. Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai also has indirect interests
in Helitek and Heli-Vantech, Inc., both of which are engaged in the
trading of silicon wafers used in the manufacture of semi-conductors. As
explained above, the semi-conductor industry is different from that of the
solar technology industry; thus, WWX, WWXS and Wafer Works Epitaxial
Corp., Helitek and Heli-Vantech, Inc., are not engaged in any competing
business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

Non-competition Undertaking

The Directors confirm that they have no interest in any business (apart
from the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business. The Directors have also
signed a non-competition undertaking with the Company.

Disclosure on how the non-competition undertaking has been complied
with and enforced would be consistent with the principles of making
voluntary disclosures under the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 23 of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the non-competition undertaking dated 27 February 2008,
Mr. TAN Wenhua shall continue to be bound by the terms of the
noncompetition undertaking in the event that he ceases to be a Director
but remains a substantial shareholder of the Company.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is
actual or potential conflict in interest.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” on pages 39 to 57, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set out by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Retirement Benefit Schemes
Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the law of Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Special enquiries have been made by the Company to
confirm that all Directors have been complied with the Model Code for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

Corporate Governance
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the corporate governance report on pages 19 to 29.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee on 27 February 2008 with
written terms of references adopted in compliance with the Code set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of the Audit Committee
are the four independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Wong Wing
Kuen Albert, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is to serve as a focal point for communication
between other Directors, the external auditor and the internal auditor
(where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as regards their
duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal controls, external
and internal audits and such other financial and accounting matters as the
Board determines from time to time.

The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in providing an independent
review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management system of the Group, overseeing the
audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities as may
be assigned by the Board from time to time. The audit committee
has reviewed the Group’s interim and annual consolidated financial
statements for the year 2012, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital
of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the
Stock Exchange, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

Auditors

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been
audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
TAN Wenhua

Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZ AR

cnzc

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Solargiga
Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 67 to 168, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2012, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB

Auditor’s responsibility (continueq)
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 1(b) to the
consolidated financial statements which describes that the Group
sustained a loss of RMB1,295,053,000 during the year ended 31
December 2012 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB385,052,000. The Group also used
cash and cash equivalents of RMB202,579,000 in its operating activities
during the year ended 31 December 2012 and suffered a significant
decrease in turnover. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concem. As further detailed in note 1(b) to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group raised net proceeds
amounting to RMB200,443,000 through an open offer in March 2013 and
has identified further measures to improve its performance and financial
position. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent on the successful
implementation of these further measures to enable the Group to operate
as a going concern and meet its financial liabilities as they fall due for
the foreseeable future. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would result should the Group be unable to
continue to operate as a going concern.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement
= N7

reiEmk

for the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—ZT——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥EFI{E)

2012 2011
—E-=fF —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bz AR¥T T ARBFT
(restated)
(RREH)
Turnover R 3 996,836 2,574,669
Cost of sales SHERA (1,288,220) (2,320,821)
Gross (loss)/profit E(B) A (291,384) 253,848
Other revenue Hihlg A 4 55,808 150,582
Other net income Heb A F58 5 3,698 3,191
Selling and distribution expenses SHER DX (19,303) (32,169)
Administrative expenses TEHX (252,539) (269,315)
(Loss)/profit from operations R (EHE) /FE (503,720) 106,137
Impairment of property, plant and W - MENRERE
equipment 14(e) (161,200) -
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 15 (201,493) -
Impairment of goodwill RERE 16 (208,237) -
Impairment of prepayments FENFERE 18 (134,485) -
Share of profits less losses
of associates FEEEEE D TR IBS 20 1,511 (54)
Finance costs BE AR 6(a) (110,967) (71,949
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBEAT (B548) /FE 6 (1,318,591) 34,134
Income tax credit FRGHIE R 7 23,538 10,021
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(EHER) FHE (1,295,053) 44,155
Attributable to: BTN A e
Equity shareholders of the Company RAFRERBRER 8 (1,276,554) 54,291
Non-controlling interests SEIEHIMERE R (18,499) (10,136)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(HE) FE (1,295,053) 44,155
(Loss)/earnings per share SR(ER) BT
(RMB cents) (AR%S) 10
Basic and diluted (2011: restated) EARSE(ZE——F  £EI) (55.99) 2.43

The notes on pages 75 to 168 form part of these financial statements. 28752 168HE Z MiFHA KA Rz 2 — D o RD aHE
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company #ZBRREMERNEMER TEZFRE 2 BRI -
attributable to the loss/profit for the year are set out in note 9.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWAR

for the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—-T— —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥%I{E)

2012 2011
. —B-——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTT
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(EHB), FE (1,295,053) 44,155
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHMEEBA
Exchange differences on translation of financial BEREARLIME(HEDFEH
statements of companies outside of the People’s AT KR 2B X E58
Republic of China (“PRC”) 407 (6,769)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXAKAHLE (1,294,646) 37,386
Attributable to: AT AL RS :
Equity shareholders of the Company A B RERRER (1,276,147) 47,522
Non-controlling interests eI B RER (18,499) (10,136)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXEVRALE (1,294,646) 37,386

The notes on pages 75 to 168 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e RN R

at 31 December 2012 R-ZT——F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥EFI{E)

2012 2011
—E—C—F -
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
{hEs AR¥TR ARBF T
(restated)
(&%)
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENRE 14 1,917,684 2,137,010
Intangible assets B ERE 15 = 228,084
Goodwill SES 16 - 208,237
Prepayments for acquisition of property, BBV - BERRENTEAFRIE
plant and equipment 4,582 52,262
Lease prepayments HEEATRIE 17 101,361 103,858
Prepayments for raw materials FEM R TEA TR 18 316,543 396,972
Interests in associates HEE N TIRRER 20 124,457 256,748
Deferred tax assets FEFIEEE 27(b) - 17,907
2,464,627 3,401,078
Current assets RENEE
Inventories 7E 21 424,187 368,928
Trade and other receivables UL E 5 BRF R H A FEURFRIE 22 720,747 534,845
Current tax recoverable ENER AT YR (=1 %4 18 27(a) 7,070 8,409
Pledged bank deposits SR ITIER 23 174,234 151,682
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERS 24 153,793 583,743
1,480,031 1,647,607
Current liabilities wREAE
Trade and other payables ERESRA R EiESRE 25 846,098 640,654
Bank loans RITER 26 1,018,985 705,077
Current tax payable BNEA BB IR 27(a) - 6,623
1,865,083 1,352,354
Net current (liabilities)/assets REN(BE) BERE (385,052) 295,253
Total assets less current liabilities ZEZEBERTHES 2,079,575 3,696,331
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

at 31 December 2012 R-_ZT——F+-F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥%I{E)

2012 2011
—B-=f —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
{iE AR¥TR AREETT
(restated)
(#=&E5)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Municipal government loan TBREER 26(b) 2,780 2,947
Bank loans RITER 26(a) 484,500 845,035
Bonds &% 26(c) 298,600 298,000
Deferred tax liabilities EEMRIEEE 27(b) 11,757 48,215
Deferred income IEFEUR A 28 221,701 221,903
Other non-current liabilities HittIERBEE 29 9,007 7,335
1,028,345 1,423,435
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,051,230 2,272,896
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BB 31
Share capital IR 218,787 198,585
Reserves GHE 800,091 2,023,460
Total equity attributable to equity  ZNA TR REE(GESALE
shareholders of the Company 1,018,878 2,222,045
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR 32,352 50,851
TOTAL EQUITY DB 1,051,230 2,272,896

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March ~EEE@R=-Z—=F=A -+t BRELFIHEE -
2013.

TAN Wenhua HSU You Yuan
B E By
Director Director
EE EE
The notes on pages 75 to 168 form part of these financial statements. E75Z 168 B ZMiFH A R AN B iRk 2 — 5 ©
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Statement of Financial Position

B EEARR 3R

at 31 December 2012 R-—ZE——F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥EFI{E)

2012 2011
—E-—-F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FiaE AR¥T T ARBTT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BEREZE 14 = 12
Interests in subsidiaries R B A TR 19 1,755,530 1,443,597
1,755,530 1,443,609
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables FEUWE 5 AR AR R L Ath FEUR R IE 22 9,751 751,132
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFEES 24 1,363 1,421
11,114 752,553
Current liabilities RENEE
Bank loans IRITER 26(a) 397,586 62,074
Other payables and accrued expenses E i fETERIE R FExHE A 25 20,205 23,237
417,791 85,311
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(EE) BEFE (406,677) 667,242
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERAHAE 1,348,853 2,110,851
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bank loans RITER 26(a) - 398,035
Bonds &% 26(c) 298,600 298,000
298,600 696,035
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,050,253 1,414,816
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARGHE 31
Share capital B 218,787 198,585
Reserves [T 831,466 1,216,231
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 1,050,253 1,414,816

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March

2013.

TAN Wenhua
EXE

Director

EZE

The notes on pages 75 to 168 form part of these financial statements.

EFEN -2 =F=A-+tARELFAHL -

HSU You Yuan
A
Director
EE
FE75Z 168 B Z M AR ANB Rk 2 — 5 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERERDR

for the year ended 31 December 2012 &=
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥%I{E)

—F+R=t—RHLFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ANARBERFEGER
General Non-
Share Share reserve Capital ~ Exchange Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium fund reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
B RGEE -RfEe EAGE ERfE Hite  REEA @it kEMER  ERAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTR ARETR AREBTR ARETR ARETr ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARET:R
Balance at 1 January 2011 R-Z——-£-f—-Az&H 162,458 940,428 117,595 40,828 (10,289) (66,710) 422,508 1,606,778 38937 1,645,715
Changes in equity for 2011: —Z——FE%#8
Proft/{loss) for the year FERR/ (58 - - - - - - 54,091 54,291 (10,136) 44,155
Other comprehensive Hir2EMA
income - - - - (6,769) - - (6,769) - (6,769)
Total comprehensive income  ZEWABE . - - - (6,769) - 54,291 47,622 (10,136) 37,386
Dividends approved in respect +F EE#ERE (HiEEo(b)
of the previous year
(note 9(b)) - (78,476) - - - - - (78,476) - (78,476)
Issuance of convertible RIPEARGZURRES
bonds classified as equity ~ (K&¥31(d)
(note 31(d)) - - - - - 644,281 - 644,281 - 644,281
Shares issued upon RRTRREFRBORG
conversion of convertiole (MEE31(d)
bonds (note 31(d)) 36,127 608,154 - - - (644,281) - - - -
Capital injection by non- FERRFLE
controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - 22,050 22,050
Equity settled share-based ~ LARELERAZMA2RE
fransactions - - - 1,940 - - - 1,940 - 1,940
Appropriation A/ - - 21,801 - - - (21,801) - - -
Balance at RZB——%F+ZA=1-H
31 December 2011 P33 198,585 1,470,106 139,356 42,768 (17,058) (66,710) 454998 2,222,045 50,851 2,272,896
Balance at 1 January 2012 R=Z--%-F-H
&8 198,585 1,470,106 139,356 42,768 (17,058) (66,710) 454,998 2,222,045 50,851 2,272,896
Changes in equity for 20121 —2-—5BHE%#H :
Loss for the year EEFE - - - - - - (1,276,554) (1,276,554) (18,499)  (1,295,053)
Other comprehensive UETTION
income - - - - 407 - - 407 - 407
Total comprehensive income  ZEK A - - - - 407 - (1,276,554) (1,276,147) (18,499)  (1,294,646)
Shares issued under open  REEABRERTRA
offer (note 31(g)) (Mf&E31(e) 20,202 52,778 - - - - - 72,980 - 72,980
Appropriation 28 - - 48,696 - - - (48,696) - - -
Balance at W=B-=%+-A=1-A
31 December 2012 Zht 218,787 1,522,884 188,052 42,768 (16,651) (66,710)  (870,252) 1,018,878 32,352 1,051,230

The notes on pages 75 to 168 form part of these financial statements.

72  Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited 8 ¢ 8E/R IR B R A 7

H752 168 ZMisF AR AR IEIRE 2 — 2D ©



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

nVT/\Iﬁaﬁ/ﬂbE%

for the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—-ZT——
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥EFI{E)

FH-—A=+—HIFE

2012 2011
—B——F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt =t ARTR ARET T
Operating activities R TEE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEBAT(EE)FE (1,318,591) 34,134
Adjustments for: A
Depreciation and amortisation ITEREE 202,830 166,084
Gain on disposals of property, plant and  HEY¥ - KERBEHIKE
equipment = (178)
Share of profits less losses of associates JE{LEL A RIEEH (1,511) 54
Impairment of property, plant and W BEKRERE
equipment 161,200 -
Impairment of prepayments FENFERE 134,485 -
Impairment of goodwill EERE 208,237 -
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 201,493 -
Equity-settled share-based payment RRESEEURD
expenses HIBI sz = 1,940
Write-down of inventories FE MR 154,590 161,701
Impairment of trade debtors FEUR B 5 BRFURE 1,159 -
Finance costs BE A 110,967 71,949
Provision for warranty costs E"ﬂ%*ﬁﬁiﬂ-‘ﬂf AR 1,672 6,465
Interest income from bank deposits TEFHR B A (4,430) (5,952)
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss ER(H&@)/EETE (2,051) 5,516
Operating (loss)/profit before KT BESEBHNEE (BR),FE
changes in working capital (149,950) 441,713
Increase in inventories FEEm (209,956) (118,958)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other FEWE 5 AR H A FEUER
receivables (Em),/wD (67,063) 178,602
Increase in prepayments for raw materials E #1498 43 2k @ 1L 00 (52,537) (151,869)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other S E SRR EESR
payables #in, GEd) 277,426 (46,507)
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income  EFEWA OFi4), /1210 (202) 6,910
Cash (used in)/generated from KEEB(FAA) FisRe
operating activities (202,282) 309,891
The People’s Republic of China BRE(BEMPEARKNER
(the “PRC”) income tax refunded/(paid) ([ El])Fi5%t 561 (35,332
Withholding tax paid EFENEIE (858) -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-Z——F+-A=+—HI|FE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥%I{E)

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

BfEE AR¥TT ARETT

Net cash (used in)/generated from KEEE (A FBRSFE
operating activities (202,579) 274,559

Investing activities REEE

Payment for the acquisition of property, FLEBEY% - BERREZ(THOFE

plant and equipment (122,378) (658,775)
Capital injection to an associate B —EEEAREE = (86,000)
Payment of lease prepayments HERNTE = (15,776)
Decrease in deposits with banks with ZHA R A =188 U EMRITERR A

original maturity over three months 3,770 46,230
Increase in amount due from an associate FEUL— REE# A T FIEE N - (133,802)
Net cash inflow from acquisition of IKEEMT B A B &R AEEE

subsidiaries 39(c) - 33,670
Proceeds from disposals of property, HENE - RERREMESRIE

plant and equipment - 1,044
Interest received EURFIE 4,430 5,952
Net cash used in investing activities #&EEFAE S FHE (114,178) (807,457)
Financing activities RLESEE
Placement of pledged deposits EFCERER (174,234) (151,682)
Repayments of pledged deposits EBECEATFR 151,643 74,113
Dividends paid 2fRE 9(b) - (78,476)
Proceeds from bank loans IRITEFRATEFIE 1,455,143 2,250,633
Repayment of bank loans RITERZER (1,501,770) (1,611,437)
Proceeds from bonds issued BITEHTSRE 26(c) = 300,000
Capital injection by non-controlling FEERBFEE

shareholders - 22,050
Net proceeds from open offer AEBEMSREFE 31(e) 72,980 -
Interest paid ENRE (113,234) (84,509)
Loan transaction cost paid ENERRZHAE = (12,095)
Bond issuing cost paid ENBITESHAE = (3,600)

Net cash (used in)/generated from RMESEE (A FERETHE
financing activities (109,472) 704,997

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBEZEYWZHL), ML HNFE
cash equivalents (426,229) 172,099

Cash and cash equivalents at the FNRERBESEEY

beginning of the year 559,973 389,734
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERSEHNE
changes 49 (1,860)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end EXELRRELEEY
of the year 24 133,793 559,973
The notes on pages 75 to 168 form part of these financial statements. SB752 168 E M sH AR ANB R ER 2 — 2B D
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BN SRR AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

(BB AREEEN  AARKIIE)

Significant accounting policies

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The Group sustained a loss for the year ended 31 December
2012 of RMB1,295,053,000 including impairment of assets
of RMB705,415,000 (2011: RMBNIl) and, as of that date,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by RMB385,052,000. The Group also used cash and cash
equivalents of RMB202,579,000 in its operating activities
during the year ended 31 December 2012, and suffered
a significant decrease in turnover. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the directors are of the view that the adoption
of the going concern assumption in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate, as they have taken into
consideration the following factors and concluded that the
Group will have sufficient funds to finance its working capital
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements for a period of
at least, but not limited to, 12 months from the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP T

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB5IE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

()

(i)

Available banking facilities

Due to the non-compliance with certain financial
covenants under the syndicated loan agreement dated
27 May 2011, as subsequently revised by a waiver
letter granted by the banks dated 23 August 2012, the
balance of the non-current portion of the syndicated loan
due in 2014 amounting to US$21,230,000 (equivalent
to RMB133,441,000) was reclassified from non-current
liabilities to current liabilities as at 31 December 2012. On
26 March 2013, a waiver from non-compliance with the
financial covenants was granted by the majority of the
lenders.

The Group intends to maintain its strong business
relationship with its bankers to maintain their continuing
support and is actively discussing with its bankers for
the renewal of short term banking facilities when they
fall due in 2013. In March 2013, the Group renewed the
short term bank loans of US$9,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB56,570,000) for the coming one year. Moreover, as
at 31 December 2012, the Group has unutilised banking
facilities of RMB55,000,000 which will be available for
the twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
The directors are confident that the Group will continue
to succeed in negotiating with its bankers to renew its
outstanding bank loans as they fall due and/or to extend
their repayment terms to meet its future working capital
and financial requirements.

Raising of funds through equity transactions

In March 2013, the Group completed an open offer
(as disclosed in note 41(a)) and issued 498,260,094
new shares, which raised net proceeds (after
deduction of estimated related expenses) amounting to
RMB200,443,000. The Group will apply the entire net
proceeds to repay its current outstanding interest-bearing
bank loans.

Further, the Group may explore and seek to, subject to
market conditions and definitive agreements having been
entered into, raise equity financing by way of a placing,
possibly up to US$6 million before June 2013, to further
strengthen the Group’s liquidity and working capital.

76 Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited 8 ¢ RERIZIR AR A 7

1 FESHEE@)
(o) BAFSHRIR I ARBIEZE (|)

Y

(i)

HARITRE

HARREETAPA=-ZT——FHA
“t+tBAZREERBRBETZET
MEEH(HEHBRTRHEARA=T
——ENAZ+ =B BHRH &S
) R NEIHREERZ
ER B 2 2 4 8% 521,230,000 % T
(HERARHE133,441,0007T) R =&
——&+-A=+—HHFrRBEEE
B BEERBEGF - R=T—=F=
A=+7B  KBHERRARERES
M RHERE o

AEEERRBUERERITZERER
Bi% UEESIHESE  BEEHR
TRER - —=F 28 - BEER
TEREEEHRTRE - N=T—=
F=ZA AEERAR—FEHEES
$R4T B 579,000,000 T (HHER AR
56,570,00075) ° W4 » R=ZZE——4F
+=—B=+—8  FXEERBHAZERIT
RiE B A R¥55,000,0007T © A BRIR
HHEAER R T @A LHEAT
FEA EBEELEHAEBRTE
MENERRS » AREE S BB T EIRITE
AR RILEE EIR PR A E R 2R
EEESURMBEER -

BHERERZEEES
RZZE—=F=F ' AEEERA
HERE(RAMFTHQEE) I BT
498,260,004 B H B 1D » FTEE 2 F 13
REFHERMETERERAXZ)BAR
#£200,443,0007T - AEE K 2 2E A
FI8RIBFRHUEEERG Y RERZ
STEMRITER °

tboh o AREE A REE BT IS IRERERT
2B EBRBARLSRUBRES XS
SERERE  R=ZT—=FHATA8
#156,000,000% 7T » LUE— L MiEA
EEZRBELREEES °



1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

(i)

Other measures to improve liquidity and financial
performance

The directors have reviewed the Group’s future plans and
strategy and have identified various initiatives and have
taken active steps which could turn around the Group’s
business performance and to improve the Group’s
liquidity, operating cash flows and financial position,
which include the following:

(1)  reduction of capital expenditure in order to reduce
cash outflows;

(2) increasing in the production ratio of high quality and
high efficiency products;

(8) implementation of tightened credit control and
active search for new customers with sound
financial background;

(4) implementation of cost saving measures
including stringent control of cost of production,
administrative expenses and selling expenses to
enhance overall profitability; and

(5) actively exploring the availability of alternative
sources of financing.

After taking into consideration the above factors, the
directors are confident that the Group will continue to
obtain the ongoing support from its bankers and will
have sufficient funding to enable it to operate as a going
concern and meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due for at least 12 months from the reporting
date. Accordingly, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Should the Group
be unable to continue to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect of
these adjustments has not been reflected in the financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP T

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1

(AARB5IE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interests
in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise
stated in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 37.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(©

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1()).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP T

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1

(AARB5IE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note 1(j)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

80 Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited & ¢ SR IEIR AR A 7

1

FESHEE @)

©)

N

BENAREAEESIA R AHEEERY
& BHHEEEEI SRR R EGEN
HiE  EAFEURESHEAMBMELRE

REEQNTNREREERECAGE YK
BR - RBERZE  REDT AR
REBAEEMERRES TRHBEEFE
B EE B H A P EE IR E R A D
(MBE)EHAE - A2 - AERESHEAE
EAGEERESEEFENRBEREBREA
BIREMNEMRERE(RHEE1() F LA
o WEAPBHRANEMRD - AEE
SR BRED BB RGBHREERFAN
EMREBERGEBRERER  MAKEE
FrGRIRE T H b 2 E WA 7 B9 S 12 BR AR
®RIAE ANZREZH WA RRER °

EREEEBE QR RENEREBAER
HRERE  AEEGERESHIEZE
I B RBEREINGE  BNREBERBT
EEREER  RRPIRES EHA A
BROb o LT S - AEBAER R UIRRE
SEENRERASHE - UREE EBRK
REBEAEBEARNREFA-—DONREE

Ho

REFRABENR ARG MELENRE
BB - IRAKEREIRE S b ES
i EMASEEESACEREELR
FE - BISENEERSR PR



1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see note 1(j)).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1j)(ii):

— buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating leases
(see note 1(i); and

- other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportions of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(u)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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PRSP T

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1

(AARB5IE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after
the date of completion.

- Plant and machinery 10 years

—  Other fixed assets 5 years
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Construction in progress
Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1j)(ii).

Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as interest
expenses capitalised during the periods of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and
equipment when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use are completed. No
depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress
until it is substantially ready for its intended use.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group with a finite
estimated useful life are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 1 (j)(ii).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Patents 9 years
- Customer relationship 10 years
= Customer contracts 1 year

Both the period and method of amortisation of intangible assets
are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal installments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B ER R BT 5

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥EFI(E)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Impairment of assets

() Impairment of the investments in subsidiaries, associates
and trade and other receivables
The investments in subsidiaries, associates and trade and
other receivables carried at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value

of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

0

()

Impairment of the investments in subsidiaries, associates
and trade and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in subsidiaries carried at cost and
investments in associates recognised using the
equity method (see note 1(d)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment as a whole with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 1(j)(i)). The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates amount in accordance with note 1(j)(ii).

- For prepayments and other receivables carried
at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset.

- For trade and other receivables carried at amortised
cost, impairment loss is determined as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for receivables which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP T

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB5IE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Impairment of assets (continued)

()

(i)

Impairment of the investments in subsidiaries, associates
and trade and other receivables (continued)
Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors and bills
receivable directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

—  construction in progress;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease;

—  intangible assets; and

—  goodwill.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

0

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP T

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1

(AARB5IE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of asset other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

U

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(j)(i), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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PRSP T

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1

(AARB5IE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(@)

Employee benefits

() Short term employee benefits
Salaries, annual bonuses and staff welfare costs are
accrued in the period in which the associated services
are rendered by employees of the Group. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their fair values.

(i) Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
Contributions to local retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, Taiwan
and Hong Kong are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred, except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as
an expense.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences, respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(@

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities
and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
nor deductible for tax purpose, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(orovided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP E

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (LAA R¥EFIE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(@ Income tax (continued)
Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(n Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i)

(ir)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Company or the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise
be reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Company’s or the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where
no such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP E

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBZIE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(s)

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer. Revenue excludes value added
tax and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Services rendered
Revenue from services rendered is recognised as and
when the services are performed or rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it
accrues using the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attached to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Government grant that are receivable as
compensation for losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no further related cost are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies

Iltems included in the financial statements of each entity
in the Group are measured using the currency that best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and
circumstances relevant to that entity (“functional currency”).
The financial statements are presented in Renminbi Yuan
(“RMB”) (“reporting currency”).

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated into RMB
at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP E

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB5IE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use of sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Research and development expenses

Expenditure on research and development is charged to profit
or loss as an expense when incurred.

Related parties

(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(w) Related parties (continued)

(2)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

(vi) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Convertible bonds

The convertible bonds that are issued by the Company are
interest-free and not redeemable in cash. The number of
shares into which the convertible bonds will be converted is
fixed at the issuance date. The convertible bonds are classified
entirely as equity. At initial recognition, the convertible bonds
are measured at fair value and are recognised in the other
reserve until they are converted. When the convertible bonds
are converted, the amount is transferred to share capital and
share premium as consideration for the shares issued.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP E

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB5IE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

v)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
have a majority of these criteria.

Advances to suppliers

Advances to suppliers which use to offset against future
purchases of raw materials are stated at cost less impairment
losses. Impairment of advances to suppliers are recognised
when there is objective evidence that the economic
benefits expected to be received under the purchase
agreements are less than the unavoidable costs of meeting
the contractual obligations; or the financial condition of the
suppliers deteriorate. Impairment losses are measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the advance
and the economic benefits expected to be received under
the purchase agreements which take into consideration the
projected revenue, related expenses, capital spending and
other costs.

2 Changes in accounting policies

(@)

Recently issued accounting standards
The HKICPA has issued a few amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group. Of these, Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets, is
relevant to the Group’s financial statements.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain disclosures to
be included in the annual financial statements in respect of
all transferred financial assets that are not derecognised and
for any continuing involvement in a transferred asset existing
at the reporting date, irrespective of when the related transfer
transaction occurred. However, an entity need not provide
the disclosures for the comparative period in the first year of
adoption. The Group did not have any significant transfers of
financial assets in previous periods or the current period which
require disclosure in the current accounting period under the
amendments.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Changes in the application of accounting policies

In 2011, transactions with a customer who was also a supplier
of the Group were recognised on a gross basis, whereby
the revenue and the cost of inventories sold were presented
separately in the consolidated income statement and the
raw materials purchased from this customer and held at the
year end were recorded as the Group’s inventories in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

During the current year, management has reconsidered
the overall substance and the accounting treatment of the
processing transactions with this customer. As a result, the
Group has changed the basis of presentation of the revenue
derived from these transactions from a gross basis to a
net processing fee basis and has excluded the materials
supplied by the customer and held by the Group to meet the
customer’s outstanding processing orders as at 31 December
2011 and 2012 from inventories in order to more appropriately
reflect the overall substance of these transactions on a basis
consistent with the Group’s accounting policies.

As a result of this change in application of accounting policy,
the Group’s turnover and cost of sales for the year ended 31
December 2012 have been both reduced by RMB256,494,000
(year ended 31 December 2011: RMB204,554,000) and
amounts paid for materials held by the Group for processing
as at 31 December 2012 of RMBNil (31 December 2011:
RMB45,655,000) has been reclassified as a receivable from
the customer.

Comparative figures have been restated accordingly. There has
been no impact on the consolidated results and the net assets
of the Group from the change in application of accounting
policy for the periods presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R BT 5

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#EFI(E)

3 Turnover
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing,
trading and provision of processing services for polysilicon and
monocrystalline and multicrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers, the
manufacturing and trading of monocrystalline silicon solar cells,
and the manufacturing and trading of photovoltaic modules and
installation of photovoltaic systems.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to customers
less value added tax and trade discounts and income from the
provision of processing services and the installation of photovoltaic
systems. The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

R
AEBEEEBAABEERHIREERS S
R MBS EERBHAREESEURE
BRZ SR ELMTRE  WEREEABE
B EREN R REARTELREL -

EEBNEHETEFENNHEECHIBERR
B2 U R RN TREEZ LN RERRE
WA - R FIHNEXBFDRDNERKRA LS
U

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARET R
(restated)
(R=E75)

Sales of polysilicon and monocrystalline and HEZRIER AP BER
multicrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers ZREE HEA 398,971 867,329
Sales of monocrystalline silicon solar cells HEAPSREE RS 208,684 650,675
Revenue from trading of photovoltaic modules BERREAWRA 149,878 693,734
Processing service fees NI ARIEE 239,303 362,931
996,836 2,574,669

During the year ended 31 December 2012, 56% (2011: 46%) of
turnover was derived from the five largest customers.
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3 Turnover (continued) 3 EHEXuw

Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted to 10% or REEFERFP2WE @ B BEMEBRA10%I U EH
more of the total revenue, is set out below: FInT -
2012 2011
—B-=% 2%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Customer A =ZEA 126,315 291,121
Customer B =FB 119,173 *
Customer C ZFEC 115,643 *
Customer D =FD 105,627 *
Customer E =FE * 289,961
* The sale amount is less than 10% of total revenue. : HESBRERBAT0%UT
Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are REAAREIERB 2E—SFBRRYE
disclosed in note 13 to these financial statements. MFRMIFE13 0
4 Other revenue 4 HfglA
2012 2011
—B-=f %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Government grants (note 28) R BE (Mi3E28) 41,033 134,633
Interest income from bank deposits SRITEROREWHA 4,430 5,952
Rental income from operating leases KERENESRA 1,469 1,736
Income from sale of scrap materials HERERWA 920 687
Others Hity 8,786 7,574
55,808 150,582
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R BT 5

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥5I{E)

5 Other net income 5 HWAFE
2012 2011
- Bt 3 —2——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET R
Net foreign exchange gain ENEE = 3,698 3,013
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% - BERBENHIE - 178
3,698 3,191
6 (Loss)/profit before taxation 6 PBREiAT(ESE) FE
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BBA(ERE)  FIETNg S (5A)
2012 2011
—E——f —B——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETT
(a) Finance costs (a) RBERK
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable BREFRAZHEBN
within five years RITERAE 97,451 80,271
Interest on bonds BEAE 16,019 5,475
Interest on municipal government loan BT ERHIFIE 197 215
Total interest expense on financial liabilities FRAFERBRRSIR
not at fair value through profit or loss B ENF SR A% 113,667 85,961
Less: interest expense capitalised into B EREIRERE
construction in progress * FERx" (2,700) (14,012)

110,967 71,949

*

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 6.65% to * BERADEFEFNREC65%E8.32%(=F
8.32% (2011: 4.42% to 8.97%) per annum. ——F 1 4.42%%8.97%) FUEARAL ©
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6 (Loss)/profit before taxation (continued) 6 PBRBIAT(EE)FiEw@m
2012 2011
—g-—F -2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBT T
(b) Staff costs (b) BIRK
Contributions to retirement schemes EARETEIHR 16,678 15,170
Equity-settled share-based payment RS EEURA AN
expenses X - 1,940
Salaries, wages and other benefits e  TEREMER 112,483 102,537
129,161 119,647
(c) Auditor’s remuneration (c) BEMM<
Audit services ZEBRTE 2,075 1,861
Tax services TSRS 64 -
Other services HAth iR % 2,221 767
4,360 2,628
(d) Other items (d HftEE
Amortisation of lease prepayments HERENFIREE 2,497 2,203
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#H 26,591 26,785
Depreciation E 173,742 137,096
Provision for warranty costs RARAS 2 Bl 1,672 6,465
Operating lease charges — property REHESH % 1,266 864
Research and development costs SN 5% 90,994 127,979
Impairment of trade debtors FEWE 5 BRFURE 1,159 -
Write-down of inventories FER 154,590 161,701
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#EFIE)

7 Income tax in the consolidated income 7 SZEBRRAREH
statement
(@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents: (a) #HEBERAFMBHAEK:
2012 2011
—E-—=f —E——f
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTRT
Current tax - the PRC ENHERFE I8 — R
Provision for the year FERE - 30,573
Over-provision in respect of prior years B FERERE (5,845) (688)
(5,845) 29,885
Withholding tax FEMB 858 -
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary I ERE 2 IR R E
differences (note 27 (b)) (FFEE27(0)) (18,551) (39,906)
Income tax credit FisRigR (23,538) (10,021)
The statutory tax rate applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries in BE-Z-——FR=-ZF——F+=-A=t-—
Hong Kong is 16.5% for the years ended 31 December 2012 HIEFE  AEEZBEWBARMERZ
and 2011. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been EERESH16.5%  HAREERHWE D =L
made as subsidiaries of the Group either did not have any FEAEMESMNEBIEHNERT A BB
assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax or have AEFERR R BB EE T IKHEFEMEE
accumulated tax losses brought forward from previous years REAE o B EEH B BRERIRE o
to offset the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and regulations of the REXBEZHEE((RBELZ#S D KEE
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and the Cayman Islands, the Group HEBAZE  HARER  AEEZAEH
is not subject to any income tax in the BVI and the Cayman MEMRBELHEEREEHEMEH -

Islands.

104 Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited &} BETRIZ AR B R A 7



7 Income tax in the consolidated income
statement (continued)

@)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:
(continued)

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group were subject to the
following PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) rates for both
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011:

GEBRBERAFMESH @

(@

FRBERAMEHAR ()

REEHERBARRBE-Z—-FK=
-+ A=+ -BLEMEFEERN
THEHNPEREPIEH ([REPEH]) :

Shanghai Jingji Electronic Materials Co., Ltd.
(“Jingji”)

Jinzhou Jingji Solar Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Jinzhou Jingji”)

Jinzhou Rixin Silicon Materials Co., Ltd.
(“Rixin”)

Jinzhou Youhua Silicon Materials Co., Ltd.
(“Youhua Silicon”)

Jinzhou Yangguang Energy. Co., Ltd.
(“Yangguang”) (note)

Jinzhou Jinmao Photovoltaic Technology
Limited (“Jinzhou Jinmao”)

Solargiga Energy (Qinghai) Co., Ltd.
(“Qinghai”)

Jinzhou Huachang Photovoltaic Technology
Company Limited (“Huachang Guangfu”)

(=t 3))

(TR &EE )

((NEE-3))

(TEEERER )

(TR ER% 1)

(=10 )

(TE#EEXKD

Rixin and Yangguang were granted the status of a “High and
New Technology Enterprise” and were entitled to a preferential
CIT rate of 15% for both years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011.

Huachang Guangfu was entitled to a tax holiday of a 2-year
full exemption followed by a 3-year 50% reduction in income
tax rate commencing on 1 January 2008 (“2+3 Tax Holiday”).
Accordingly, Huachang Guangfu is subject to income tax at
12.5% from 2010 to 2012. On the other hand, Huachang
Guangfu was granted the status of a “High and New
Technology Enterprise” in 2011 that entitles it to a preferential
CIT rate of 15% for three years commencing from the year
ended 31 December 2011. As Huachang Guangfu is entitled
to enjoy a lower preferential CIT rate, Huachang Guangfu is
subject to income tax at 12.5% in both 2011 and 2012.

BN BEEMRERAR
WINMEEREMHARAE
RN K RERBIR D)
(T 8B D) (BYEE)
SNSRI RBZERAF

B (EB)BRAH

LEREEFHRBERAR

HMNBRAGRERRARLF

FMNEERRBZERDF

2011

S

%

25 25
25 25
15 15
25 25
15 15
25 25
25 25
12.5 12.5

BERBMNELAEEFI SHMEEE
- WEREBZ-Z——FRK_ZT——F
ToA=t+—BLEFERUS%ZEEFE
FEBRT BN EER -

EEXRBE=-ZENF—A—HHEMER
EREHNRER  HBE=FERE ¥
BRBE(T2+ SHBEERL]) - FHiL - E2
HKRRBE=ZE-—ZFTEE_T—_F 25
BER125% Z—FHHE EEXRR=-Z
—— FER T SRR iy > WERE
BEE-Z——F+-A=+—HLEERE
LL15% T ER B ER REM D EFTER
=F c AREEXREZERBEZLERER
BEHE HEEXRNR _-_ZT——FR=-ZF
——F SR ERE12.5% °
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

7

(AARB5IE)

Income tax in the consolidated income
statement (continued)

(@)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:
(continued)

Under the CIT Law of the PRC and its relevant regulations,
dividends receivable by non-PRC corporate residents from
PRC enterprises are subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%
or 5% for earnings accumulated beginning on 1 January 2008.
Accordingly, for those PRC subsidiaries that are expected
to distribute profits in the foreseeable future, a provision for
withholding tax in respect of the undistributed profits from
the PRC subsidiaries has been made for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2012.

The over-provision in respect of prior years arose from the
reversal of a tax provision upon agreement with the relevant
tax authority on the deductibility of certain expenses.
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7 Income tax in the consolidated income 7 ZEBRRAMEH@
statement (continued)
(b)  Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting (loss)/profit (b) FEERERBAREFE 2 (EBE)

at applicable tax rates: FIEE AR -

2012 2011
—E-——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETR
(Loss)/profit before taxation BELAl (B58),FIE (1,318,591) 34,134
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation MR (EE)  FEzRE/E
calculated at 25% 5% 2 BEE (329,648) 8,534
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses NGRS 62,796 4,880
Tax effect of non-taxable income BANBWA 2 RBELE (14,498) (22)
Effect of tax rate differential TREBEZEE 18,046 (1,984)
Effect of tax concessions obtained FESBES 2% 71,662 (13,420)
De-recognition of deferred tax liabilities EURRRBEIFERDEAE
in respect of previous years’ undistributed EEFIEERE
profits (6,276) -
De-recognition of deferred tax liabilities EBCEBRBIFERRZ
recognised in previous years EREFIEEE (1,574) -
De-recognition of deferred tax assets BUERRBIFERRZ
recognised in previous years EEFIEEE 14,293 561
Effect of unused tax loss not recognised AR ZAREARIESEBZEE 116,427 781
Effect of deductible temporary differences M AR A IR R 5 o S
not recognised 50,170 4,976
Withholding tax on interest income FIEUWAFEFL 858 -
Recognition of deferred tax liabilities 250 SE Al 18 R HERE 2
previously not recognised EERIEEE - (4,329)
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised BABTFESAERZ
in previous years FIEREE = (9,911)
Over-provision in respect of prior years PAFEBERE (5,845) (688)
Others Hith 51 601
Actual tax credit ERHEER (23,538) (10,021)

Annual Report 2012 &3¢ 107



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R BT 5

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#EFI(E)

8 (Loss)/profit attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company

The Company’s loss for the year is RMB438,240,000
(2011: RMB12,448,000). After excluding the write-back of
impairment of interests in subsidiaries of RMB424,252,000 (2011:
RMBNIl), the consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company that has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company is a loss of RMB13,988,000 (2011: RMB12,448,000).

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity shareholders of the
Company are set out in note 9.

9 Dividends
(@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year
The directors of the Company did not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the years ended 31 December
2011 and 2012.

(o) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year

ARSI RAEN (BR) 78

AATRFEEEA ARYA38,240,000T (==
——% : AR#12,448,0007T) > AERAKE A
TEDZEEA R 4242520007 (=F——4F :
ARBER) % > RAAGAEZRREMGEEERA
RK#13,988,000tMEBIB(=ZZ——F : ARY
12,448,0007T) » M E RARA BB IEIRER P EE ©

BN RN DRSR R RS ERN A -

e

() ADEERBRREEFREGRE
AARNEETEHARBE-F——FR=-F

——HF+ A=+ -HILFERERE -

(b) RFAHERZN E—EMBFER
AL T EZRRRE

Final dividend of RMB3.5 cents (HK$4.1 cents) R =B ——F ERHLER

per share in respect of the previous financial A HIKREER ARSI S

year, approved and paid during 2011 (4.17840)

2012 2011
—®-=fF —E2——fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBETR
- 78,476

For the final dividend in respect of the previous financial year,
the difference of RMB15,225,000 between the final dividend of
RMB63,251,000 proposed in 2010 and the amount approved
in 2011 of RMB78,476,000 represented dividends attributable
to new shares issued upon the conversion of convertible
bonds (see note 31(d)) before the closing date of the register of
members.
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BmE—ENBREE2AKERENS =5 —
ETFERIRAHRE ARMEE3,251,000 7T B2 R
— T —FHECSEARKT8,476,0007T
Bz =5 AR#152250007T @ 5 E =i
ERREMA BN ERTRRES (M
31(d)) BB 1T MR A0 Z FEMERR 2. ©



10 (Loss)/earnings per share

(@)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the loss attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of RMB1,276,554,000 (2011: profit attributable
to the ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB54,291,000) and the weighted average of 2,279,802,481
(2011 (restated): 2,237,507,745) ordinary shares of the
Company in issue during the year as calculated as set out in

note 10(b).

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

10 ER(ER) BF

(@

SREN(ER) BF

BREX(BE) BADREAATDEZBER
= R RELE B AR % 1,276,554,000 7T
(ZZ2——F AR AEERERRRFBEA
R #554,291,0007T ) LA R 32 HMizE10(0) AT A =0
STENFERAD R BITEBERMEF TR
£(2,279,802,481 R (= ZF— —F (KEF)
2,237,507, 7458% ) ZBIRETHE ©

TR AT IR E
Number of ordinary shares

EBERHE

(restated)
(&%)

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January

Effect of shares issued upon conversion of
convertible bonds (note 31(d))

Effect of bonus element on shares issued
under open offer (note 31(g))

Effect of shares issued under open offer
(note 31(g))

REARMBERITRG

RN—A—BERTEER
SRR RE SR RATIROD K

NHBEBRITRM ZAF

=2/
%4

2,242,170,425 1,807,170,425

=%

E

Weighted average number of ordinary shares @& i 19 R &

- 404,013,699

25,379,759 26,323,621
12,252,297 -
2,279,802,481 2,237,507,745

Comparative figures for the weighted average number of
ordinary shares for 2011 have been adjusted retrospectively
for the effect of the open offer made in December 2012.

Diluted earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012.

“E-—FEBRMETHELEBRBEFER
“E-HF+-AARBERTESRITRND
2SR

BREEER
RBE-_Z——RkR-_ZF-—-_F+=-A
=S+—HLFE  WEBEHENEBTE
AR o

Annual Report 2012 &3k 109
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11 Directors’ remuneration 11 EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of Hong BRIFEB DRI RMIRENESMEMNT ¢
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

2012
—B-—F
Basic
salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme

in kind contributions
EXxHe -
R BIK
e BYFz FTEIHR et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR¥TR AR%TR AR¥BTR

Executive directors HITES
Tan Wenhua B E - 1,227 14 1,241
Hsu You Yuan RV - 1,373 11 1,384
Zhang Liming REERR - - - -
Tan Xin (notes (i) EEAC ) - 376 25 401
Non-executive directors FHITES
Chiao Ping Hai E¥E 139 - - 139
Independent non-executive BIAFHITES

directors
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert E 0 139 - - 139
Fu Shuangye HRE 139 - - 139
Lin Wen ML 139 - - 139
Zhang Chun RIE 139 - - 139
Total wet 695 2,976 50 3,721
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11 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 11 EEM 2w

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of Hong REFBAAMRAIGIEMEENESHESUT ¢
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: (continued) (48)
2011
=F-—-%
Basic
salaries,
allowances  Retirement Share-based
and benefits scheme payments
Fees inkind contributions  Sub-Total (notes (i)) Total
HEHE YY)
EER BRIk XA
[k EMFIE BEEA et (BEE() HoH

RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTT ARETR ARBTR AR¥TR

Executive directors YITES

Tan Wenhua EBVE - 1,329 40 1,369 327 1,696
Hsu You Yuan By - 1,437 10 1,447 338 1,785
Zhang Liming EEHR - 189 45 234 114 348
Tan Xin (notes (i) EEUED) - - - - - _
Non-executive directors FETES

Chiao Ping Hai E¥E 219 - - 219 - 219
Chong Kin Ngai (notes (i) FRERER (B EEi) 178 - - 178 42 220

Independent non-executive  BUFHTEE

directors

Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Tk 195 - - 195 - 195

Fu Shuangye HERE 195 - - 195 - 195

Lin Wen M 195 - - 195 - 195

Zhang Chun R 195 - - 195 - 195

Total st 1,177 2,955 95 4,227 821 5,048

Notes: B &E -

()  Share-based payments represented the estimated value of shares i) RO ZARED=ZEZLF A= +EAM@STIC
allotted and issued to the directors of STIC on 24 June 2007 for the EEMBERBTRONBE-ZE——F+=8
year ended 31 December 2011. =+— B FENGER -

(i)  Appointed on 28 December 2011. iy R=ZB——F+-—A=+N\BHEZE-

(i) Resigned on 1 December 2011. (i) MA=B——F+=F—HEHME-

Annual Report 2012 &3 111



Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP E

(Expressed in Renminbi)

12 Individuals with highest emoluments

(AARBZIE)

12 RESHMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2011: hER

four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 11. The

BHFMALTHAE=R(Z2——F  EO&)H
B  RENFHRMEVIEE -BSTRE (=2

aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining two (2011: —— & —R)BReHFMATWEMEENT
one) individuals with the highest emoluments are as follows:
2012 2011
ZE—CF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥T T
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind BEXRES  RMREVFIR 908 813
Retirement scheme contributions RIRFHEMHER 14 10
922 823
The emoluments of the remaining two (2011: one) individuals with BTME(ZE——F | —B)BREHMA LHHH
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: BRI
2012 2011
—B—=fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥T T
Nil to HK$1,000,000 F%1,000,000i8 7T 2 1
13 Segment reporting 13 DB E
In @ manner consistent with the way in which information is reported RERAMRRRBIAMGMS - AEERBEAEE
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for BeRTHEERAREREN —B2H @ BR
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, ZEAREDB  ((VABGEERRSRER HEH

112 Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited & ¥

the Group has identified three reportable segments: (i) the
manufacturing of, trading of and provision of processing services
for polysilicon and monocrystalline and multicrystalline silicon solar
ingots/wafers (“Segment A”); and (ii) the manufacturing of and
trading of photovoltaic modules and installation of photovoltaic
systems (“Segment B”) and (iii) the manufacturing and trading of
monocrystalline silicon solar cells (“Segment C”). No operating
segments have been aggregated to form these reportable
segments.

B 5 R (i) APBZREE

HRIERAERAT

85E SERREMZRERMIRBE(28AL
ERELA2REREEURKREGZE ([ 2
RESNHEREE([DH
Cl) o WBMEDHZE DAL E AR E DB ©



13 Segment reporting (continued)

(@)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to the reportable segments which are
presented in the same way in the Group’s financial statements.

(@)

13 D EH/E @)

DHEEE - BERARE
RIEIBRARRDHESBWER » NE
EeRTHREBEAESSERAHRE D HEMN
2#EE > BERBE(EAEEIBERRER
MNAERXE5) - BEAEETRED MHER
WEWT :

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments are

disclosed as follows:

Segment A Segment B Segment C Total
AHA 2B a8 @t
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
—g-cf bl —2-—f Bubleudl —2-—f sl —g-—f ekl
RMB’000 QY000 RMB’000 EERIV=e00l RMB’000 RERIYS{U00M RMB’000 EaIV=HVA0
ARETT BNl ARKTT PN SOl ARETT PV ARETT PNt
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(&=5) (f&E5) (&E5)
Revenue from external  RESHREF 2l
customers 510,375 1038806 = 211,750 693,733 | 274,711 842,130 = 996,836 2,574,669
Inter-segmentrevenue A HEYE 300,086 693,559 - 89,787 91,456 322943 = 391,542 1,106,289
Reportable segment  TH& Mk
revenue 810,461 1,732,365 = 211,750 783520 | 366,167 1,165,073 | 1,388,378 3,680,958
Reportable segment  THEH BB/ (5B
profit/(loss) for the year (724,058) 740 19,595  (14,634) | (590,590) 58,049 (1,295,053) 44,155
Interest income from bank B TEHZFIE K
deposits 3,416 5,186 742 250 272 516 4,430 5,952
Interest expense EE ST (89,051) (56,205 | (9764) (2544 - (12152 (13110) = (110,967)  (71,949)
Depreciation and FRREREH
amortisation for the year (185,231) (112,602 (4,225) (2,825) (63,374) (60,657) | (202,830)  (166,084)
Share of profits less losses  Ef5E S A R FITEREE
of associates 1,511 (54) - - - - 1,511 (54)
Impairment of property, — #1% - BERRXERE
plant and equipment (139,100) - - - (22,100) - (161,200 -
Impairment of goodwil HERE - - - - (208,237) - (208,237) -
Impairment of intangble R EERE
assets - - - - (201,49) - (201,493 -
Impairment of prepayments F&{ B RIE (134,485) - - - - - (134,485 -
Impairment of trade debtors FEIE 5 ERFURIE (1,159) - - - - - (1,159) -
Write-down of inventories & 4 (145,189)  (155,649) (9,401) (4,99) - (1,057) | (154,590)  (161,701)
Reportable segment ~ THEHBEE
assets 3,046,828 3,702,930 | 216,074 211,237 | 681,756 1,134,468 = 3,944,658 5,048,685
(including interests in (BRREENT2ER)
associates) 124,457 256,748 - - - - 124,457 256,748
Additions to non-current  WERFERBHIHEER M
segment assets during
the year 165,014 1,161,690 372 19,686 185 843607 = 165571 2,024,983
Reportable segment RELHEE
liabilities 2,530,046 2,442,048 160,153 155,815 203,229 177,926 |« 2,893,428 2,775,789
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥5I{E)

13 Segment reporting (continued) 13 D EFHE @)
(b) Geographic information (o) HEEF
Substantially all of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, AEBYE - BMERRE  HEEMNNE -
lease prepayments, goodwill, intangible assets and interest in BE EFEERRBEQRNERURF
an associate are located or operated in the PRC. The following BRRPELE - TREBIEBAEERE
table sets out information about the geographical location of HNRAEF WS R IERETESRIEMEH T
the Group’s revenue from external customers and non-current B c REEMURINE RRIZHBHEN
prepayment. The geographical location of customers is based ith B A 4% ©

on the location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered.

()  Revenue from external customers ()  KESNSREFHIK

2012 2011

—B-—fF B

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTT

(restated)

(#e&E51)

The PRC (place of domicile) AR ER R BE (Rt 2E) 541,816 1,199,344
Export sales HOsE

—Japan — B 281,928 539,332

— Spain — s 94,459 70,117

— Taiwan —-/8 51,255 41,392

— Germany —1EE 16,529 163,165

— The United Kingdom —HE 5,558 288,847

— The United States of America —£H 5,285 265,334

— France —£E 6 -

— Canada —mEX - 7,138

Sub-total PN 455,020 1,375,325

Total e 996,836 2,574,669

(i) Non-current prepayments (i) FEHEFEIFE

2012 2011

—B-—=% 2%

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBFT

The PRC (place of domicilg) AP (EE i 26) 51,905
Overseas countries BINER

- Germany — B 132,939 157,981

— The United States of America —%HE 98,997 199,739

— Taiwan —-/8 62,601 39,609

Sub-total N 294,537 397,329

Total st 321,125 449,234
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14 Property, plant and equipment 14 Y% - BERRE

(@ The Group @ AE&EE
Plant,
machinery Fumniture
Construction and Motor and
in progress Buildings equipment vehicles fittings Total
BE - ## AR
ERTR BF e AE EE%E &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Cost: B

At 1 January 2011 RZE—-%-F-H 458,135 138,793 709,970 14,131 12,954 1,333,983
Exchange adjustments B3 3% - - - - (122) (122)
Additions RE 721,831 655 31,306 8,097 1,567 763,456
Acquisition of subsidiaries EBUEK B 128,437 46,978 133,327 417 1,022 314,541
Disposals e - - (99) (2,387) (31) (2,517)
Transfers a5 (833,724) 77,069 755,148 - 1,507 -
At 31 December 2011 R=E--#+=A=+-H 474,679 263,495 1,629,662 24,618 16,897 2,409,341
Accumulated 2iHE

depreciation:

At 1 January 2011 RZE-——%-f—-H - 6,968 117,759 5,683 6,624 136,934
Exchange adjustments  [E 5 8% - - - - (48) (48)
Chargefortheyear — FEIE - 8497 120,908 4,464 3207 137,006
Written back on disposals &R - - (44) (1,597) (10 (1,651)
At 31 December 2011 R-E——F+-A=1-A - 15,465 238,623 8,650 9,693 272,331
Net book value: REFE:

At 31 December 2011 RZE——%+Zf=1-H 474,679 248,030 1,391,029 16,068 7,204 2,137,010
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(AAREZIE)

14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(@ The Group (continued)

14

M~ BENRE®
(a) ZREE @)

Plant,
machinery Furniture
Construction and Motor and
in progress Buildings  equipment vehicles fittings Total
BB - #e FER
ERIR BF e AE BERE by
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost: 7%
At1 January 2012 R-ZE-—%-F-H 474,679 263,495 1,629,652 24,618 16,897 2,409,341
Exchange adjustments ERfg - - = = (1) (1)
Additions RE 107,156 1,267 3,248 121 3,824 115,616
Transfers EEE (114,432 17,750 96,608 - 74 -
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZF+ZA=1-H 467,403 282,512 1,729,508 24,739 20,794 2,524,956
Accumulated depreciation B TERAEEE
and impairment losses:
At1 January 2012 R-E-—f-F-8 - 15,465 238,623 8,550 9,693 272,331
Exchange adjustments ERAE - - - - (1) (1)
Impairment losses HEEE - - 161,200 - - 161,200
Charge for the year FENE - 13,268 152,573 4,722 3,179 173,742
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—F+-A=1-8 - 28,733 552,396 13,272 12,871 607,272
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—f+-A=1-H 467,403 253,779 1,177,112 11,467 7,923 1,917,684
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14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(o) The Company

14 Y% - BERRE @
b) A&AT

Office equipment

 NEE g
RMB’000
ARBFT
Cost: BN
At 1 January 2011 R-—Z——%—HA—H 107
Exchange adjustments [E R ©)
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——%+=-HA=+—H 102
Accumulated depreciation: HZIHE
At 1 January 2011 R-ZB——%—-A—H 72
Exchange adjustments ERAR (©)
Charge for the year FENE 21
At 31 December 2011 R=ZB——%+=B=+—8H 90
Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 December 2011 R—ZE——%+=-A=+—H 12

Office equipment

WD ERRME
RMB’000
ARBETT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2012 R-—E=——-%—F—H 102
Exchange adjustments [E Q)
At 31 December 2012 N-E——%+=-HA=+—H 101
Accumulated depreciation: i E
At 1 January 2012 R-—Z——%—A—H 90
Exchange adjustments ERAZ M
Charge for the year FENE 12
At 31 December 2012 R-—ZE——%+=-A=+—H 101

Net book value:
At 31 December 2012

BRI FHE
R-E-—ZF+ZA=+—H
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(AARB5IE)

14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(©)

(d)

Substantially all of the Group’s property, plant and equipment is
located in the PRC.

The Group has yet to obtain property ownership certificates
for certain buildings with an aggregate net book value
of RMB247,143,800 (2011: RMB221,282,000) as at 31
December 2012. Notwithstanding this, the directors are of
the opinion that the Group owned the beneficial title to these
buildings as at 31 December 2012.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

In view of the current solar market situation, the Group
assessed the recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment of each cash-generating unit (“CGU”). As a result,
the carrying amount of certain property, plant and equipment
was written down by RMB161,200,000 (2011: RMBNIl). The
estimated recoverable amounts were based on the value in
use of each individual CGU determined by the estimated future
cash flows discounted at a pre-tax discount rate which ranged
from 16.5% to 18.6%.

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out a limited portion of land and buildings
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an average
period of twenty years, with an option to renew the leases
upon expiry at which time all terms are renegotiated. None of
the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

14 ¥ -~ BERRE @

(©

(d)

REBEEYIE - BERRBIIURFE

AEEEAESETEFTNERIEREE
R-ZZB——-F+=-A=+—H  ZZE2FN
IREFEAEAARY247,143,800 (=&
——& : AR#221,282,0007T) o A - &
ERAREER=_Z——F+=-H=+-—H
BEZEETNERERE -

M - BMERZRERE
BREAMAGRETSNTR  AEBFES
REELEN(REEEEN])NYWE -
MERZENTRE S5 - Bt &F
Y% BMERIENEAECSHEARE
161,200,000t (= ——F : AR¥EZT) ©
FEHAERSEDERMETRRBELSRER
BREATBEIE EN F16.5% 2 18.6%HRERR
SELSENVNEABEEE

REBCEHELHCEEEE
FEBRECEEE NG N BH L RIS
F o ZFHE-RFIH/P=-+F  ARE
MEREEEAE  IERISRERARE
HRER o REHES TEERAAES

REBERBETAIEHESEHERKZ KRR
EEERUT :

The Group
FEE

2012 2011
—g——%F —E——f
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Within 1 year —FR 1,728 1,728
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREBEREER 6,911 6,911
After 5 years HF% 6,695 8,423
15,334 17,062
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15 Intangible assets 15 |LEE

The Group
REE
Customer Customer
relationships contracts Patents Total
EFER% EFEH =R HEt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®BTR ARBTT AR®BTR

Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2011 HN-oTE——F—HF—H - - - -
Through acquisition of subsidiaries 3% iB UK BB E A T 185,230 2,411 67,228 254,869
At 31 December 2011 HR-_E——F
+=ZB=+—H 185,230 2,411 67,228 254,869
Accumulated amortisation: ZETEN
At 1 January 2011 N-s——F—H—H - - - -
Charge for the year FEEH 16,979 2,411 7,395 26,785
At 31 December 2011 HN-_T——F
+=A=+—H 16,979 2,411 7,395 26,785
Net book value: BRIEDFE !
At 31 December 2011 HR-TB——F
+=—A=+—H 168,251 - 59,833 228,084
The Group
rEE
Customer Customer
relationships contracts Patents Total
EFR%F BEFEE =R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR AR¥TR AR¥TR
Cost: A :

At 1 January and 31 December 2012  RZZE——F—-A—HRK
+=ZA=+—H 185,230 2,411 67,228 254,869

Accumulated amortisation and REtBERRERSE
impairment losses:

At 1 January 2012 R=—Z-——%—-A—H 16,979 2,411 7,395 26,785
Charge for the year FEHH 18,524 = 8,067 26,591
Impairment loss WEEE 149,727 = 51,766 201,493
At 31 December 2012 RZB-ZH+ZHA=+-

H 185,230 2,411 67,228 254,869
Net book value: HRIERE
At 31 December 2012 R-ZB-—=F

+=A=t-A - - > -
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15 Intangible assets (continued) 15 BEE @)

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets and goodwill as disclosed in note 16 are related to
the Group’s Segment C (see note 13) which is considered to be a
CGU.

Since the last quarter of 2011, the Group’s solar cell business has
been severely affected by the weak demand of the solar market
and the significant drop in prices of solar products. As such, the
Group has recognised impairment of intangible assets and goodwill
of RMB201,493,000 and RMB208,237,000 respectively which has
been determined with reference to the recoverable amount of the
CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated rates stated below.

FEHBHERAC T AGRSRERMTHMARZ - -

BAEE16FTIRE - BERENEEEAEE D
C(RMFE13) B - BRRARTELEM(REE
LB o

—H#R =T —FENTER > AEEZABGES
MEBRAGRENSEREAMIIBREFE > X
GEHERZERARBTE® - At 2RBESELE
Iz ARE£3E  AEEER-Z——FERIAEF
EERBEBRES B A ARY201,493,0007T & A
R#208,237,0007T °

R4 ESEN2ARESHEIERELBERET
B EREEREEECRENSFMBET 2
REREMe - BESFHENRSREBLUTE
pillgess a3

2011
—E——fF
%

Growth rate BR=E
Discount rate =

The growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the business in which the CGU operates. The discount rate used
is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the segment.
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16 Goodwill 16 BE

The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—g-=fF —2——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
Cost: BN
At 1 January R—B—A 208,237 -
Through acquisition of subsidiary (note 39(c)) FEBUYEEMB 2 7 (MIEE39(0) - 208,237
At 31 December Nt+=-—BA=+—H 208,237 208,237
Accumulated impairment losses: ZrHRERE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—-BAKR+=B=+—H (208,237) -
Carrying amount: BREIME :
At 31 December R+=B=+—H8 - 208,237
As disclosed in note 15, goodwill of RMB208,237,000 has been fully HAMTEE15TIRE - B8 AR ¥208,237,0007TtE
impaired during the year ended 31 December 2012. REBE-ZE——F+-_A=1t—HLEFERBEHR

{Eo
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17 Lease prepayments 17 HEFENRIE
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—g-——f —2——f
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARET R
Cost: BN :
As at 1 January m—HA—H 110,081 72,420
Additions NE - 37,661
As at 31 December W+=-—A=+—8” 110,081 110,081
Accumulated amortisation: Extiey -
As at 1 January W—A—A” 6,223 4,020
Charge for the year FEHHE 2,497 2,203
As at 31 December W+=—BA=+—H 8,720 6,223
Net book value: FREFE :
As at 31 December R+=—B=+—H 101,361 103,858
Lease prepayments represent the cost of land use rights in respect HEENRIERRUNPE 2 T it
of land located in the PRC, which expire from 2030 to 2059. ERA  ZE51riERAEEE S =2FEE -

FEhFER
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18

Prepayments for raw materials

In order to secure a stable supply of polysilicon materials, the Group
entered into short-term and long-term contracts with certain raw
material suppliers and made advance payments to these suppliers
which are to be offset against future purchases. Prepayments
for raw materials where the Group expects to take delivery of
inventory more than twelve months after the end of the reporting
period are classified as non-current assets. Included in non-current
prepayments for raw materials are prepayments made to related
parties of RMB76,591,000 (31 December 2011: RMB39,609,000) as
at 31 December 2012 (note 32).

As at 31 December 2012, management has assessed prepayments
for potential impairment and identified that two of the suppliers are in
financial difficulties and may default on the delivery of raw materials
to the Group. Management has discussed the possibility of recovery
of the prepayments concerned with the Group’s legal counsel and
are of the opinion that the chance of recovery of such prepayments
is remote. As such, prepayments totalling RMB134,485,000 have
been fully provided for during the year.

18 EMBANKE

ARREBESLRERMHEE  AEBEEE TR
MEMBEERT L EHR RSO mZE MRS
RHFEMNFRIE > ZEREKR ARBERIKE - WK
SEEPRREHEAER AT —EAALAEE
FEZEMPMEH ZFENRE  RELR2ERHE
REBEE - N=Z——-F+=A=+—H8  5A¥
RENZEMAFENREALZ S FEEA L ZBARK
BHAR¥76,591,000t (= E——F+=-A=+—
B : AR%39,609,0007T) (FizE32) °

REZB-——F+-A=+—H EEECHATR
82 BIEREAF HETE - WHERR W AR T H R
B RIE I A REEE M AR B RSB R - EEE
BRI BT RIE 2 AT R AT A R 0 AR AW E
ZETENTARERE - Bt BERBEREH
ABR#134,485,0007T 2 FE FRIRME HZE BB o

19 Interests in subsidiaries 19 RIIB QRN ER
The Group
K
2012 2011
—B-—=f —E——f
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Unlisted shares, at cost at 1 January N—A—BHELTRH » BRAK 753,951 147,456
Exchange adjustment E L% 139 (37,786)
Capital contribution HE - 644,281
Unlisted shares, at cost at 31 December R+=ZA=+—BAM3kELHmR7E
B 754,090 753,951
Impairment losses BEEE (424,252) -
329,838 753,951
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURF B A RIFRIE 689,862 689,646
1,019,700 1,443,597

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed term of repayment. The amounts are not expected to
be recovered within one year.

BYRHEARRBREER  REREEEAME
HiRR - ZEREL A —FRWE -
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19 Interests in subsidiaries (continueq)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, impairment losses
of RMB424,252,000 (2011: RMBNIl) was recognised in profit or
loss which was attributable to the deterioration of subsidiaries’
business performances giving rise to an unfavourable change to the
recoverable amount which was determined based on the present
value of the expected cash flows arising from the subsidiaries’
operations. The discount rate applied to the future cash flows was

16.5%.

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

19 R B2 TR @)
BE-ZT——F+-A=1+—H REGEBARE
424,252 0007t (= ZF——F : ARBEZ ) RER
BR > HDRKBLARNEEREEEZMEZRE
MBAREE-EHRSABEEE 2T RE S
BEHBEAFEE  EARARRESRZBEREER

16.5% °
TRESEIEZENEEXE  EENBBENHE
DRWFHE © BRIFZ B - FIFENRDERS
EER -

Proportion of ownership interest

FE R LB
Place and date of  Authorised/ Group’s
incorporation/ registered/paid-in/  effective held by the held by a
Name of company operation issued capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
Bl A R/ 2 AEEN  BERLE H-HERE
NGRS REWER A B/ BRTER BRER BE QARRAE IEEK EERR
% % %

Jinzhou Rixin Silicon The PRC Registered and 100 - 100 Manufacturing and  Limited liability
Materials Co., Ltd. 9 May 2007 paid-in capital of processing of company
(‘Rixin”) HE RMB190,000,000 monocrystaline  BREEAT

R B FEEA R ZERLF AMREHER ingots/wafers
BRAR (TAE]) TANA AR HERMT

190,000,0007¢ BREREER

Jinzhou Jingji Solar The PRC Registered and 100 - 100 Manufacturing and  Limited liability
Technology Co., Ltd. 9 December 2007 paid-in capital of processing of company
(“Jinzhou Jingji”) HE US$17,500,000 monocrystaline  BREFEAF

WM B R ABGEERE —TELHF AMREHER wafers
BRAF T=ANA 17,500,000 7T ERMIERER
(TeRM@R1)

Jinzhou Yangguang The PRC Registered and 100 - 100 Manufacturing and  Limited liability
Energy Co., Ltd. 15 December 2004 paid-in capital of processing of company
(“Jinzhou Yangguang”) & RMB890,000,000 monocrystaline  BRREFEAF

BMNEHEEERAT —EENF HMREHER and mutticrystalline
(TERMEEk]) +ZAtEH AR ingots/wafers

890,000,0007¢ BERNTIES
SRR/ R

Jinzhou Youhua Silicon  The PRC Registered and 100 - 100 Manufacturing and  Limited liability
Materials Co., Ltd. 13 September 2008  paid-in capital of processing of company
(“Youhua Silicon”) H RMB200,000,000 monocrystaline  BREEAT

SMREENEER —TENE AMREHER ingots/wafers
AR (AR ]) AAT=H AR BEERMT

200,000,0007% BRER/ER
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19 Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date of

Authorised/

19 KRB R TR ER @)

Proportion of ownership interest

ikeE g ]

Group’s

incorporation/ registered/paid-in/  effective held by the held by a
Name of company operation issued capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
MR RS AEEN  AERQE H-HERE
NRER REWBR AH BY BRTER B ER BE QARRKAE IEXEK EERR
% % %

Shanghai Jingji The PRC Registered and 100 - 100 Processing and Limited liability
Electronic Materials 16 March 1998 paid-in capital of trading of company
Co., Ltd. (“Jingji") H US$6,950,000 polysiiconand ~ BREELXF

DESEEFIH —hWANE TMREHER monocrystalline
BRAR ([&#]) ZAt7H 6,950,000 7T ingots/wafers

MIREEZSER
BREE TR

Solar Technology Cayman Islands Authorised capital of 100 100 - Investment holding Limited liability
Investment (Cayman) 15 December 2006 HK$400,000,000 of REER company
Corp. (STIC) HEHE HK$0.10 each and EREAAT

—EERE issued share capital
+=A+EA of HK$167,895,494
TEEEZR400,000,000
B BREE
0.10BTREH#T
Pt 7167,895,494
BT
Wealthy Rise Hong Kong Authorised share 100 - 100  Trading of Limited liability
International Limited 21 June 2007 capital of polysilicon and company
&8 HK$10,000 of HK$1 monocrystaline  BREEAT
b 35 o3 each and issued ingots/wafers
~A=+—H share capital of BEL&EE
HK$1 Eaaﬁﬁ/ﬁ)ﬂf N
SEERRA<10,000 K58 RAH
B BREE
1BTREET
RAR1E T

Jinzhou Jinmao The PRC Registered and 51 - 51 Manufacturing of  Limited liability
Photovoltaic 17 July 2009 paid-in capital of photovoltaic company
Technology Limited & RMB40,000,000 modules and BREAFLH
(“Jinzhou Jinmao”) “ZThE AMRELER design and

MR RR tA+tH AEH#40,000,0005T installation of
BRAF photovoltaic
(TR MsaRt] ) systems

BERRBAEUR
Rt Rz EHRNR
X
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19 Interests in subsidiaries (continueq)

Place and date of

Authorised/

19 RAKME R TR ER @)

Proportion of ownership interest

P sl

Group’s

incorporation/ registered/paid-in/  effective held by the held by a
Name of company operation issued capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
EMRL, EE /S AEEN  AERLE H-HERE
NRER RewHRAH BH/ERTELR B ER BE ARRAE IEXK EERR
% % %

Solargiga Energy (Hong Hong Kong Authorised share 100 100 - Investment holding  Limited liability
Kong) Company 4 February 2009 capital of REER company
Limited B HK$10,000 of HK$1 BERERAH

BHEER (BB) “2EThEF each and issued
BRAH —AlA share capital of

HK$1
EERA10,000
B 8REE
1BTREBT
AR1E T

Silicon Solar Materials ~ Hong Kong Authorised share 100 - 100 Investment holding  Limited liability
Company Limited 28 November 2008  capital of REEZER company

KIFEEREMBMBRAE &8 HK$10,000 of HK$1 BREERE

—EENE each and issued
+—A=t+NR share capital of
HK$1
EEMRA10,000
B 8REE
1BTREBT
BAR1E T

GREERE R The PRC Registered and 51 - 51 Manufacturing of  Limited liability
BRAH 6 July 2010 paid-in capital of monocrystaline  company
(“Qinghai”) HE RMB90,000,000 ignots BREELT

(I&E8Ex]) —2-%F HMKEEHER BEE R
+tAKH AK%90,000,0005T

Sino Light Investments  British Virgin Islands  Authorized capital 100 - 100 Investment holding  Limited liability
Limited 2 December 2009 of US$500,000 of REER company

EERUFEE US$0.001 each and BREAFLH
“TENE issued share capital
+=-HA=H of US$53,920
FEEE 500,000
Zrn SREE
0.001ETRE %
TIRAR53,920% 7T
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19 Interests in subsidiaries (continued) 19 R B TR @)

Proportion of ownership interest

B LAl
Place and date of  Authorised/ Group’s
incorporation/ registered/paid-in/  effective held by the held by a
Name of company operation issued capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
Bl A EE/ S FEEH  AXRF H—ERE
NEERE K& BR A BH BRTER BRES BE DERE TEER EERR
% % %

You Xin Investments Hong Kong Authorized and issue 100 - 100 Investment holding  Limited liability
Limited 29 July 2009 share capital of REER company
HEREERAH E HK$100,000 of BREAAA

—EEHhE HK$1 each
tA=+hA EERBBITRA
100,000/ 7T »
SREETET
Jinzhou Huachang The PRC Registered and paid- 100 - 100 Manufacturing and  Limited liability
Photovoltaic 23 October 2006 in capital of RMB trading of solar company
Technology Company 1] 130,000,000 cells BERERAT
Limited —TERE AMREHER BERBEARGR
FMEE SRR TA=+=H AR Bt
BRAF 130,000,0007T
Jinzhou Solar TechnologyThe PRC Registered and paid- 100 - 100 Manufacturing of  Limited liability
Company Limited 18 August 2011 in capital of RMB solar modules and  company
SN KFRERE  FE 51,000,000 import of related  BREEAT
BRAT —T——F HMREHERAR equipments
T—A+NH #£51,000,0007¢ BUERIGRERAR
ENHBER
20 Interests in associates 20 REtE ATIHIRER
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET
Share of net assets EEEEFE 124,457 122,946
Amount due from an associate (note 22(d)) FEUR — Bt N T 7R E (B EE22(d)) - 133,802

124,457 256,748
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20 Interests in associates (continued)

The following list contains the particular of the associates, which are

unlisted corporate entities:

Place of

20 REE RTINS @

TREFIKE ATNE - HBFLEHLRER !

Proportion of
ownership interest

Particulars of
Form of business establishment registered and

BEEERRERLA
Group’s
effective Held by

Name of associate structure and operation paid-in capital interest a subsidiary Principal activities
AR HRRES rEE — R H R
BENR AR EBREEFR R B BEFHE BERER DRAFE TEEE
% %

Jinzhou Aoke New Incorporated The PRC RMB 200,000,000 37 37 Manufacturing and
Energy Co., Ltd. AL Hh AR processing of
(“Aoke”) 200,000,0007T polycrystalline ingots/

TR RE KHEER wafers
BRAR(TERR]) BERNIZES

BEgE R
BEKGLERE Incorporated The PRC RMB 49 49 Construction of
BRAT MR ) 1,000,000,000 photovoltaic power
AREE plant and sales of
1,000,000,0007T solar modules
ERAREBURFEE

Summary financial information on the associates:

NEEZE

REE A RNMHEREE

Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit/(loss)
BE aE R W SRR (ER)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR AR®TRT AR®BTxR
2012 —E-——F
100 per cent 1008241 583,557 280,831 302,726 7,857 2,873
Group’s effective interest A< £ B B 250,799 126,342 124,457 3,850 1,511
2011 —EgE——F
100 per cent 1008241 613,329 313,475 299,854 - (145)
Group’s effective interest A< £ B B R % 270,979 148,033 122,946 - (54)

128 Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited [& Y BETRIZ AR B R A 7



21 Inventories 21 B8
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position (a) HEFBRRERZEFERRE
comprise:
The Group
REE
2012 2011
—B-—=f —E——f
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
(restated)
(&=E75)
Raw materials AT 197,282 189,421
Work-in-progress TEE8GR 44,744 28,401
Finished goods B G 182,161 151,106
424,187 368,928
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an (b)) BRAZENEELEINNOT :
expense is as follows:
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
(restated)
(F=E7)
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENRAE 1,133,630 2,159,120
Write-down of inventories FEMR 154,590 161,701
1,288,220 2,320,821

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, certain
inventories were written down to their net realisable value due
to the drop in market price of solar products. The write-down of
inventories has been charged to cost of sales in the consolidated
income statement.

BE-_Z-—FR-F-—Ft-A=t+-HALF
E &THFERAGEERDETKMMEEET
BRFE - FEMECRESRRRZEANE
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22 Trade and other receivables

22 EWE SRR E A ERFIER

The Group The Company
rEH PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F —E-—fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTT AR¥ T ARET R
(restated)
(&E75))
Trade debtors and bills receivable  JEWB SRR R =i
(note 22(a)) (KizE22(2)) 279,594 181,591 = -
Prepayments for raw materials FEMRTEN TR
(notes 18 and 22(b)) (FFEE18%22(b)) 53,615 53,101 = -
Value-added tax recoverable AT e E R 193,386 188,337 = -
Deposits and other receivables ReRHMEKRRE
(note 22(c)) (F¥EE22(c) 75,350 66,161 235 235
Amount due from an associate PR —REEE N RIRRIE
(note 22(d)) (FtEE22(d)) 118,802 - - -
Other receivable from a processing U —&ZMIEFH
customer Hibzh\ - 45,655 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E ] - - 9,516 750,897
720,747 534,845 9,751 751,132

All the trade and other receivables (including amounts due from
subsidiaries) are expected to be recovered or recognised as
expense within one year.

(@)

Included in trade debtors and bills receivable are bills
receivable of RMB18,522,000 (2011: RMBNIl) which have
been pledged as security to a bank for issuing certain bills to
settle balances with suppliers.

At 31 December 2011, included in trade debtors and bills
receivable was an amount due from a related party of
RMB400,000 (note 32(d)).

Included in prepayments are prepayments made to related
parties of RMB20,867,000 (2011: RMB39,609,000) as at 31
December 2012 (note 32(d)).

Included in deposits and other receivables is an amount due
from a related party of RMB3,045,000 (2011: RMB3,045,000)
as at 31 December 2012 (note 32(d)).
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TEHIF AW E 5 MR B AR WG E (BRI
MBARFR) N - FAKRERER DX

(@)

BURESZERARZEEERRIEARYE
18,522,000t (=& ——%F : AR¥ZER) -
WEEAFRITERBRTE TESHERS
B2 RIBZIERG o

REZ2——F+ZA=+—H EBRESRK
RREBEEEER-—ERESTREARY
400,000t (HMtzE32(d)) °

R-ZZE-—-—F+=-A=+—H  BHEXRK
BEEIXAFHEINBESAREAR
#20,867,000 T (ZF——F : AR¥
39,609,0007¢) (MtzE32(d)) °

R-Z——F+=-A=+—8 ELEENIRER
EREMERRECTERER - BBEELX
BARMG045000(ZF——F : AR
3,045,0007t) (FzE32(d)) ©



22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(d)

At 31 December 2011, an amount due from an associate of
RMB133,802,000 was included in interest in associates as the
balance was not expected to be recovered within one year. In
2012, an agreement has been reached with the associate to
settle the balance within one year. Accordingly, the balance
has been reclassified from non-current assets to current
assets and is included in deposits and other receivables at 31
December 2012.

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable (net of
allowance for doubtful debts) based on invoice date as of the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

22 EWE SRR EMEKRTRIE

(@

G

R=Z2——%+=A=+—8" FEH&—FW?“
&N E T IE A R #188,802,000t E 5t AR
BENR 2R RESBAREHREEER
—FRlE RZF--F  CHEHZBELQ
BRI Mtk AT AR —FREERERR - B
I R=ZFB-—-F+ZA=1t—H ' &L
BIERBDEEEN I BERDERE - AFTA
RERHAERTIE

RB|ERREEH  HBRRERBERNER
B RANZBNRRZBEZEHOMAT ¢

The Group
rEER

2012 2011
—E2-——F —EF——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARET T
Within 1 month —@EAR 143,109 105,296
1 to 3 months —Z=1@A 36,067 30,074
3 to 6 months =ZXEA 55,559 41,463
6 to 12 months RETZEA 22,395 4,758
Over 1 year BB 22,464 -
279,594 181,591

Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of
billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in note 36(a).

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade debtors and bills receivable directly (see note 1(j)(i).
During the year ended 31 December 2012, trade debtors
of the Group totalling RMB1,159,000 (2011: RMBNIl) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that all receivables are
not expected to be recovered. Accordingly, specific allowances
for doubtful debts of RMB1,159,000 (2011: RMBNiIl) were
recognised as at 31 December 2012.

FEW E 5 8RR Ty B 3 R B HE5T302 90 H
REH - AEBEEBRZ2E-SHBERR
HizE36(a)

EWE SRR R EHERE

FEWE 3 8RR m#m@%ﬁﬁh)ﬂﬁéﬁsﬂﬁ
8% 0 BRIEAREEMA G IRE FRIE M A G R
& REBERT  RESEEEZEEERE
ZIRA R ZEME (RITE100) - BE=Z
——E+ZA=1+—HIEE FEEEWK
ESRFAHEARYE1,150,000t (= F——
F:ARBZT)ERECHCREE - ERE

/JEMEFEH& AREBE U ERENETFEE
BB AT fh TR AT A R W IE A T RE W
B RFit ER=Z—=—F+=-HA=+—H

TR IRERISRIEE A REE1,159,0007T (=
T——F : AREZT) -
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22 Trade and other receivables (continued) 22 FEWNE FRRF N H b FE W R IE ()
(9 Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not (0) YERENEWEZREREE
impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable b 4 B 25 [ AR AR E A FE UK B 5 BR X
that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be REEZRRIMAOT :

impaired are as follows:

The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—B-—F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Neither past due nor impaired WA HA SR E 188,926 134,143
Less than 1 month past due BELR—EA 44,149 26,009
1 to 3 months past due BE—Z=EA 10,940 2,755
4 to 6 months past due BN ZE NE A 4,134 17,288
7 to 12 months past due mEtEZEZ+ @A 11,555 1,396
Over 1 year past due BHI—F L 19,890 _
90,668 47,448
279,594 181,591
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a b 458 360 HA =5 50 (=2 B I SR IR B 25 2 3 4 3 AR
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history RAFCHENEFEE -
of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a B SR U BB 3 SR B M E R E AR
number of individual customers that have a good track record LEREBERIFFELEZNENEFEE - R
with the Group. Based on past experience, management BUERER  ANEEERYEBEARE
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect BRAZSERNUT2EWE - EEEMEE
of these balances as there has not been a significant change BERZSERTRBERE - AEENE
in credit quality and the balance are still considered fully MRS RSB AR -
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
(h) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- () EEHBEARREREERE REREARE
free and recoverable on demand. SRIEE o
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23 Pledged bank deposits 23 CEARITER

Certain of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged to secure AEEETROTFARCHRAEEER 2B THRTR
certain banking facilities granted to the Group as follows: EEHEA > HH0T
The Group
rEH
2012 2011
—B——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
Pledged as security for bills payable HREAENEE ZIKHR 116,129 114,022
Pledged as security for bank loans RIRERIRITERZIRIFR 24,089 15,821
Guarantee deposits for issuance of letters of credit EBIEA R HERE 2 FERIER 33,311 1,024
Guarantee deposits for performance on sales of EREREMIHEERZTFRIER
goods - 20,815
Others Hitb 705 -
174,234 151,682
The effective annual interest rate for pledged deposits with banks R=F-—=F+=A=+—0  ERARFRIONG
was 0.81% (2011: 0.45%) as at 31 December 2012. RNERFRER0SIE(=F——F 1 045F)
- 4=
24 Cash at bank and in hand 24 |ITRFREAE
The Group The Company
AEH ZAN|

2012 2011 2012 2011
N e T el T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE%Tn MONCEESEH AR%Ti NS

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 153,793 583,743 1,363 1,421

Deposits with banks with original ~ FREIEAR A=188 LL L&
maturity over three months RITER (20,000) (23,770)

Cash and cash equivalents inthe  ZABREZERNESR

consolidated cash flow statement  R&ZEY) 133,793 559,973

Cash at bank and in hand totalling RMB59,767,000 (2011: RZE—Z-—HF+-HA=+—H RITEFEZRRER
RMB470,047,000) as at 31 December 2012 is denominated in S HARYSI, 767,000 (ZF——F : AR
RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of 470,047,0007T) AN REESIE - \RERBTAEH
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by HgpEl  BREERNEHESEZPEBUFHINE
the PRC government. EHIIRPR ©

The effective annual interest rate for deposits with banks was 2.62% RZB——F+-A=+—H8  RITEAZBEBRF
(2011: 2.93%) as at 31 December 2012, FEB2.62B(=F——5F : 2.93E) °
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25 Trade and other payables 25 ENEZRAREMEMSFIE
The Group The Company
AEE ¥ NN

2012 2011 2012 2011
el Bt-l —T— i el et T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T AR¥T AREFTT

Trade payables (note 25(a)) S E 5 BRX (FiEE25(0)) 343,927 103,636 = -
Bills payable (note 25(b)) FESZ & (BiEF25(0)) 235,732 252,701 = -
Other payables and accrued HibEAFRRIE R ETR X
expenses 221,502 235,574 9,678 7,232
Receipt in advance W E 44,937 48,743 - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHEBARRIE
(note 25(c)) (P EE25(c)) - - 10,527 16,005
846,098 640,654 20,205 23,237
All of the trade and other payables (including amounts due to FEEFTE I E SRR R HMEMA B (BEES
subsidiaries) are expected to be settled within one year. MEBARZRE) R —FRER
(@) The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables based on () REEHELER ENZEZRAREEN
invoice date as of the end of the reporting period is as follows: BREIZBZ AT ¢
The Group
KEH
2012 2011
—B-—fF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR
Within 1 month —@AR 190,741 307,386
1-8 months —Z2={@A 121,069 20,554
4-6 months Mz NEA8 179,243 9,999
7-12 months +tZ+ @A 68,083 1,415
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREWFER 20,523 16,983
579,659 356,337
Included in trade and bills payables are amounts due to NR-ZB——E+=-A=+—HB ENESK
related parties of RMB29,089,000 (2011: RMB921,000) at 31 FETEEBE S FRIE A K ¥ 29,089,000
December 2012 (note 32(e)). T(=B——F : AR#921,0007T) (H&E
32(¢)) °
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25 Trade and other payables (continued) 25 EHEZERERREMEMARIE@
(b) The Group’s bills payable of RMB235,732,000 (2011: b) R==2—=F+=-A=+—H8 F~EEE

(©

RMB252,701,000) as at 31 December 2012 are secured by
the Group’s bills receivable of RMB18,522,000 (2011: RMBNIil)
(note 22(a)) and bank deposits of RMB116,129,000 (2011:
RMB114,022,000) (note 23).

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

(©

$ 2 ZHE AR ¥235,732,000T (=& ——
£ AR ¥252,701,0007 ) LA & B FE 1S
ZEBEARY18522,000T (=B ——&F :
ARBER) (ME220@)) REBETERAR
#116,129000 t (ZZE ——F : AR¥
114,022,0007t) (FizE23) fE R ©

EAHEADRERMER RS RARE
SRR -

26 Interest-bearing borrowings 26 ;TEEE
(@) At 31 December 2012, the bank loans were repayable as (8 R=ZE——-—F+=-A=+—H BFHEEZ
follow: IRITEFRWT :
The Group The Company
AEH KATF
2012 2011 2012 2011
LS —T -5 WL Rl —T-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT BN ARYET T NG S
Within 1 year —FR 1,018,985 705,077 397,586 62,074
After 1 year but within 2 years —E&BRWER 193,000 73,274 - 73,274
After 2 years but within 5 years MEEEBRAER 291,500 771,761 - 324,761
484,500 845,035 - 398,035
1,503,485 1,650,112 397,586 460,109
Bank loans were secured as  $RITEFRZIKIPMT :
follow:
- unsecured — IR 1,366,219 1,495,430 397,586 460,109
- secured —BIKHF 137,266 54,682 - -
1,503,485 1,650,112 397,586 460,109

On 27 May 2011, the Company entered into syndicated loans
agreements with certain banks whereby a term loan facility of
up to US$75,000,000 was made available to the Company
for a term of three years from the date of first drawdown of
the facility. In 2011, the Company drew down fully the loan
facility with a maturity of three years due on 17 June 2014. The
related loan transaction costs amounted to RMB12,095,000.
The amount is repayable by instalments commencing on 16
December 2012. The loan is denominated in US dollars and is
interest bearing. The loans are guaranteed by the Company’s
subsidiaries.

R-ZE——FHRA-+tH AAFAHEETF
IRITET SREBERIHZE - 1Bk AATTE
AEHERBME&KS75000000%7T B
BARBRMEERRAN=-F R=F——
F o AQARBYENERRE - A#=F
R-F-NEAA+TEEEH - BEERR
ZRABARKE12,0950007T - HEEHZF
——E+=-At+ARIHEE - BEER
UERFIERE - BEAEREBEAD M E
AEER o

Annual Report 2012 3k 135



Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP E

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB5IE)

26 Interest-bearing borrowings (continued)

(@)

(continued)

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfiment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s financial position
ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants the drawn down facilities would become payable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants. Further details of the Group’s management
of liquidity risk are set out in note 36. As at 31 December
2012, the balance of certain non-current portions of the
interest-bearing bank loans amounting to RMB133,441,000
was reclassified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities
due to the non-compliance with certain financial covenants.
As disclosed in notes 1(b) and 41(b), a waiver from non-
compliance with the financial covenants was granted by the
maijority of the lenders subsequent to 31 December 2012.

26

FTEEE@

@)

(#)
REE 2 MRITRIVE E — MR 1EEHE B SRR
VY ERZHERHREMBREERAEEE
FEIB MR 2 8% - MAEEERER
25k AR RERERERERE - XKEH
EHERHEERC BT EBRR ﬁﬁ¢¥
EREBESRBFERAMEES6 o A=
——F+ZA=+t—H HRBEES mm
BETETHEZBEER  sTERITERZ
BT ERBE D 2 B 8ME AR BE133,441,000
T B2 é 3FI}IL§JEEE¥E iaiuu.ijﬁé\ﬁ
A1) KA1 O)IRE » R=ZT——F+=
B=+—B% » KBIHKE AE&&L&@
BERHEZHR -

(b)  The municipal government loan is repayable as follows: (b) EEETBFERNT :
The Group
HEE
2012 2011
—B——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET
Within 1 year —FR 364 364
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERBMER 364 364
After 2 years but within 5 years MEAEREFER 1,091 1,091
After 5 years RELE 961 1,128
2,780 2,947
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The municipal government loan was received by the Group
for constructing a manufacturing plant in Jinzhou, Liaoning
Province, the PRC. There are no unfulfiled conditions or
contingencies relating to the municipal government loan.
It is unsecured, interest bearing and is fully repayable by
instalments from 2010 to 2020.

On 24 August 2011, the Company issued RMB300,000,000
bonds with a maturity of three years due on 24 August
2014 (the “Bonds”). The related issuing costs amounted
to RMB3,600,000. The Bonds were issued at 100% of the
aggregate principal amount, are denominated in RMB and
bear interest at 4.75% per annum payable semi-annually in
arrears.

BRIERAERAT

REECHNPEEEERMNERRERE

WMEMBUFER - BB HBEERBERE
ﬁ%ﬁ#ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ BERERAF  HER
AR-E-ZEFE_Z_ZHEHBRIYEY
A e

R-ZZ——FNAB=1+MWNA » KAFETR
—E-MENAZTEHAZNBN=FEHAR
#£300,000,000 cfEH ([E% 1) - BRAEIT
AN A AR #3,600,0007T © B35S 4E%E
100% 4TI A A RESIE » IREFZFELT5E
STEAEHFHEE-



27 Income tax in the consolidated statement 27 Z&BBRREANFER

of financial position

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial (@)

position represents:

FREPBAARRRA M EEABIRAR

The Group
AEE
2012 2011
- —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARBT T

Provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax
for the year

FEPREEFEHEE

- 30,573
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid 2APBEEERER (500) (32,359)
(500) (1,786)
Balance of PRC Corporate Income Tax BEFEETBECEEHERS
in respect of prior year (6,570) -
(7,070) (1,786)
Representing: REK:
Current tax recoverable BUHA AT @ 55418 (7,070) (8,409)
Current tax payable BNERE(SHiIE - 6,623
(7,070) (1,786)
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27 Income tax in the consolidated statement 27 #4 B &R RRAWFTER @

of financial position (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
The components of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets recognised

b) HRELHEEERAER
RSB BRRRRERWIELHE(BE)

in the consolidated statement of financial position and the EENEERFRSEHNT :
movements during the year are as follows:
The Group
x58
Fair value
adjustment Property,
Government  on business Inventory Undistributed  plant and
grants combination provision profits  equipment Others  Taxlosses Total
VERY -1 FIHK
BRHE BR&E FEBE R&fE AE it HBER @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

Deferred tax arising from: RETHISEMELHE -

At 1 January 2011 R-B——-£-F-R - - - (21,547) - - 4,250 (17,297)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEMBAR 9,231 (57,910) - - 8,117 (1,121) - (52,917)
Charged to profit or loss (note 7(a)) FERE B (HET() (1,348) 14,025 24,884 4329 598 1668 (4,250) 39,906
At 31 December 2011 R-B——£+-p=+-§ 7,883 (43,885) 24,884 (17,218) (2,519) 547 - (30,308)
At 1 January 2012 R-E-=£-f-A 7,883 (43,885) 24,884 (17,218) (2.519) 547 - (30,308)
Charged to profit or loss (note 7(a)) AE#HF Nk (HEE7() (3,554) 43,070 (22,573) 6,276 (3,476) (1,192 - 18,551
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—§+-F=1-H 4,329 (815) 2,311 (10,942 (5,995) (645) - (11,757)
The Group
£
2012 2011
—®—=fF —EB——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
Net deferred tax assets recognised REREHERRRER ZIELERE
in the consolidated statement of financial position — EEEE - 17,907
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RIRE ISR R R R Z IE IR 18
in the consolidated statement of financial position & {&%%8 (11,757) (48,215)
(11,757) (80,308)
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27

28

Income tax in the consolidated statement

of financial position (continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of RMB488,832,000 (2011:
RMB7,461,000) and RMB89,274,000 (2011: RMB2,798,000)
attributable to its subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong Kong,
respectively and deductible temporary differences of
RMBS362,284,000 (2011: RMBNIl), as it is not probable that
these tax losses and these deductible differences can be
utilised in the foreseeable future.

The tax losses of the subsidiary in Hong Kong do not expire
under current tax legislation while those of the subsidiaries in
the PRC will expire within five years.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2012, deferred tax liabilities of RMB8,939,000
(2011: RMB23,507,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax payable upon the distribution of the undistributed
profits of PRC subsidiaries and it has been determined
that these undistributed profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income

Various government grants have been received by the Group for
generating export sales, participating in high-tech industry and
constructing various manufacturing plants in Jinzhou, Liaoning
Province, the PRC. The amount also includes government grants
received by operating subsidiaries of the Group for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the subsidiaries for general
operating use with no future related cost. No specific conditions are
attached to the grants. In addition, certain government grants have
been received by the Group to compensate for its research and
development expenses in relation to the manufacturing of mono-
crystalline silicon solar ingots and wafers.

Amounts of RMB41,033,000 (2011: RMB134,633,000) have been
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2012 (note 4).

The remaining unused balances as at the end of each reporting
period are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as deferred income. There are no unfulfiled conditions or
contingencies relating to these grants. As at 31 December 2012,
amounts of RMB202,119,000 (2011: RMB206,131,000) of deferred
income will be recognised in profit or loss after more than one year.

27

28

RE WA R A TS ()

(©) BIRERELEHRIBEE
AEBUEEFRTEREBEZHBLATA
R#488,832,000t (= F——F : AR
7,461,000 T ) & A R # 89,274,000 7t ( =
T——F : AR#2798,0007t) HEWLR
AREBERTNBEREEZEEARY
362,284,000t (=& ——%F : \R¥Zx)HE
RELERIBEE  RERAZSHEBERZ
EEFHEREZENRRTATCEES A o

BRWE AR 2 HBBRRERTHBE LD
TEER - mAENEARZBBERNEF
A& °

d) EIRERELESIBEEE
R-BE——-F+-A=+—H ' B2k
FEMBLARRD RABHEMSBEA
R#8939000t (= ZE——F : AR%
28,507,0007T) WIEER HE F i KRR I
BREZEARD KA BETERTER KRR
PR ©

EIEW A

REBEELHOHE  RESHRTERRTE
BEARMNARSIUERFEES TR 2B
Bh o FUATEREAEEEENEQ RWE 2 BUTH
B BB AR —REEFTZRMUBIEZE -

REF = EOh - AEEIESE THAMAERH
SUERIG R E REERER 2T 3B - REME
TREERZFSMX -

BE-ZE——-F+-A=1+—HLEE R&KEE8E
HROCEFZARK41,083,000t(ZFE——5F : A
R#£134,633,0007T ) (FffzE4) o

REREHELEER  ABAZEBRBEANGEE
AR - BUEEEU A o 52551 Bh 0 M 15 R E K
ZHRGERIAREB - R _E——F+=-A=+—
B EEWRAAR®202,119,000T(=F——&F :
AR¥206,131,0007T) R Z A —FBREBRET
TR o
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29 Other non-current liabilities 29 HihERBERE
Included in other non-current liabilities is provision for product HiERBEEEREERRBRNEE  &olw
warranty costs as follows: T
2012 2011
—E——F —E2——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR
At 1 January R—A—H 7,335 870
Provision made e B 1,672 6,465
At 31 December W+=A=+—H 9,007 7,335
The Group’s photovoltaic modules are typically sold with a 2 or S B R AR AR & R — MRS B 33T B #E2
5-year warranty for defects in materials and workmanship and a 10 FRSFYRHBERATRA - URI0FER25F &
and 25 year minimum power output warranty, against declines of REHBERE > PHIRBEIRETHREERS
more than 10% and 20%, respectively, of initial power generation ZRANSBEER10%KX20%  RIBARHBERN
capacity from the date of delivery. The Group has the right to repair R AEEEREEESAGREATETEBRE
or replace solar modules, at its option, under the terms of the B AEERERABBENZERBERRAET
warranty policy. The Group maintains warranty reserves to cover WEEEE -
potential liabilities that could arise under these guarantees and
warranties.
30 Retirement benefit schemes 30 RREFIEHE

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
administered and operated by the local municipal governments. The
Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
scheme at 20% of the employees’ salaries per annum to fund the
retirement benefits of the employees.

The Group is required to participate in defined contribution
retirement schemes administered and operated by Bureau of Labour
Insurance of Taiwan for employees employed in Taiwan. Under
the schemes the employer is required to make contributions to
the schemes at 6% of the employees’ relevant income per annum.
Contributions to the schemes vest immediately.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$25,000. Contributions to the MPF scheme vest
immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with the schemes beyond the
contributions described above.
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AEEFEMEARES RS EBX B iS5 TBUF
EERERNERHATRREFE - AEEHE
M A R ZARER FHA20% T BEHHERR - B
BERABARHES -

FEEARZENBENEESNASES TR
REERERNEBHEIBRMNEFGE - RIEZZS
=t BEEARESHEFERAN6CHE T BE
HEGK o ARt EIEH B RIS o

AEETERBEBREEDESITER - BE
ZEBERBGOIFEENRBER BRI ATESET
B(RESETE ) < RESFT R R ERMATCRMAEGT
2 HBUZTAEE BESHIREERERE
EE % B RIESHEBERARS% M st &I H ALK
LA B AHEU A 25,000/8 T & LR o @588 S5 &
Y B R BN 5588 -

B BRI - AEEBAR SRS EIEREN
RAERAEEMEAREE -



31 Capital and reserves 31 BAR#E
(@ The Group @ AE&EE
Details of the movements in capital and reserves of the Group AEBERRFERZBNWFBANGSER
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. BE)K o
(o) The Company (o) ZAAFE
Share Share  Exchange Other Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve losses equity
BA REE ERfE Hitfe RithE Bt
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Wizt AREFT AREFR ARETR ARETR AR®Tn AR®TR
Balance at 1 January 2011 R-B-—-F-A-A2&H 162,458 940,428 (63,922) - (120,854 928,110
Changes in equity for 2011: “E--FURREE
Loss for the year FEFE - - - - (12,448) (12,448)
Other comprehensive income Hit2EBA - - (66,651) - - (66,651)
Total comprehensive income FREEBALRE - - (66,651) - (12,448) (79,099)
Issuance of convertible bonds classified 875 B AR 2 TRRES
as equity 31(d) - - - 644,081 - 644,081
Share issued upon conversion of RABARREZBRTZREG
convertible bonds 31(d) 36,127 608,154 - (644,281) - -
Dividends approved in respect of the  BLEEH#EZRE
previous year 9(b) - (78,476) - - - (78,476)
Balance at 31 December 2011and R=Z-—-%+-A=+-Hzk
1 January 2012 —E--F-f-Az&EH 198,585 1,470,106 (120,573) - (133,302 1,414,816
Changes in equity for 2012: TE-CEVRREE
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - (438,240) (438,240)
Other comprehensive income Hit2EBA - - 697 - - 697
Total comprehensive income FRZEARALE - - 697 - (438240)  (437,543)
Shares issued under open offer DRBERTRG 31(e) 20,202 52,778 - - - 72,980
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-B-—F+=-A=+-H
&t 218,787 1,522,884  (119,876) - (671,542) 1,050,258
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31 Capital and reserves (continued)

31 BRARREE@

(c) Authorised and issued share capital ) EERBBEITRAR
The Company
NG|
2012 2011
—B-—F —E—-F
No. of No. of
shares shares ‘000
RAHE RAHE Fr
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREE0BTHLEER 5,000,000,000  HK$500,000 5,000,000,000 HK$500,000
500,000 7T 500,000 7t
Equivalent to HER RMB450,000 RMB450,000
AR #450,0007T AE#450,0007C
Ordinary shares, issued and ERITRBEEER
fully paid:
At 1 January W—B—A 2242170,425  RMB198,585 1,807,170425  RMB162,458
AR¥198,5857T AR#162,4587T
Shares issued under open offer NRBERTRSG (HEE316)
(note 31(e)) 249,130,047 20,202 - -
Share issued upon conversion of REBTRARESFRT
convertible bonds (note 31(d)) 2R (MEE31(d) - - 435,000,000 36,127
At 31 December W+=A=+-AH RMB218,787 RMB198,585

2,491,300,472 AR%218,7877

2,242,170,425 AR#198,5857

Convertible bonds

On 25 January 2011, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Sino Light, satisfied by the issuance of zero-coupon
convertible bonds of the Company with a principal amount of
HK$835,200,000. The convertible bonds were interest-free
and could be converted by the bondholders at a conversion
price of HK$1.92 per ordinary share of the Company during
the conversion period from 28 March 2011 to 26 January
2013. Upon conversion in full of the convertible bonds, an
aggregate of 435,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
were to issued by the Company.

The number of shares into which the convertible bonds
could be converted was fixed at the issuance date and the
convertible bonds were interest-free and not redeemable in
cash. The convertible bonds were classified entirely as equity
of the Company and the fair value of RMB644,281,000 at the
issuance data was recognised in equity in the other reserve.
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(©)

ARRES

R=-Z——F—A=+HA  NEEBEAE
HEBRAER  WEBBITEAATANAREHE
835,200,000/8 T2 ZE A R EH IR o 7
BRESFRE  BESFBAEATR=-Z——
F=A=+NAZE=ZE—=5—HA=+7H
ZRBHR BRRESRAQAZER
1B TRBZEES - BHLRRATRKRE
%1% RN TEEE1TE $£435,000,00088 4 A
AEBER °

RgEnBERESFSR 2 RABERNETES
BE THRESRE BEFSUELE
B fIEARRESFDEAELAER R
B{THHZ AFEAREG44,281,0007T BIR
H At 2 s R TERR ©



31 Capital and reserves (continued)

(d)

Convertible bonds (continued)

The fair value of the convertible bonds was valued by the
directors at the issuance date with reference to a valuation
report issued by an independent professional valuer, Censere
Holdings Limited. The estimate of the fair value of the
convertible bonds was measured by applying the Binomial
Option Pricing Model, with the following key assumptions:

Spot price at issuance date HK$1.81
Option life 2 months
Expected volatility 33.44%
Risk-free interest rate 0.27%
Expected dividend yield from issuance date to
commencement date of conversion period 0.00%

All of the convertible bonds were converted by the
bondholders into ordinary shares of the Company on 21 June
2011. The nominal value of these shares of RMB36,127,000
was transferred from other reserve to share capital and the
difference between the nominal value of these shares and
the fair value of the convertible bonds, which amounted to
RMB608,154,000, was transferred from other reserve to share
premium.

Open offer

In December 2012, the Company raised approximately
HK$89,999,000 (equivalent to RMB72,980,000) after
deduction of estimated related expenses of RMB2,778,000
by way of an open offer. 249,130,047 new shares of
HK$0.1 each on the basis of one offer share for every nine
existing share held were issued. The subscription price was
HK$0.375 per share. The nominal value of these shares of
HK$24,913,000 (equivalent to RMB20,202,000) was credited
to share capital and the balance of HK$65,086,000 (equivalent
to RMB52,778,000) were credited to share premium.

31 BARREE@

(@

AR ES (@)
AERES 2 A FEHESRETESHSE
18 37 S # {4 B £f Censere Holdings Limited 3
HZAERERME FTETRRES 2
SATER EEA-EXPREERN
FEBRRMT :

RETHHZREE 1.8178 7T
HARE A A mEA
FEHRR iR 33.44%
2 P Al 2= 0.27%
BITREZE S IRHRR
ERAMZESRRER 0.00%

FEARBRESFN-"ZE——F<A=1t—H
HESFEEALRBRAERATRSER - 25K
HEESARS6,127,0007T @ HEMERE
EBRERA  ZEROEEETERESD
FEzE=ZEB ARBG08,154,0005t » BHEM
RBEERERMOEE -

NEBE

R-B——F+=h XD REBLAHBE
BR 17 215 4989,999,0008 T (HE RN AR
72,980,0007T ) (R & 5T HHEARE X A R #E
2,778,000t#&) - REFENRBEERHE
B—RBEERM 2 EEE17249,130,047 R
IR o RBERETRRMD0.3758B T - ZE
R 2 E1E 524,913,000 T (HHER AR
20,202,0007T) M5t ARZA - #8265,086,000
B (FHE R AR®S52,778,0007T) 5 A B 17
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31 Capital and reserves (continued)
() Nature and purpose of reserves:

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The share premium is distributable.

General reserve fund

Pursuant to articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC, these PRC
subsidiaries are required to transfer a minimum of 10%
of their profits after taxation based on their PRC statutory
financial statements to the general reserve fund until the
balance of the fund is at least half of the paid-in capital
of the relevant subsidiaries. The amounts allocated to
this reserve are determined by the respective boards of
directors with reference to the minimum requirements.

For the entities concerned, the general reserve fund can
be used to make good previous years’ losses, if any,
and may be converted into capital in proportion to the
equity holders’ existing equity holdings, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of shares
allotted and issued over the subscription costs and share
options granted to employees of the Group.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note

1(t).
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31 Capital and reserves (continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves: (continued)

)

v)

Other reserve

The other reserve represents:

M

(i)

The difference between the attributable share of
Tayaneng Investments limited (“Tayaneng”) of
the nominal value of the paid-up capital of the
subsidiaries acquired over the consideration paid
by Tayaneng to obtain the equity interests in these
subsidiaries.

Pursuant to a reorganisation of the Group to
rationalise the Group’s structure in preparation for
the public listing of the Company which became
the holding company of the subsidiaries on 7 May
2007, Tayaneng acquired equity interests of 75%,
70%, 74.17% and 75% in Yangguang, Huachang,
Huari and Xinri respectively on 9 March 2007.
The difference between Tayaneng’s attributable
share of the nominal value of these subsidiaries
of RMB74,858,000 and the consideration paid of
RMB74,782,000 amounted to RMB76,000 and was
credited to other reserve account.

The difference between the net asset value of
Tayaneng and its subsidiaries acquired and
the nominal value of the issued share capital of
Tayaneng.

The other reserve is non-distributable.

Tayaneng was deregistered during the year ended
31 December 2009.

31 BRARREE@

H REEVEEREW @ @)
Bt
Hit s -

)

(i)

Tayaneng Investments Limited
(T Tayaneng J) 7 Fr Ut B8 Bt /B
RAELEHEAZHER L
Tayaneng M ES L EKH B AT 2
REEPF AN B2 ZE5E ©

BIEAREEFIEEAEBEEEE
RADNE AR EmIEEFMET
ZEA(EA] ERAFTA=ZE
ZtFERAtERAENRBATZ
ERAGE)  TayanengR = Z =
+tE=A N BWEBHRMEY - 8
MEE - BMNEARBMNTAD
BI75% ~ 70% > 74.17% K% 75% B%
& ° Tayaneng A bt 5 [ B A B &
hEE A R¥ 74,858,000 TEEE
SR EARYET4,782,0007T 2
EZHEAARM76,000T © BFTA
HAbFEER

Bt W B8 Tayaneng & H [ B A &1 &9
& & B {E B Tayaneng B 217 IR AR
HEEZZE5E -

HAEER T R 2IREO 4

TayanengRBE=—ZBZThE+=
B=+—HBI-FERSEEMR -
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31 Capital and reserves (continued)

Q)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was RMB951,342,000 (2011: RMB1,336,804,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
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31 Capital and reserves (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
gearing ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines gearing ratio
as total borrowings to total share capital and reserves. The
gearing ratio at 31 December 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

(h)

31 BRARREE@
) BLETE @)
AEELEEE B EERLERLE o 5
KfiS  AEESEEEBLEEEREE
BEEHBRAREEZLE RCB—=
FR-B——F+-A=t+-AC4EEE

b=
The Group
REE
2012 2011
—2-=F —E——fF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FiEE AR¥ T ARB T
Current liabilities: REIAE
Bank loans RITER 26 1,018,985 705,077
Non-current liabilities: FREBEE
Municipal government loan THBRFER 26(b) 2,780 2,947
Bank loans IRITER 26 484,500 845,035
Bonds B 26(c) 298,600 298,000
785,880 1,145,982
Total borrowings BEEHME 1,804,865 1,851,059
Share capital &N 218,787 198,585
Reserves [T 800,091 2,023,460
1,018,878 2,222,045
Gearing ratio EEAELER 177.1% 83.3%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to

externally imposed capital requirements.

RN E) R BRI E N BB RET IRk
IZEARRE °
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32 Related party transactions
During the year ended 31 December 2012, transactions with the
following parties are considered to be related party transactions:

Name of party & 75 &%

32 BEIRS
BE-_ZE-——#+-A=+—HILEE THAL
HREERABBELIRS :

Relationship F#1%

Jinzhou Changhua Carbon Products Company Limited
(“*Junzhou Changhua”)
IRNEERZHRERAT(HMEE])

Wafer Works Corp. (“WWX”)
ERBEROERIB(ERRHL])

Wafer Works (Shanghai) Corp. (“WWXS”)
EEaREMRERAR (& &EMED

Jinzhou Huarong Property Management Company Limited
(“dinzhou Huarong”)

MR EERARDR(TERMER )

Jinzhou Huachang Photovoltaic Technology Company Limited
(“Huachang Guangfu”) (note)
RMZEE R RBRBERAT ([EE XK D) (M)

Jinzhou Jingxin Semi-conductor Material Company Limited
(“dinzhou Jingxin”)

BMNREFERMRARA R (THRMNRE )

Jinzhou Youlin Semi-Conductor Material Co., Ltd.
(“dinzhou Youlin”)

RN EREARIARR D F ([ # MK )

Jinzhou Huanchang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(*Huangchang Real Estate”)
HBMNEERBERRERLR(EERLBE)

Jinzhou Aoke Yangguang New Energy Company Limited
(“Aoke Yangguang”)
RN RS B RAR A= ([R5 1)

Golmud Solargiga Energy Electric Power Co., Ltd (“Golmud”)
BEARGXERENERA B (MHEREAD

Note: Huachang, being a subsidiary of Sino Light, became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group on 26 January 2011.

In addition to the transactions and balances discussed elsewhere

in the financial statements, the Group had the following material
related party transactions:
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Controlled by Tan Wenhua, an executive director of
the Company
FRDBHITESECEEG

Equity shareholder of the Company
AATZEZRE

Subsidiary of WWX
EERBEZHMBAT

Controlled by Tan Wenhua, an executive director of
the Company
FRD BT ESE S EE

Controlled by Tan Wenhua
SRS

Controlled by a close family member of a key
management personnel of the Group
STAREBIEEBEAEN —BIAHRES

Controlled by a close family member of a key
management personnel of the Group

TAREBMETESEASN —BIHIZES
Controlled by Tan Wenhua

3B NS

Associate of the Group

REEZBENT

Associate of the Group

FEEZBENT

M EEXRREXZMBAR R-F——F—A4
T AARR/AEEZZEHNB AR ©

MREIE MR TR E A T 2 R B R &EERID - AEE
BUTERBEELRRS :



32 Related party transactions (continued) 32 BEARS @)

(@ Key management personnel remuneration @ FEEEASHM
Key management personnel receive compensation in the form FTEEBABUF S AEREMER B
of salaries, housing and other allowances, benefits in kind, YR ~ BIBTEAL R RN ET B4R M 5 Xk
discretionary bonuses and retirement scheme contributions. BiE - TEEBEASHFMFBRHTE IR
Details of key management personnel remuneration are 12005 - HFEANEEBEBATEIRA]  FER
disclosed in notes 11 and 12. Total remuneration is included in MIFE6(0)IHEE ©

“staff costs” as disclosed in note 6(b).

(o) Recurring transactions b) RBEMERS
The Group
AEME
2012 2011
—E-—C=fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥T T
Sales of goods to: HEERT !
- Jinzhou Huarong — iR EELR 329 325
- Jinzhou Changhua —RMEE 97 146
426 471
Purchases of goods from: AT SBEER !
- Jinzhou Changhua —RMEE 34,213 55,133
- WWX - &RRHE 17,096 18,665
— Huachang Guangfu —EENHMN - 54,397
Processing services received from Jinzhou Youlin - B3 88N ARI2 400 T ARAE 2,699 -
Processing services received from Jinzhou Jingxin  Fa $8 /N S 12 500 T AR 884 2,545
Provision of electricity and water by SEMEELSIRMAKE
Jinzhou Huarong 1,741 2,031
56,633 132,771
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32 Related party transactions (continued) 32 BEARS @)
(¢) Non-recurring transactions ) FEEURZS
The Group
KEH

2012 2011
—B-—f —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBT T

Consideration paid for the acquisition of Sino  FUKEBERL X F2RE -

Light:

- YHIC —hERE - 207,041

— Prosperity —168 - 49,628

Compensation income from WWX EERHEEEWA - 5,611

- 262,280

(d) Amounts due from related parties d) FEWREIESFIE
The Group
AEH

2012 2011

—E-—=fF —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AR¥T T

— Golmud — AR 118,802 133,802

- WWX —aRBH 83,468 79,218

— Aoke —HBEEK 13,990 -

— Huachang Real Estate —EEREME 3,045 3,045

- WWXS — S REMH - 400

219,305 216,465
The amounts due from related parties are unsecured and EWEEAREAEKFARRE - RIFE18IEE
interest free. Except for prepayments for raw materials of Z R RHE S FRIE A R #76,591,0007t (=& ——
RMB76,591,000 (2011: RMB39,609,000) as disclosed in note F : AR%39,609,0007t) %) » BEAFKIEFEE N —

18, the amounts are excepted to be recovered within one year. FRUWE o
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32 Related party transactions (continued) 32 BEARS @)

(e) Amounts due to related parties ) FEBIERFE
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET R
— Jinzhou Changhua —BMNEE 28,905 -
— Jinzhou Jingxin —EMNEE 184 921
29,089 921
The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest- FERE A HEAEIKE R E RN —FRZ
free and expected to be settled within one year. 13 o
33 Capital commitments 33 BARKIE
Capital commitments that relate to purchase of property, plant and EEEEYE BERSRBR-ZE——F+=A
equipment outstanding at 31 December 2012 not provided for in the =+ —HEREEBEWARENEREABRME Z2ER
financial statements are as follows: EENT :
The Group
ArEH
2012 2011
—E-——F —ZT——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETR
Authorised and contracted for EREICETY 17,956 69,348
Authorised but not contracted for EREERTY 40,450 46,692
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34

(AARBZIE)

Operating lease commitments
At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

34

REHEERRE
REZB-—-F+ZA=1—R  REFITRE K
EHE ARASEENZREAENRAEND
T

The Group
HER

2012 2011
g% —2——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR
Within 1 year —F R 1,679 2,127
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRELFR 1,410 2,441
After 5 years HE#% 1,586 1,704
4,675 6,272

35

The Group is the lessee in respect to a number of properties held
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of two to twenty years, with an option to renew each lease upon
expiry when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.

Contingent liabilities

Financial guarantees issued

At 31 December 2012, the Company has undertaken to
guarantee a banking facility granted to a subsidiary to the extent of
US$10,000,000 or RMB62,855,000 (2011: RMB63,009,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not consider
it probable that a claim will be made against the Company under
the guarantee. The maximum liability of the Company at the end of
the reporting period under the guarantee issued is the outstanding
amount of the loan advanced by the bank to the subsidiary of
US$10,000,000 or RMB62,855,000 (2011: RMB63,009,000).
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36 Financial risk management and fair values
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described
below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at
banks, trade debtors and prepayments made to suppliers.
Cash at banks are placed with financial institutions that have
sound credit ratings and the Group considers the credit risk to
be insignificant.

In respect of trade debtors and prepayments made to
suppliers, individual credit evaluations are performed on
customers/suppliers on a case-by-case basis. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay as well as the
supplier’s past history of supplying raw materials and take into
account information specific to the customer/supplier as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the customer/
supplier operates. Trade debtors are normally due within 30 to
90 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers and suppliers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer and supplier. The
default risk of the industry and country in which customers/
suppliers operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent. At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
a certain concentration of credit risk as 7% and 12% (2011: 3%
and 12%) of the total trade and other receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the supplier with the largest
prepayment balance, respectively, and 14% and 31% (2011:
10% and 40%) was due from the five largest customers and
suppliers with five largest prepayment balances, respectively,
of the Group.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

36 MHEREERAFE
FEBFEBNEE  ADES - WRREHEAR
REAEBE QRS - AEEBERIFE LR
SERRYBARTRAZ ERREREANT -

=EREE
FEBNEERABEERBRTREURS
N T HER 2 ERE 2 RARFANRE &
TREFHNAEERAREECFERBES
RIFEETROE RS o

MEMNFHETF2EREZERREMRK
1B AEEERENERERNFEES H
EENEERR - ZETEETREFBE
Z BB R R BRI REE S AR HE
HMBARERM 2R TEEEEF
HERBEZEREFERRER MEELE
i BREAKEIRE - BWE S RAAIRER
HAE30ZQ0HREIHR - — M= © AEEF
SEEFREEFREIKRR ©

AEEZEERREIESSEFREET 2
BERFETE - BF MHERLE ZTER
FRERZXRARIEEERBRE—EF
4, ERERE RHEHEEER KK
BEEETRESEBNETHWEAR  BARE
ZEZRAREMERIBAIERDRIE7%
R12% (=ZF——F : 3% K 12%) REAXE
ERAEFREEE(HEMEMREZX
BRI » B14A%RII% (=T ——F :
10%K40%) BIRBAEE R AEF RIEER
(BRELBNREZ R RIS )RR

REBIFERMEMEMER  HSAEE
EREEERRE -
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36 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

As detailed in note 1(b), the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB385,052,000 as at 31 December
2012, which indicates that the Group may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business. The directors are taking certain actions
to address these conditions in accordance with the Group’s
policy of regularly monitoring its current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term. These actions include negotiating
with banks to renew the short term loans and to explore the
availability of alternative sources of financing. Further details
of these actions and bank loans concerned are set out in note
1(b).

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to pay.
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36 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

36 MXKEMREERAFE®

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b)) "BESERE@E)
The Group AEE
2012 2011
52k - S 3
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AERLNRLERE FEBANRER
More More More
than than than More than
Within 1year 2years Within Tyear 2 years
Carrying 1year but less but less More Carying 1year hutless hutless More
amount at oron than than than amount at oron than than than
31 December Total demand 2years 5years L3RI 31 December Total demand 2 years 5years 5 years
Wt=A Ht=A
=t-H -Epg #B-% RBRE =t-82 ] BE-£ BERE
EEE B8 BEEAR  EORME  EOREE BERE L] 8E  REEAR  BORME  BONEE BBRE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMIn  ARMTn  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR
Bank loans-current (note 26) $R7 & - &8
(Hisos) 1018985 (1,064,280)  (1,064,289) - - - 105,077 (750,361) (750,361) - - -
Municipal government loan ~ HBFYER: 2780 (3,243 (438) (429) (1,230) (1,146) 20471 (3,690 [ (39 (1,257) (1.547)
Bank loans-non-curent BATER - FHH 484500  (573329) (40453 (21.281) (311,639 - 845,08 (1,000.215) (49,997) (326,853 (621,365) -
Bonds % 298600 (328,500) (14250)  (314,250) - - 298,000 (342,750) (14.250) (14.250) (314,250) -
Trade payebles, bil payable  EFESEE « EHE
andotherpayebleand % EREREER
aooured expenses EiER 801,161 (801,161)  (801,161) - - - 591,911 (591,911) (591,911) - - -
2606026  (770516)  (1920501)  (535916)  (312:863) (1,146) 2440970 (2688.927)  (1,406,966) (343,542) (936,872) (1,547)
AT
The Company
2012 2011
e 3£
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AERANRLRE FEBANRER
More More More
than than than More than
Within 1year 2years Within Tyear 2 years
Carrying 1year but less but less More Carying 1year hutless hutless More
amount at oron than than than amount at oron than than than
31 December demand 2years 5years LIEICH 31 December Total demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
Wt=A Ht=A
=t-8 -Epg #B-% RBRE =t-82 ] BE-£ BERE
EEE B8 BEEAR  EORME  BOREE BARE L 8E  FEEAR  BOEME  BOHEE BERE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMIn  ARMTn  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Other payables and accrued  EftEEREER
£Xpenses EirER 9,678 (0,678) (0,678) - - - 723 (7.282) (7.282) - - -
Amounts due to subsidlaries FERHBAFHE 10,527 (10,527) (10,527) - - - 16,005 (16,005) (16,005) - - -
Bank|oans HAER 397586 (416407) (279955 (136452 - - 460,109 (497,237) (82,184) (278,826) (136,221) -
Bonds & 298600 (328,500) (14250)  (314,250) - - 298,000 (342,750) (14,250) (14.250) (314,250) -
716,301 (165,112)  (314410)  (450,702) - - 781,346 (863,224) (119,671) 293,076) (450,477) -
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36 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(©)

Interest rate risk

Except for bank deposits with stable interest rates, the Group
has no other significant interest bearing assets. Accordingly,
the Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. Details of
the effective interest rates for bank deposits are disclosed in
notes 23 and 24. The Group’s interest rate risk arises mainly
from borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates at fixed
rates expose the Group and the Company to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk, respectively. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge
its interest rate risk.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s net borrowings at the end of the reporting

36 MKEMREERAFE®

(©

ARk

BRREFNR ZRITERN  FEBEWEH b
EARGEEE - At ARz HBEREE
BERBAREFIZMSNREHHE - B
BRTIERERF R ZFIERM 23Kk 245
KE - AR ZREREIEZREEE - F
EREERERAEBRADT D BIEER
ERFEABR A PEFERRRE - AEEL
EERITERE T AP ERRER

0 FEER
TRAJAEERREPREEEREE
TFRRHVRIRELR o

period.
The Group NEH
2012 2011
—EB-——F —2——F
Effective Effective
interest rate 2{\Y[=300008  interest rate RMB’000
BRAIE AR¥T T BRAI=E ARBTT
% %
Variable rate FEEE
borrowings
Bank loans — current RITER —ENER 3.54 492,352 2.43 116,756
Bank loans — non-current $R1TE X — FEENER 7.90 484,500 5.94 845,035
976,852 961,791
Fixed rate borrowings EEE&
Municipal government TBRER
loan 2.55 2,780 2.55 2,947
Bank loans - current RITER — BNHE] 5.29 526,633 6.32 588,321
Bonds &% 4.75 298,600 4.75 298,000
828,013 889,268
Total borrowings EE4% 1,804,865 1,851,059
Fixed rate borrowings as EEEELEEEEEN
a percentage of total ATk
borrowings 45.9% 48.0%
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36 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
() Interest rate profile (continued)

36 MXKEMREERAFE®

(©) FIZR[E B (&)
() FIFEELT(E)

The Company AATF
2012 2011
—B—_—F —EB2——F
Effective Effective
interest rate 12\ |=5000 interest rate RMB’000
BRRFIE AR%TR 1 SES ARETR
% %
Variable rate FEEE
borrowings
Bank loans - current $RITE R — BIER 3.49 397,586 3.16 62,074
Bank loans — non-current $R17& 7 — JEENER - - 3.16 398,035
397,586 460,109
Fixed rate borrowings EE{&&
Bonds &% 4.75 298,600 4.75 298,000
Total borrowings {EE4#%E 696,186 758,109
(i) Sensitivity analysis i) BRESH
The Group
2011
—E2——F
Increase/
Increase/ Effect on Effect on (decrease) Effect on
(decrease) loss accumulated in foreign profit Effect on
in interest rate for the year EEEEM  exchange rates for the year retained profits
MEEH HEREGE HRETTEE EZLH HERFH HRE &R
(&) 258 pd 7 (T &) e a7
% RMB’000 RMB’000 % RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T ARBTT ARBTT
1% 7,889 7,889 1% (11,047) (11,047)
(1)% (7,889) (7,889) (1)% 11,047 11,047
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36 Financial risk management and fair values 36 BI#EBEER AP E@

(continued)
(©) Interest rate risk (continued) (©) FIZ=mPBS ()
(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) BEESH ()
The Company
¥
2012 2011
—E-=F —E——F
Increase/
Increase/ Effect on Effect on (decrease) Effect on Effect on
(decrease) loss accumulated in foreign loss accumulated
in interest rate for the year EEEEE exchange rates for the year losses
MELH HENEER HRETTEE EZLH HERFE HREZF
(T¥&) 258 e (T%) 2 2
% RMB’000 RMB’000 % RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR®T T ARBFT
1% 3,374 3,374 1% 3,842 3,842
(1)% (3,374) (3,374) (1)% (3,842) (3,842)

UL E SR E DT BRRR R FIR S B
HHEEERRE  WIBARSEE
FARERFENI% T BFAENR=
REE  AEBERADARBEER
FE(RREER 1 RERF) 2 B2
B —E-——FHNoTRUERNEE
#AT

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s and the Company’s loss/profit
after taxation (and accumulated losses/retained profits)
that would have arisen assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for financial instruments in existence at that date.
The analysis has been performed on the same basis as
for 2011.
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36 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases, bank loans and cash and bank deposits that
are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily the United States Dollar (‘USD”), the Euro and the
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”). The directors do not expect any
significant impact from movements in exchange rates since the
Group uses the foreign currencies collected from customers to
settle the amounts due to suppliers. In addition, the directors
ensure that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by
buying or selling the United States Dollar and Euros at spot
rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

() Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting period to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

36 MKEMREERAFE®

)

SN LB

REBAZWINERE - EERE LINE (B
HRSHEBEEBEDEEE B UINER) 5
BEZHERRE RITERURRERIERT
TR BEERERRzERTERET(X
) BaRkBRT(ET]) - EEXFREHY
EXSHEHAEBERNTAERTE B
REEEFEABEFWE Z MNP SR X
IFE o ESEFERAES R
EREANBEHET KRBT ERERRE -
LARE AR T B PR A I AT 2K F o

() IMEmE
TRAVNAEER AR BRRERE S
HAEEAINERR - SNER M E AAE
BEENEERUIIERTEZEER
EERREMESL -

The Group
x5

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Renminbi)
SHNERKE (UMARMSIE)

2011
—E—-F

United Hong United Hong

States Kong States Kong

Dollars Euros Dollars Dollars Euros Dollars

E B BT En B BT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE ARMTT ARETT NG SPN- S AN S
Trade and other EWE 5 ERR

receivables HitEWE 27,748 24,538 - 6,831 17,352 -

Cash atbank and inhand  ${TRFERE 84,528 1,374 7,909 111,510 16,323 2,622

Bank loans RITER (826,227) (10,258) - (731,491) - -
Trade and other payables FEfE SRR

HitFE(FE (3,619) (14,204) - (524) (9,032) -

(717,570) 1,450 7,909 (613,674) 24,643 2,622
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36 Financial risk management and fair values 36 BI#EBEER AP E@

(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) d)  HMER B (&)
()  Exposure to currency risk (continued) ) SrEEEE(E)
The Company
AT
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Renminbi)
SMNERBR (LA RESIE)
2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——F
United States United States
Dollars Dollars
En Eo
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Trade and other receivables FEUR & 5 BRI H A FEURGRIE 169,677 180,136
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFEES 109 306
Bank loans RITER 398 460
Trade and other payables ERESIRARE RS RE 851 495
171,035 181,397
The Company’s functional currency is HKD. As the HKD RATINIEEEB BB T - ARBTHE
is pegged to the USD, the Company considers the risk of i AATRAEBTHEETZE
movements in exchange rates between the HKD and the HWEXSBEMERK ©

USD to be significant.
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36 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s loss/profit after taxation and accumulated
losses/retained profits in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the
Group has significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period.

36 MKEMREERAFE®

(d) FMERERER(E)
(i)  BREEZHT
TRETAEEENGEE BAEERE
BMEXRTREHANSESE m<A
EMERBiREEFBERREER R
BER BB o

The Group
*5E
2011
E—-f%

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign Effect Effect on in foreign Effect Effect on
exchange  onloss for accumulated exchange on profit for retained
rates the year losses rates the year profits
ExLH/ HER By | ExL#/ HER HRE
(F¥) FRz%E A=/ (F%) fEzze  BAzEE
) RMB’000 RMB’000 % RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Hong Kong Dollars B 10 (791) (791) 10 262 262
(10) 791 791 (10) (262) (262)
Euros B 10 (46) (46) 10 2,218 2,218
(10) 46 46 (10) (2,218) (2,218)
United States Dollars S 10 72,188 72,188 10 (61,462) (61,462)
(10) (72,188) (72,188) (10) 61,462 61,462

Result of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group entities’ loss/profit after taxation and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at
the end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

LRI MEREAEEZERZ
BREBEERFIERRA(UEE2ZY
BEEMETE  WUEEACERBRER
ARE) 2S8R - H2H2 A -
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36 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

37

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period, including inter-company payables
and receivables within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis has been performed
on the same basis as for 2011.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2011 and
2012 except for the amounts due from subsidiaries which are
repayable on demand. Given these terms, it is not meaningful
to disclose the fair value of such balances.

Significant accounting estimates and
judgements

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used in
applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial position and operating results. Some of
the accounting policies require the Group to apply estimates and

judgements on matters that are inherently uncertain. The critical

accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

are described below.

(@)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of each asset, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The Group
reviews annually the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any. Both the period and methods of depreciation are
reviewed annually. The depreciation expense for future periods
is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.
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36

37

BEREEERER AR E@E®

(d) FMERE(E)
(i) BUBEDH ()

BRESMDIBRERAERERZH
BN EASERFESHERBSH
BEEEAEIERR UK TE &
FEUBAARERA D REE B LINEHE
FHE Z =B A A B B R ROR & UK
B o DM BIEEBINER M BRERIR
ERAKEERERREEZER - =
T——FND TR AERNEEETT -

e 2¥E
RNR—E——FER-_E——F+=-_B=+—
B FEMBEIANREEEEEATEZYE
WREREEREZR » RERERNWEQRZRK
BRI o BMREGKRI > BMAFEREZEE
BRZ ATE ©

ERETHhEH R A B

ESREAREE 2 ST BRI E AL A KB I 5k
MRBERBEERLE 2T E (At RAE - 3
DEHERFAEERES THBEEER AR
FIEf - RSB ST BERIHE L 2 E RS A
BT e

(@) ¥ - BERRBHAERFH
M BERREBEEFREMGHRER U
HSEBRREEMTUEAFHTRIE
FEBEBFEHNEENIERAFAREREE
(WmA)  AEFEMFTRAENHERS
& o MRERFI AT RAEEREE - AISHR
RAE 2T ER LA



37 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(b)

Impairments of assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. When an indication of
impairment is identified, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing value
in use, management prepares discounted future cash flows
to assess the differences between the carrying amount and
value in use and provides for impairment losses. Any change
in the assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts would
increase or decrease the provision for impairment losses and
affect the Group’s profit or loss and net asset value.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually even if there
has no indication of impairment.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are assessed
and provided based on the directors’ regular review of ageing
analysis and evaluation of collectability. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer. An increase or decrease in the above impairment
loss would affect profit or loss in future years.

Impairment of advances to suppliers

The Group makes non-cancellable advance payments to
raw material suppliers under purchase agreements which
are to be offset against future purchases. In the event when
the economic benefits expected to be received under these
purchase agreements are less than the unavoidable costs of
meeting the contractual obligations; or the financial condition
of these suppliers deteriorate, the Group will consider whether
the advance payments to these suppliers are impaired and
make necessary provision for the present obligation under the
agreements. The Group does not require collateral or other
security against its advances to suppliers. The Group performs
ongoing evaluations of impairment of advances to suppliers
and provisions for commitments that may become onerous
due to a change of market conditions and the financial
condition of its suppliers. The evaluation takes into account
the projected revenue, related expenses, capital spending and
other costs. When the advance is not likely to be settled as
expected, the Group will make necessary provisions for the
present obligation under the agreements.

37 EXEEHEFTRHAE @)

(b)

EERE
FEBREHREPEEEERHEEZRE
B UWEERDHEREZEEEE -  EE3
HRBETRSRE  SEFTEEZTRES
Ho-EEZUWESHERFEELEERAEE
MERZRSE - SHMEECRAEER - B2
[E R L BE 3R AR ORI 207 8 ARTAfh AR B (B ER 68
REEZEZFH  UERESEERE RSR
EFNRAZBREEMES < HRE
BREBEENSRD - BHEAEEZFE
HERREEFE °

AENEREREFRERTEDEBFET
—IRRERIE

RERBEBEEREESEHNEHRED
A B2 7T W [B] 72 B2 5T 0 2R 4F M AT 4G & iR 5
B ESEFEEENETFNEERBER
IRASERES - (EIHARERRE R E o EiR(E
BEEMER  SERRFENRER
&8 -

AN T HRER 2 FRIRZRE

REBERBEEGZD R EERELT
AHEEETANRIE - BERESRARBEE R
B SH o AR5 F2 5 08 B 155 3 TR 2 W) LUER
ZRENBERENEERAIERZEA -
FZEHEBUBRRER  AEEEEE
BANTZEHER2RRREKERE ' I
HEEHBET 2B EEEFEHLERE -
REEIEA AN T HEB 2 NARRIEKR
S EMIER - REBREFGEG T HE
BZRIEZRE - R AR R TR K A
B R O  E T R B E 2 IR R o &
EFEZERE; NG AEMAX B2
FEREMAR - EENBREER - AREH
ERMZEHRE T 2 B AR EEH SR
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37 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(d)

Valuation of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in technique and
competitor actions in response to adverse industry cycles.
Management reassesses these estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are transactions during the ordinary
course of business, for which calculation of the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences would affect profit or loss in future years.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which related to tax
losses and deductible temporary differences, depends on the
management’s expectation of future taxable profit that will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Provision for warranty costs

The Group provides warranties for its photovoltaic modules
for up to 25 years after sales have taken place. Due to limited
warranty claims history, the Group estimates warranty costs
based on the Group’s historical cost data, industry data and
an assessment of the Group’s competitors’ history of warranty
claims. The warranty obligation of the Group will be affected
not only by the product failure rates, but also by costs incurred
to repair or replace failed products. If the actual product failure
rates and cost of replacement or repairing of failed products
differ from the estimates, the Group will need to prospectively
revise the provision for warranty costs which would affect profit
or loss in future years.
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38 Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform to the
new presentation upon the change in application of accounting
policy as disclosed in note 2(b).

39 Business combination

(@)

On 26 January 2011, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Sino Light, satisfied by the issuance of zero-
coupon convertible bonds of the Company which could be
converted into 435,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company.
The fair value of these convertible bonds on 26 January 2011
was HK$762,104,000 (equivalent to RMB644,281,000) (see
note 31(d)). Sino Light and its subsidiaries (the “Sino Light
Group”) are engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
monocrystalline silicon solar cells. The acquisition of the Sino
Light Group allows the Group to expand into the downstream
of the solar industry.

The total turnover and net loss for the year contributed
by the Sino Light Group for the period from its date of
acquisition to 31 December 2011 were RMB929,051,000 and
RMB58,049,000, respectively.

If this business combination had occurred on 1 January 2011,
the Group’s turnover and net profit for the year would have
been approximately RMB2,827,377,000 and approximately
RMB53,241,000, respectively. These amounts have been
calculated by adopting the Group’s accounting policies,
eliminating the related intercompany transactions and
adjusting the results of the relevant subsidiaries to reflect the
additional amortisation and depreciation that would have
been charged assuming the fair value adjustment to intangible
assets, property, plant and equipment and lease prepayments
have been applied from 1 January 2011, together with the
consequential tax effects.

38 BT
ER O RENEARHHENSBE 5T
BRFEEIIUGEHLHA

39 XS/t

@)

R-E——F—A=-+XH AEEEA
EXEHBRAER  WBEBRTAQATAZ
ZRURBRESTR  ZEEFUTLBRA
435,000,000 B A X A E @R o ZE 08
BREFR=-ZFE——F—A=-+t~AZ2
F{E &762,104,00058 T HER AR
644,281,000 (A2 REKIEES1(d) - EXRE
MBAR(EXEE D REABEERYE
Mz BEREEER o WEFEXEEAZER
SEIERZEAIGRETHEZ THER ©

EXEEHAANEMZAEEERFHFIEER
EWEASEE—_T——F+-_A=1+—8H
LIEHIE 5 Bl B A R#929,051,0007t & A R#E
58,049,0007T °

WEBEXKEHR-_Z——F—HF—HE
BE AAEERREEBRATNES
B4 A R #2,827,377,000 T & 9 A R
53,241,0007t ° st H BB BEREHEMARE
BE2ETHER > KEARBEZERERS -
WRAREENRBATEE  UARMREBREE
FEE Y% BERZEUARESEMNRK
B AFERAZE-_Z——F—H—HEE
EARRLED W ZEMEERITEER
TEERESE -
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39 ¥KS /@
W EEYAEERNBAESEER

39 Business combination (continued)
(c) The acquisition of the Sino Light Group had the following effect ©

on the Group’s assets and liabilities on the date of acquisition: EEEBRATEE
Carrying Fair value
amount adjustment Fair value
BREE NEEAE DNEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AR®TT ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment ¥J% - lRE R &E 324,602 (10,061) 314,541
Intangible assets B EE - 254,869 254,869
Lease prepayments HERAFE 18,352 3,533 21,885
Inventories FE 24,684 9,469 34,153
Trade and other receivables  FEURE 5 BRF R H b EUL TR 195,880 - 195,880
Cash and cash equivalents HERBREEEY 33,670 - 33,670
Trade and other payables BN E SRR HEMENTRIE (132,531) - (132,531)
Current tax payable BNERFE (i 1E (1,418) - (1,418)
Long-term bank loans REIRITER (190,000) - (190,000)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) EEHIBEEE, (EE) 3,902 (56,819) (52,917)
Deferred income IEFEU A (42,088) - (42,088)
Net assets acquired R A EEFE 235,053 200,991 436,044
Goodwill arising from WEgEE 22 (MiEE16)
acquisition (note 16) 208,237
Total consideration satisfied — EBR{TARREF (=2
by issuance of convertible HBRME (FFEES1(0)
bonds (note 31(d)) 644,281
Net cash inflow in respect of R UWEKB AR 2
the acquisition of HERAERE
subsidiaries 33,670

The balances of the trade and other receivables were

considered fully recoverable at the date of acquisition.

The goodwill is attributable mainly to the benefit of skills and
technical talent of the acquired business’s work force and the
synergies expected to be achieved from integrating the entities
into the Group’s existing businesses. None of the goodwill

recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax

purposes.
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40 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2012
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and five new standards which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
— Presentation of items of other comprehensive income
BBGTERE  HBEHKEZS
— 25 B EENA 2 A 2 ST

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements
ERMISREENF105  #EUFHE

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities
EBMBMEERIFE12 » HEREMERLZ B

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement
EBIIEIRELERE135E - A FEHE

HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures
EBETTERES RERBFELGREELF

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits
RIEFT B BSFERE19% - ESFF

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
ZEENFEE——FREHFENE

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures
— Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
BEBUBRELERNETRETALHTE - KE
-~ EEHSHE EZRY

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

BEBSFTHERERNRBEIAR  2HTA - 251
—THEEHTHEE K

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BEBUKIRELERES, 2T A

0 BEBENARBE_S——*&
FoB=+-RALEELARHE
g ST A 2R ] B R I

BEAPBHRRTIZALY  FESHOLISCHEM
SIEERT AR AR R - MA KRB REARE
BHREADERALSEAREE—Z-——-F+=A4
=+ —REFEERNET AT ER - THHHE
F A REEL SR BB B RIS AT AT EER -

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 B B 2 EEIRE
R EES

1 July 2012
—F#+A—H

1 January 2013
—E-=F—HF—H

1 January 2013
—E—=5—-H—H

1 January 2013
—E-=F—HF—H

1 January 2013
—E—=5—-H—H

1 January 2013
—E-=F—HF—H

1 January 2013
—E—=5—-HF—H

1 January 2013
—E-=F—-HF—H

1 January 2014
—E-mNF¥—-A—H

1 January 2015
—E-hF—H—H
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40 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2012 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of

41

168 Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited & ¥

initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them

is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

Non-adjusting events after the reporting

date

(@ In March 2013, the Company raised approximately
HK$250,000,000 (equivalent to RMB200,443,000) after
deduction of estimated related expenses by way of an open
offer of 498,260,094 new shares on the basis of one offer
share for every five existing share held. The Group will apply
the entire net proceeds to repay its current outstanding
interest-bearing bank loans.

(b) As disclosed in note 26(a), due to the non-compliance

with certain financial covenants under the syndicated loan
agreement dated 27 May 2011, as subsequently revised by
a waiver letter granted by the banks dated 23 August 2012,
the balance of the non-current portion of the syndicated
loan due in 2014 amounting to US$21,230,000 (equivalent
to RMB133,441,000) was reclassified from non-current
liabilities to current liabilities as at 31 December 2012. On 26
March 2013, a waiver from non-compliance with the financial
covenants was granted by the majority of the lenders.

HRIERAERAT

41

0 EEMEMRRBE_ZT—_F
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